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CHAPTER 1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

Introductory Institutional Overview 

The Middle States Commission for Higher Education re-accredited Lehigh Carbon Community College in 2008 
after successful completion of a selected topics self-study and site team evaluation visit. 

Lehigh Carbon Community College (LCCC or the College), established in 1966, is a comprehensive, publicly 
supported, two-year, community college with a vision for excellence: responding to the community by 
providing affordable, accessible, and high quality education. The College serves Lehigh and Carbon counties 
in eastern Pennsylvania, with the main campus located in Schnecksville, approximately ten miles north of 
Allentown in Lehigh County. Additional sites are located in Lehigh County (Allentown: Donley Center, Airport 
Site, Baum School of Art), Nesquehoning in Carbon County (Carbon Center), and, through a special relationship 
with Schuylkill County, Tamaqua (Morgan Center).  

The College serves a diverse range of students from the rural, coal-country of the Northern Tier (Carbon and 
Schuylkill counties), to the more affluent suburban communities of the Parkland and Emmaus School Districts, 
to the inner-city population of Allentown. In keeping with the role of a comprehensive community college, 
transfer, career, developmental and remedial education, lifelong learning, and community education 
programming is offered. The 2011-2013 College credit catalog lists 12 transfer associate degree programs 
(Associate in Arts and Associate in Science), 40 career associate degree programs (Associate in Applied 
Science), 19 certificate programs, and 8 specialized credit diploma programs.  In addition, Albright College, 
Bloomsburg University, and Temple University offer upper-level courses at the College.  

As of September 2011, Lehigh Carbon Community College has many types of documented “articulation 
agreements” with 77 colleges and universities including 70 course-to-course equivalency articulation 
agreements, six core to core agreements (also referred to as general education to general education or gen. 
ed. to gen. ed. agreements), 125 program to program (or related) agreements with 23 different institutions 
and approximately 30 agreements related and similar to dual admission, guaranteed admission, direct 
admission, and Academic Passport.. These numbers do not include articulation agreements related to 
“transfer in” information, such as articulated credits with other colleges and universities, and articulation 
agreements from other institutions (e.g. Reading Area Community College, secondary Career and Technical 
Education).   

Across the College’s several locations, credit enrollment can be delineated for degree-seeking and non-degree 
seeking students.  Degree-seeking student enrollment slightly declined in the period between fall 2006 and fall 
2012 (6,302 – fall 2006, 6,193 – fall 2012).  Non-degree student enrollment for the same period slightly 
increased (855 – fall 2006, 1,130, fall 2012).  Total enrollment, including both degree and non-degree seeking 
student enrollment for fall 2012 totaled 7,323 (fall 2006 7,076).  The majority (fall 2012 62.8%; fall 2005 
62.1%) of students attend part-time and females (fall 2012 59.9%; fall 2006 61.2 %) outnumber males (fall 
2012 40.1%; fall 2006 38.8%). Majority of the degree-seeking students are 24 years and under (fall 2012 
60.9%; fall 2006 58.9%) with a mean age of LCCC degree-seeking credit students for fall 2012 at 26.3 years 
(median = 22.0).1  The minority (racial and ethnic) population grew approximately 13% (fall 2011 32.2%; fall 
2005 19.2 %).  2009-2010 noncredit registrations totaled 15,889 (2004-2005 18,656).  

The College offers a number of educational modalities in accordance with its mission of responding to the 
community by providing affordable, accessible, and high quality education. Over the past five years, Distance 
                                                           
1
Dual Enrollment students are included in total and non-degree seeking data.  Dual Enrollment students at LCCC are high school 

students who are dually or concurrently enrolled in both college and secondary/high school level work. 

4



 
 

Education enrollment grew and was supported by changes in the College’s systems and services. The move 
from the learning management system (LMS) of WebCT to ANGEL led to the creation and implementation of 
new training for all faculty teaching online in 2007 and 2008.  The program, which continues today, will be 
revised as WebStudy, the new LMS, is brought online. Web conferencing technology was introduced at the 
same time to allow all online instructors to provide synchronous components to their online classes such as 
virtual office hours and opportunities to provide tutoring and extra instruction. A full-time instructional 
technologist was added and dedicated to training and supporting online faculty. In addition, the full-time 
position of Associate Dean for Distance Education was created to provide administrative support and strategic 
planning for all online programs and courses. 

To serve the most academically gifted students, the Honors Scholars Program (Program) was initiated in 2004-
2005.  The Program annually enrolls up to 20 students who meet competitive admission standards and 
complete intellectually rigorous course work.  Students maintaining the required academic standards receive 
two free years of tuition at LCCC.  

In fall 2012, the College employed 105 full-time, 72 part-time, and 238 adjunct faculty (fall 2006, 106 full-time 
and 418 part-time). Eighty-seven full-time administrative staff, 69 full-time classified staff, 13 full-time special 
term staff (Administrative (11) and Faculty (2), and  325 part-time staff members (including 285 part-time 
community service staff members) worked for the College (fall 2006, 76 full-time administrators, 74 full-time 
classified staff, 11 full-time special term,  701 part-time staff members (including 657 community service).  

 The College’s planning, budgeting, and assessment cycle is aligned and the Institution has a three-year 
budget. (Planning Budgeting Assessment Cycle Effective July 1, 2013; Financial Statements June 30, 2010 and 
2009; June 30, 2011 and 2010; June 30, 2012 and 2011).The Commonwealth operating funding remained 
constant in fiscal year 2010-11 from the prior year at $13,629,315.   In fiscal year 2011-2012, the 
Commonwealth operating funding was reduced by $1,362,932 (10%) as part of an overall reduction for 
community college funding by the Commonwealth.  The reduction in fiscal year 2011-12 funding required the 
College to reduce operating costs to maintain a balanced budget. 

 The Commonwealth capital funding remained constant in fiscal year (FY) 2010-11 and 2011-12 for the 
College.  Commonwealth increases in 2012-2013 provided additional community college capital funding which 
allowed LCCC to be reimbursed for 50% of the 2010 Berrier Hall renovation and 50% for a proposed 2013 bond 
issue to renovate the Administration building in further support of student development. The Commonwealth 
capital funding available for all community colleges remained constant over the past two years.  Sponsor 
operating funding increased by 2.3% to $3,978,537 in FY 2010-11 and increased by 1.0% in FY 2011-12. 
Sponsor capital funding increased by 4.1% to $2,318,595 in FY 2010-11 and decreased slightly by 0.2% in FY 
2011-12.  

PRR Preparation:  Summary of Institutional Approach 

This Periodic Review Report (PRR) focused retrospective, current, and prospective analyses of the institution in 
an inclusive manner which provided the entire community an opportunity to contribute to the final report.  
The PRR Steering Committee, comprised of individuals from all areas of the College, was chartered to prepare 
the report and worked collaboratively across departments to complete the PRR.  Task Forces were created for 
each of the Standards in the selected topics reviewed in the self-study and evaluated institutional activities 
related to the specific Middle States 2008 recommendations.  Communication was accomplished through 
faculty meetings, town hall meetings with the College President, Google sites, and the College Voice, LCCC’s 
weekly communications vehicle.  

In accordance with Middle States Accreditation procedures, LCCC continues on-going efforts of annual 
assessment for program and service areas.  Through information gleaned in those assessments along with 
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other resources consisting of committee minutes, the Strategic Plan, President’s Cabinet, Academic Council, 
Leadership Team, and Assessment Council information is gathered on a continual basis. 

 

Summary of Major Institutional Changes and Developments Since the 2008 Site Visit 

Since the 2008 Middle States site visit, Lehigh Carbon Community College continues to focus energies on 
reaching out to the regional community; follow and refine the process of sustainable, systematic assessment 
and renewal; and support the student body with improved services, pedagogical technologies, and facilities.  

LCCC sustained fiscal stability through recent reduced and flat state funding and difficult economic 
environment. 

Additional Middle States actions included the substantive change submitted to the Middle States Commission 
on Higher Education (MSCHE) in 2009 as the College’s Cedar Eatery site closed.  In 2012, MSCHE 
acknowledged the College’s ESL program was included within the scope of LCCC’s accreditation. 

During the Middle States self-study process, a concerted effort was made to improve transparency and 
communication throughout the institution.  To this end, the President reorganized institutional governance to 
augment decision making.  Within the new structure, the existing Executive Team comprised of the President 
and three Vice Presidents expanded to form the President’s Cabinet and include the deans, whose respective 
areas of responsibility together embraced all staff, faculty, and student concerns; and the faculty governance 
leader.  The President's Cabinet considers and makes recommendations on matters of policy and 
programmatic priorities of the College and advises the President on urgent matters.  

Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2014, in draft form during the 2008 visit, was implemented.  The 
Leadership Team, formerly comprised of Deans and Associate Deans,  also (1) reorganized and consists of 
Associate Deans, Directors, and five faculty representatives and (2) is charged as a working group to 
implement the College’s key strategic initiatives, tasks, and goals as identified in the Plan    

The Academic Council, a group with broad representation from the academic and student development areas, 
is comprised of seven faculty (teaching and service), the Dean of Academic Services, Dean of Student 
Development, Vice President for Academic Services and Student Development, and Academic Services Support 
Supervisor, also organized during 2007-2008. The Council is responsible for the Academic Plan, which informs 
the Strategic Plan, gathers supplemental input from other groups within the college and, when needed, works 
with the President’s Cabinet in a tactical capacity to implement academic and student development proposals.   

 

PRR Highlights:  Abstract 

The Periodic Review Report addresses many aspects of the 2007 self-study as well as the Site Visit Evaluation 
Team recommendations.  Chapter 2 provides a summary of LCCC’s responses as an institution to those 
recommendations specifically regarding Standard 1:  Missions and Goals, Standard 2:  Planning, Resource 
Allocation and Institutional Renewal, Standard 3:  Institutional Resources, Standard 7:  Institutional 
Assessment, Standard 12:  General Education, and Standard 14:  Assessment of Student Learning.  Changes 
and improvements are highlighted. 

Chapter 3 discusses the major challenges and opportunities encountered and further explains the impact 
those challenges and opportunities have had or will have on the present and future state of the College.   

Enrollment and Finance Trends and Projections are reviewed in Chapter 4.  The College’s financial and 
enrollment plans for the current year as well as three future years are documented along with concerns and 
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projections for each.  Although it is difficult to project both topic areas with a keen degree of certainty, the 
projections are supported by appropriate assumptions. 

The focus of Chapter 5 is the Organized and Sustained Process to Assess Institutional Effectiveness and 
Student Learning and includes an overview of the College’s assessment process. 

Chapter 6 addresses the linked institutional planning and budgeting process with an overview and analysis 
including the strategic plan, Academic Plan, Campus Technology Plan, and use of assessment results. 
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CHAPTER 2.  SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE PREVIOUS EVALUATION AND TO COMMISSION ACTIONS 

 

Introduction 

Lehigh Carbon Community College (LCCC) completed the Middle States Commission on Higher Education 
(MSCHE) Self-Study and Evaluation Team Site Visit in 2007-2008.  Both MSCHE and LCCC made 
recommendations: Academic Excellence was defined and assured LCCC’s Vision/Mission/Value statements 
served as the basis for Transformation:  2009-2014 Strategic Plan.  The formal Academic Plan was created 
through the collaboration of a wide range of constituents. The standing committees were revised and 
streamlined as were the planning teams and the Developmental Education Committee was formed to provide 
recommendations based on relevant data.  While budget reductions occurred, institutional finances were 
balanced and research into additional funding streams continued. The Budget Hearing process was 
implemented and correlates funding allocations with LCCC Values and Strategic Planning Goals.  Public safety 
(Campus Security) improved communication and overall security; the Pennsylvania State Police and external 
consultants availed the College of their expertise; security drills were held in conjunction with state and local 
police forces; the mass-notification system was implemented at all sites; a series of professional development 
programs were developed for the campus security force; the department was re-organized, including the 
creation of a new position, Director of Public Safety, and the reporting structure changed from Finance to 
Dean of Student Development.  Collegewide assessment was provided additional support and general 
education review was incorporated into the programmatic five-year Academic Audits. Overall, the College 
determined and implemented strategies to productively and efficiently serve LCCC constituents. 

 

Academic Excellence 

LCCC’s Middle States 2007 Self Study recommended the College convene a broadly representative task force 
to discuss and clarify the concept of Academic Excellence, as it applies to student learning. Finalized in spring 
2008, on the recommendation of the Community of Practice, LCCC’s faculty recommended and the President 
approved the following statement:  

Academic Excellence is mastery of knowledge in a content area and of the analytical, practical, and/or 
creative skills to use this knowledge effectively. 

Academic Excellence at LCCC is fostered by exemplary teaching, rigorous curricula, comprehensive 
student services, and synergistic partnerships. 

Academic Excellence produces personal, professional, and intellectual growth of learners. 

 

Strategic Plan 

The LCCC Middle States 2007 Self Study recommended the College develop Transformation: Strategic Plan 
2009-2014, with goals expressed in terms of outcomes, assuring the document emerges from LCCC’s Vision, 
Mission and Values and provides concrete steps toward institutional improvement.  In 2007, the President 
initiated development of the current plan, Transformation: Strategic Plan 2009-2014, as he issued the call for 
volunteers to debate and discuss critical issues and determination of goals. The planning process was inclusive, 
open, and welcoming, allowing the free communication essential for collegewide debate with a broad 
representation and diversity of thought. The Vision, Mission, and Value statements along with the 
recommendations of the Middle States Self-Study, the 2007 Facilities Assessment Plan and Campus Master 
Plan, guided the discussions. The response to the President’s Call for volunteers  provided the wherewithal to 
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develop both the strategic plan, comprised of three task forces (Transforming Students’ Lives, Transforming 
the Learning Environment, and Transforming the College Organization), and the Community of Practice, which 
served as the first reader of the Strategic Plan, developed the Academic Plan, and defined Academic 
Excellence.  Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2014 was approved by the College’s Board of Trustees in 
November 2008 and implemented July 2009 by the reorganized Leadership Team.  As Transformation: 
Strategic Plan 2009-2014 neared completion, the President issued a call for volunteers in fall 2012 as 
development of a rolling three year plan, Many Voices, One Vision:  LCCC 2014 – 2018, commenced.  

 

Academic Plan  

The LCCC 2007 Self Study identified the need for a formal Academic Plan to prioritize and coordinate policies 
and practices to improve student learning and formalize academic excellence. To this end, formal Academic 
Plan development began in 2007 as a parallel to the strategic planning process. The Academic Plan, instituted 
in 2008, is revised annually with opportunities for constituent comments, and posted internally on the 
Intranet.  The Academic Plan informs the Strategic Plan and other College plans, including but not limited to 
the Enrollment Management Plan, Technology Plan, and Facilities Plan. The Academic Council is charged with 
the creation, periodic review, promotion, and implementation of the Academic Plan, which sets LCCC’s 
academic and student development goals, was most recently updated in spring 2013, and continues to 
support the definition of Academic Excellence as developed by the Community of Practice in 2008.  The 
Academic Council calendar provides detail of the Academic Plan systematic review dates. 

 

Standing Committee Review 

The LCCC 2007 self study recommended:  Review the role of the standing committees as they relate to an 
academic plan.  A substantive review of standing committees’ role, responsibilities, and composition occurred 
in 2008 as demonstrated in the College’s 2009 Policies and Procedures Manual and Academic Council Minutes.  
In 2009 and through subsequent revisions, LCCC committees are assigned to one of the following categories:  

 Human and Institutional Resources Committees:  Administrative Sabbatical, Emeritus, Entrepreneurial 
Projects Grants, Faculty Evaluation (defined by Collective Bargaining Agreement(CBA)), Faculty 
Promotion (defined by CBA), Faculty Sabbatical (defined by CBA) 

 Policy Development and Review Committees:  Academic Standards, Administrative Professional 
Development, Curriculum, Environmental Health and Safety, Faculty Professional Development 

 Strategic Committees:  Developmental Education, Emergency Response, Retention  

 Ad-Hoc Committees 

The role and composition of the various standing and ad hoc committees was detailed within the Lehigh 
Carbon Community College Policies and Procedures Manual and undergoes review annually.  End of year 
Committee reports’ recommended actions provide the framework for continuity in committee activities. 
Highlights of Committee accomplishments include: 

 The role of the Curriculum Committee was clarified and the process for effective curriculum change 
defined, implemented, and communicated to faculty and staff.  Additionally, the Academic Standards 
Subcommittee on General Education reviewed, discussed, and recommended LCCC's general education 
requirements, which were published in the catalog and posted on the website.   
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 The Developmental Education Committee examined the state of developmental education at LCCC and 
based on these findings recommended a number of initiatives, including developmental learning 
communities, creation of an exception list, and interactive learning activities. 
 

 

Developmental Education Committee 

The 2007 LCCC Self Study recommended the creation of the Developmental Education Committee, as a cross 
functional standing committee with representation from the general education core disciplines to 
investigate, discuss, and make recommendations related to the unique challenges of at risk students, the 
benefits of full-time faculty instruction in 100 and below courses and persistence to graduate. 

Formed in February 2008, with representation from students, faculty, administration, and staff the 
Developmental Education Committee was charged to review and recommend policies and procedures for the 
purpose of improving LCCC's developmental program and preparing all members of the College community to 
help underprepared students gain academic skills and remain enrolled until they successfully attained their 
academic goals. During their first year, Committee members researched COMPASS placement testing and 
scores and explored alternatives for developmental courses (e.g. modularization, four credit vs. three credit, 
learning communities). In 2009-10, an exceptions list was created allowing students in developmental 
education courses to take at least one college-level course concurrently.  Further conversation considered 
other placement testing options as well as the ramifications of enacting a four-credit versus three-credit 
developmental course. Task forces were formed to discuss in more detail: best practices, assessment and 
placement testing, and data collection. The Placement Testing Subcommittee concluded there was "no perfect 
assessment, however, the SAT and ACT [were] better at predicting performance in college-level courses." 
Additionally, a summit of 14 other regional colleges reviewed the performance of COMPASS and determined 
COMPASS’ usefulness far outweighed any existing deficits in determining college-level performance. It was 
determined to retain COMPASS and revise the College’s retesting policy which required a two-year wait.  This 
was a significant change in procedure.  The 2012 revised policy states: 

Students who wish to retake the Compass Placement Test may request one retest at no charge. 
Students will be assessed a $10.00 fee for each retest thereafter.  

To facilitate student remediation, the Committee investigated strategies, such as Pearson’s 
MyFoundationsLab, a web-based diagnostic and prescriptive software package that supports mastery of 
identified deficits. The Committee developed a FAQ for COMPASS placement testing to encourage students to 
take this high-stakes assessment seriously and recommended strategies to improve the image of 
developmental education in support of student success, including:  renaming developmental/remedial studies 
as “Preparatory Academic Success,” promote incorporation of developmental studies into learning 
communities, and using First Year Experience and student orientation to reinforce the value of developmental 
education completion. 

 

Multi-Year Financial Plan and Fiscal Stability 

Both the LCCC 2007 Self Study and the 2008 Middle States Evaluation Team recommended financial strategies.  
LCCC recommended achieve and sustain fiscal stability, through new funding sources to increase the 
operating budget sufficiently to meet existing and future Institution-wide needs.  The Evaluation Team 
supported this recommendation, stating the College needs to develop a multi-year financial plan that will 
permit the College to plan for adequate resources to implement its new Strategic Plan.  A streamlined multi-
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year Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle was implemented in 2008, revised in 2009, and 
reviewed/revised annually thereafter.  This document outlined the stakeholders, their input/role, and timing 
surrounding key initiatives and revisions as submitted to the President's Cabinet and Strategic Planning 
Committee of the Board of Trustees.  The College’s annual budget development process, including capital and 
technology requests, was expanded after considerable review and stakeholder input and better aligned to 
meet the budgeting requirements of the sponsoring school districts.  A comprehensive budget development 
process including the Budget Hearings were designed to improve communication and transparency in decision 
making.  The March 9, 2009 President’s Cabinet minutes recorded:   

A timeline for the [Fiscal Year] FY 2010-2011 budget process and FY 2009-10 revised budget process 
was distributed and reviewed by the Cabinet.  Budget forms will be distributed to budget coordinators 
the end of this week for review.  Any new budget requests are to be referenced to the strategic 
plan.  Budget hearings are planned for the week of May 11, 2009.  Presentation time and length of 
documentation guidelines will be established. 

Further, the Finance Office created a comprehensive budget development site on the Finance page of the 
College’s Intranet.  The Integrated Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment page states:  

LCCC’s Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment cycle parallels the budgeting cycle of the sponsoring 
school districts and provides LCCC with a continuous three-year cycle of linked/integrated planning, 
budgeting, and assessment activities. These activities comprise several of the core steps in the 
College’s Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment cycle. The cycle is simple, predictable, and not only 
satisfies Middle States and school board requirements, but provides the College with a useful and 
effective means of planning and allocating resources. Assessments are data driven, occur using current 
budgets to investigate current or proposed activities, such as institutional effectiveness, student 
learning, technology needs, etc. The results of assessment are used to inform both practice and the 
strategic plan. 

Planning is future focused and budget driven. Divisional or unit budget requests to execute planned 
activities use the results of assessment, tied to the strategic plan, developed in consultation with the 
area supervisors and Vice Presidents, and considered by the President’s Cabinet during scheduled 
Budget Hearings as part of this cycle. 

Overall, the various plans were implemented allowing the College to maintain fiscal stability without 
negatively affecting the quality of the education that is offered to students. 

Since the 2007 Middle States report, most educational institutions, including LCCC, faced challenges regarding 
fiscal stability with the onset and continuation of the depressed economy and decreasing and/or withheld 
federal and state funding.  In 2007-2008, the College attempted to implement millage tax separate from the 
sponsoring school districts; the proposal was withdrawn and the funding sources remained within the school 
district tax structure.  However, the College community remains optimistic given the increased support 
President Obama has given community colleges. 

The Commonwealth operating funding remained constant in FY 2010-11 from the prior year at 
$13,629,315.  The FY 2011-12 Commonwealth operating funding was reduced by $1,362,932 as part of 
an overall the Commonwealth reduction for community college funding.  The reduction in FY 2011-12 funding 
required the College to reduce operating costs to maintain a balanced budget.  Commonwealth operating 
funding in FY 2012-13 remained constant at $12,266,383. 

Commonwealth capital funding for LCCC remained constant in FY 2010-11 and FY 2011-12.  An increased 
appropriation for Commonwealth capital funding for FY 2012-13 enabled the College to issue a bond for the 
purpose of the College Administration Building Renovation Project to enhance student development. The 
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renovation project will improve the organization of the Student Development offices and activities while 
improving student accessibility. Sponsor operating funding increased by 2.3% to $3,978,537 in FY 2010-11 and 
increased by 1.0% in FY 2011-12.  Sponsor operating funding in FY 2012-13 increased 1% to $4,058,505. 

The Sponsor capital funding is determined by sponsor proportionate share on the lease costs and debt service 
costs for the fiscal year (FY).  For example, in FY 2009-10 the Berrier Hall Debt service expense was for only 
half that year. In FY 2010-11, LCCC was making two payments so the additional amount was appropriated by 
the Sponsors.  The Sponsors contribute 50% to most debt service payments.  Sponsor capital funding 
increased by 4.1% to $2,318,595 in FY 2010-11 and decreased slightly by 0.2% in FY 2011-12.  Sponsor capital 
funding in FY 2012-13 increased 0.4% to $2,323,046. 

The state operating budget decrease was slightly offset by a one percent increase in school districts’ funding.  
LCCC’s 2012-2013 operating fund budget sources include: 

 11.5% from sponsoring school districts 

 34.7% from the state (decreased from 35.3% in 2011-2012) 

 44.9% from tuition and fees 

 5.0% from noncredit 

 3.9% from miscellaneous 

The reduction in FY 2011-12 funding coupled with a decline in enrollment Academic Year (AY) 2010-2011 
required the College to reduce operating costs to maintain a balanced budget. The College implemented 
several initiatives to achieve a balanced budget: 

 Froze faculty, adjunct, and administrative wages. 

 Reduced by twenty percent travel and hospitality, effective 2011-2012 budget year.  

 Reduced contracted services, supplies, advertising, and postage costs. 

 Reviewed open positions for continued relevance, on-going responsibilities, and required hours of 
work prior to posting (Human Resources and key stakeholders).  

Foundation 

The LCCC Foundation, a 501(C)(3) not-for-profit corporation, seeks, holds, and uses gifts, bequests, and 
endowments to support the needs of the College.  A board of 24 volunteer directors makes decisions to 
support and assist the College in the accomplishment of its educational purposes.  The LCCC Foundation began 
in 1975 and became more active in the last decade.  Since 2008, there were efforts to be more transparent 
and to foster more administrative accountability.  Several new policies were adopted, including a 
“whistleblower” policy that also established the Board Compliance Officer position (similar to an ombudsman).  

A Foundation Board committee, based on collaboration with a paid investment consulting firm, makes all the 
investment decisions, pending final approval by the full Board of Directors.  The audited financial statements 
note an increase in endowed funds from $767,236 in FY 2007-08 to $2.101 million for FY 2011-12.  Overall 
assets of the Foundation grew from $10.2 million in FY 2007-08 to $11.9 million in the FY 2011-12, an increase 
of almost $1.7 million. 

In addition to individual contributions, the Foundation conducts three primary fundraising events annually. 
The net return on these events remained relatively consistent despite volatile economic change, with a net 
increase of $15,003 (from $142,906 in FY 2007-08 to $157,909 in FY 2011-12).  The number of individual 
Foundation donors increased from 354 in FY 2007-08 to 454 in FY 2011-2012.  Over the past four years, the 
value of the scholarships’ funds increased from $322.5K to $1.1 million.  An alumni partnership was formed to 
better connect alumni to College activities and support the athletic fields’ renovations.  The $1.5 million 
Scheller Family Endowed Scholarship Fund supported 14 full tuition scholarship students since its inception in 
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2008. Funding allows Scheller Scholars to complete their BS/BA degrees in nearby four-year institutions 
following their LCCC graduation. 

As private foundation, state and federal grants funding decreases in the present economic climate, and 
corporations engage in narrower, more focused giving, requesting their employees designate or recommend 
non-profits to be eligible for corporate funding consideration, the Foundation continues to vigorously solicit 
gifts and grants from these and other sources, including individual alumni and friends of the College.  The LCCC 
Foundation continues to identify and match new and existing donors’ interests with current College needs. 

Grants  

Since 2008, the grants development process was revised to increase the visibility of potential grants in the 
initial stages, and grants management procedures were formalized after a two-day Grants Management 
Workshop presented by consultants for grant project staff and administrators in December 2008.  Handbooks 
for Grants Development and Grants Management were developed, distributed, and posted to a new grants 
site on the College’s intranet.  An internal checklist was created for the grant development process to ensure 
completeness and accuracy through consultation with affected departments, sample forms, and templates 
were generated for managing grants, and the Grant Proposal Approval Form was revised to capture relevant 
information for data entry into Banner and to ensure preliminary and final approval from Finance, Information 
Technology, other relevant departments, and the appropriate Dean and Vice President.  Sustainability of grant 
positions is determined at the Executive level, with similar consultation regarding grant programs and 
associated personnel occurring as grants sunset. 

Similar to other institutions, LCCC experiences grant funding highs and lows.  Although the College successfully 
secured a variety of significant grants in recent years, total annual grant revenue declined from a high of $5 
million in 2008-09 to a low of $3 million in 2011-12.  The future outlook for grant funding is uncertain.  The 
economic recession caused many corporations and foundations to cut back on their philanthropy while 
competition for grant funding among not-for-profit organizations increased.  Legislators reduced federal and 
state funding, resulting in smaller appropriations for some grant programs and termination of others.  Federal 
and state earmarks are also being eliminated. 

Due to increased competition, the College’s grant success rate declined from 68 percent in 2005-06 (52 of 77 
grant applications submitted) to 52 percent in 2010-11 (28 of 54 grant applications submitted).  LCCC’s federal 
funding peaked with $4.8 million awarded for multi-year grant proposals submitted in 2009-10.  2010-11 
federal grant applications declined to $2.8 million and 2011-2012 awarded federal funds increased to $4.4 
million for grants  due to the Title III grant award of $2 million.  Funding from state grants decreased from $1.2 
million for grants submitted in 2007-08 to approximately $143,000 for grants submitted in 2011-12. Due to 
these declines, the College’s federal TRIO Student Support Services grant and the state Act 101 grant, 
significant sources of funding for educational support services, were discontinued in 2009.  State and federal 
funding for literacy and job training programs was also reduced.  Since 2008, LCCC proactively applied to new 
diverse funding sources; several of these grant applications were successful, and include: (1) workforce 
development from the departments of Labor and Transportation (federal funding) obtained through the 
Community Based Job Training (CBJT), Commercial Motor Vehicle Operator Safety, and Workforce Innovation 
in Regional Economic Development (WIRED) programs; (2) two Advanced Technological Education (ATE) 
grants from the National Science Foundation for new curricula in the computer science field; (3) an 
AmeriCorps VISTA (Volunteers in Service to America) grant  from the Corporation for National and Community 
Service which provided LCCC with a full-time VISTA volunteer for two years to increase student engagement in 
community service and service learning; (4) a Rockefeller Foundation grant in partnership with a financial 
services company that supported the establishment of the Green Energy Training Center; (5) over $1.2 million 
worth of products and services to implement and maintain a web portal through the CampusEAI Consortium 
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(Enterprise Application Integration); (6) and a Scholar-in-Residence grant award that provided  a Fulbright 
scholar from Egypt in 2012-2013. 

For many years, the U.S. Department of Education provided significant funding for LCCC’s teacher education 
programs and a K-5 after-school program.  Future funding for the continuation of these projects is uncertain.  
Several federal grant programs also underwent changes (e.g. Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary 
Education (FIPSE)) or were terminated (e.g. Community Based Job Training), while  several programs  
extended their competition cycle from annual to biennial (every two year) submissions, making awards in off 
years from the previous year’s slate of ranked proposals (e.g. Title III). Grants development staff members 
continue to work with faculty and staff and to reach out to other organizations for partnerships to secure 
funding for a variety of needs.  Future trends in grant opportunities will include new federal government and 
large foundation initiatives, which will often require collaboration with other institutions, such as school 
districts, colleges and universities, employers, and workforce investment boards. Major funding will be 
available for consortia that can develop, implement, and scale up research-based programs and services to 
increase the number of skilled workers and college graduates.  It is expected projects will most likely be 
required to include a quasi-experimental design, comprehensive evaluation plan, and strategies for 
dissemination and replication.  An example of this type of grant program is the Trade Adjustment Assistance 
Community College and Career Training (TAACCCT) grant which was awarded in 2011 to a consortium of the 
14 Pennsylvania community colleges and through which LCCC is receiving approximately $800,000 over three 
years for training and support services for dislocated workers. 

Recognizing the National Science Foundation (NSF) will be an important future source of grant funding for 
STEM (Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics) programs, LCCC hosted an NSF program officer’s 
one-day workshop presentation for regional college faculty and staff in 2008.  Perkins Career and Technical 
Education funding increased substantially over the years from $368,074 in 2007-08 to $563,907 in 2011-12, 
but decreased in 2012-13 to $537,721.  The Title III-Part A, Strengthening Institutions Program, although 
extremely competitive, is a significant source of funding for institution-wide improvements in academic 
programs, institutional management, and fiscal stability.  In 2012, LCCC was one of 14 successful applicants 
and received an award of approximately $2 million over five years.  As funding was approved for an October 1, 
2012 start, the project is in early phases of implementation and there are no data to analyze.  Although the 
majority of the College’s past grant funding came from federal and state programs, LCCC’s grants 
development staff strives to expand corporate and foundation grant funding. 

 

Organizational Capacity and Systems 

The 2007 LCCC Self Study recommendation to build organizational capacity and systems to support student 
success and effective operations as well as to demonstrate a link between LCCC's values, goals, and the 
President's Cabinet allocation of resources, was addressed. 

 

 Personnel Developments 

Through organizational restructuring, five admissions staff were  allocated to cover the four learning 
centers. Minor revisions to the Admissions Office reporting flow chart were completed to allow for 
better oversight. Appropriate professional associations were also identified to improve upon 
professional development and visibility within the community. 

Despite the economic changes since the 2007 Middle States Report, the College’s personnel turnover 
rate improved slightly. Specifically, LCCC’s turnover rate decreased from a high of 7.9 percent in 2007-
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2008 to 7.3 percent in 2010-2011.  Further review of departure data revealed 1 percent due to grant 
funding expiration and 3 percent due to part-time staff obtaining full time employment.  While the 
averages were higher than national averages reported by the National Community College Benchmark 
Project (NCCBP), the decreased LCCC employee turnover rate was achieved as the national trend 
indicated a .41 percent increase, from 5.00 percent in 2007-2008 to 5.41 percent in 2010-2011 (Table 
2.1). The LCCC trend is positive. 

The downward trend in turnover can further be attributed to several strategies introduced since the 
2007 Middle States Report, among them: (1) the new-hire engagement survey; conducted by an 
outside agency at three months and six months of new employment; (2) exit interviews conducted by 
an outside agency aids the College to determine areas for review; and (3) the revised new-hire 
orientation (a)allows more one-on-one time spent with the new employee and (b) provides a mentor. 

 

Table 2.1 Comparison of LCCC Turnover Rate with NCCBP 

LCCC National Comm. College Benchmark Project* 

2007-2008 – 7.9% 5.00% (50th Percentile NCCBP) 

2008-2009 – 6.5% 4.76% (50th Percentile NCCBP) 

2009-2010 – 6.6% 4.86% (50th Percentile NCCBP) 

2010-2011 – 7.3% 5.41% (50th Percentile NCCBP) 

*national data collection agency for two-year community colleges 

 

 Procedural Improvements 

Procedural changes in Admissions prompted the redesign of departmental policies and procedures, 
including the prospective student interview process, high school visitation, electronic response system, 
acceptance protocol, all which resulted in improved recruitment and enrollment of new full-time 
students (9.9% increase fall 2012). To improve Collegewide communication, the College employed 
various strategies which include announcements in ANGEL (the College Learning Management System), 
College Voice, Google (gmail, documents, sites), MyLCCC Portal (linking college resources), College 
website restructure 2010 and 2012, and the Intranet, where employees access the College Briefing, 
Leadership Team, Council, and Committee minutes.  The College increased opportunities to gather the 
student perspective with student representation on Committees.  Additionally, the Student 
Government Association (SGA) proposal, based on student-related Strategic Plan goals and intended to 
support strengthening the organization, was implemented.  The student voice was additionally sought 
in a student panel presentation to the Leadership Team and in the development of Many Voices, One 
Vision: LCCC 2014-2017, through participation in many of the eight forums. 

The Admissions Department partnered with other departments, including Information Technology to 
utilize various technologies for recruitment. Additional linkages between Admissions, Enrollment 
Services, Financial Aid, Student Development, and Educational Support Services to target efforts for 
underrepresented groups were also initiated. 
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 Strategic Developments 

Enrollment Management Plan.  In Transformation: Strategic Plan 2009‐2014, LCCC made a 
commitment to transform students’ lives, transform the learning environment, and transform the 
College organization through implementation of the goals and action strategies.  Strategic goals called 
for the College to focus on:  

Enrollment‐Related Services:  Optimize the infrastructure that supports enrollment‐related 
services for students. Adopt a comprehensive and well-coordinated enrollment management 
approach to improve community outreach, recruitment and enrollment of new students; 
internal marketing; enrollment of continuing students and implementation of all related efforts. 
Create an organizational structure that will actively support effective coordination of all of 
these efforts.  

The Academic Plan, January 2010, which grew from the Middle States Self Study recommendations 
(2007) ‘to establish a formal plan that identifies, prioritizes, and coordinates policies and practices, 
improving student learning’, further supported the development of the Enrollment Management Plan 
as the Academic Plan’s second goal stated: Develop a comprehensive enrollment management plan, 
including (1) creating a culture of shared responsibility for enrollment management rooted within the 
academic ethos, through the sound planning, development and management of academic programs;2 
and (2) training for College administrators and faculty to continuously improve data analysis to become 
more familiar with demographics and regional needs, and to forecast needs the College can fill.  

To facilitate achievement of these goals, Enrollment Management Plan: 2010‐2014 was created. The 
Enrollment Management Steering Committee met with key stakeholders’ groups including: Academic 
Services; Curriculum and Professional Accreditation; Finance and Financial Aid; Human Resources; 
Institutional Advancement; Information Technology; Student Development; Workforce Development 
and Community Services; and representatives from Communications, Retention and Technology 
Committees. The document was also reviewed by Academic Council and the Transforming Students’ 
Lives Task Force of the Leadership Team.  For the first time, as a result of their efforts, LCCC has a 
comprehensive enrollment management plan that is collegewide in scope, strategic in design, and 
pragmatic in its focus. The goals, strategies, and tactics were crafted to advance the College’s 
effectiveness in coordinating enrollment related efforts, maintaining academic planning and 
management as core, informing enrollment related decisions, targeting service provision and 
communications, planning and successfully achieving student enrollment goals. 

A fourth Task Force was added to the Leadership Team in July 2010 to implement the Enrollment 
Management Plan.  As a first step, the Transforming Enrollment Related Services Task Force (TERS) 
sponsored a review of Enrollment Related Services 2010-2011 and focused on the seven key report 
recommendations: 

1. Cross training - of appropriate tasks, intra and interoffice.  To work more efficiently and 
eliminate the complete loss of job knowledge when an employee leaves the department.  

2. Departmental training and sharing - department to department; collegewide student 
development staff meetings.   To enhance general knowledge of each other’s roles and 
responsibilities, facilitate and support collaborative problem-solving and planning efforts. 

3. Reference Playbook – Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) guide (written from a students’ point 
of view) for front line staff, and eventually students’ themselves.   To provide the information 

                                                           
2
 Reframing Strategic Enrollment Management from the Academic Lens: Theory in Practice (Part 2), January 2009, by Lynda Wallace-

Hulecki, Senior Consultant, SEM WORKS, Greensboro, NC 
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and support needed for all staff to better assist students with general questions, thereby 
decreasing the information silos effect and quick referral of the student to another office. 

4. Calendar of peak periods – by office, to facilitate cross department planning, cross training and 
cross staffing to better anticipate and address needs in the high volume periods. 

5. Process maps, by campus/site – begin asking each enrollment related service office to identify 
what general step(s) must/should occur just before the student seeks assistance at their door.  
To develop a basic map for main campus and each site, analyze and determine how we might 
adjust/refine to uncomplicate the student experience and enhance effectiveness of efforts. 

6. Portal assistance for students during peak periods.  Make it simple, intuitive and very easy for 
students to navigate and locate info critical to enrollment related processes. 

7. Campus signage – external and internal.   No signage, ambiguous signage, inaccurate signage 
has created far more questions and discomfort for prospects and visitors when attempting to 
navigate our College.  To recommend signage that is consistent from main campus to sites that 
welcomes, directs and reassuringly guides visitors/prospects/students.  

Cross-training occurred and continues. The FAQ guide and calendar of peak periods were developed in 
2011-12. The wayfinding project will be implemented in summer 2013 as work on the other 
recommendations continues. Chapter 6 discusses additional progress on these focus areas. 

 

The Campus Technology Plan 2012-2015.  Between 2005 and 2011, the technology department 
underwent several leadership changes and evaluations, including a gap analysis conducted by The 
Davison Group, external consultants.  The need for a new cohesive plan became apparent as 
Technology Plan 2006‐2011 expired and the search for an Executive Director of Information 
Technology ensued.  Charged by the President in fall 2011, the Campus Technology Planning Ad Hoc 
Committee, an eleven member intentionally cross‐functional team, with representation from faculty 
and each of the key technology areas presented the draft to the President’s Cabinet, Academic Council, 
and Leadership Team during the May 2012 Report to Consultants.  The plan set the strategic direction 
for campus technology with relevance for each of the stakeholder groups.  Key stakeholders began 
quarterly meetings in November 2012 to assure the plan is executed and goals achieved.  

Organizationally, two bodies were created to support campus technology (1) the Enterprise 
Applications Steering Team (EAST) is facilitated by the Director of Application Solutions and Support.   
The team of Banner module data owners and select IT team members participate in the EAST meetings 
to provide both technical expertise and information regarding effort and progress.  EAST prioritizes 
projects that are related to Banner and the portal.  (2) Three directors; the Director of Application 
Solutions and Support, Director of Information Technology Services, and Director of Infrastructure 
Services; and the Executive Director of Information Technology form the Information Technology 
Senior Leadership Team (ITSLT) and meet regularly with the Information Technology Steering 
Committee (ITSC- include the President, Senior Vice President, two Vice Presidents, and members of 
the ITSLT) assuring clear communication and priority setting.  

 

Campus Security Enhancements 

The 2008 Middle States Evaluation Team recommended:  The College should consider enhancements to 
campus security, including an increase in security staff and the implementation of an expanded emergency 
alert system.   Through conversations with campus constituents, discussions with the Pennsylvania State 
Police and private consultants, the following enhancements occurred: 
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 Broadened the scope of 'campus security' to Department of Public Safety and Security (DPSS) in spring 
2012 and created the Director of Public Safety position.  

 Reorganized the department reporting structure to the Dean of Student Development (instead of 
Finance).  The reporting line reorganization was done to intentionally facilitate the integration of Public 
Safety into the College community, keeping student life, student learning and student development 
central to all departmental activities while maintaining a safe environment for all.  

 Installed Mass Notification System at all sites allowing for voice message broadcast. 

 Performed safety drills in conjunction with Pennsylvania State Police and local police departments on 
Development Day 2009 (Schnecksville) and 2011 (Donley center). 

 Computerized incident reporting system for faculty and staff. 

 Realized additional support for security activities through collaboration and utilization of Maintenance 
staff. 

 Initiated new parking restrictions. 

 Installed electronic monitoring systems to cover overnight periods where in-person monitoring is not 
available. 

 Provided additional security tool training.  

 Utilized camera and security systems. 

 Worked closely with faculty and administrators to respond and recover from the August 14, 2012 bomb 
threat to the entire main campus.   

 Conducted a Vulnerability and Needs Assessment for the College which led to several 
recommendations for changes, i.e., pros and cons for security contractor (was eliminated), scheduling 
adjustments, need for additional officers, equipment, security vehicle, new uniforms, training, updated 
procedures, Continuity of Operations Plans, need to install Knox boxes throughout the main campus, 
install interior manual locks on all classroom and restroom doors to allow for safe hiding during a 
lockdown, etc. 

 Continued to identify and implement security improvements at all campuses (cameras, alarms, public 
address system, scheduling, equipment, etc.) and work closely with Maintenance. 

 Reviewed and updated the security portion of the College’s Policies and Procedures handbook. 

 Conducted fire evacuation drills on all campuses except Carbon.  Staff conducts fire and safety related 
training and drills. 

 As a result of a February 2013 incident, DPSS and the Early Learning Center (ELC) director conducted a 
meeting with parents on February 19th and discussed LCCC emergency procedures and plans.  The 
department made special arrangements to allow non-employee / non-student access to E2Campus 
Alerts.  While the current system does not allow non-students / non-employees access to alerts; 
Information Technology worked with DPSS and developed an interim solution to allow ELC parents, 
LCCC neighbors, local businesses, and etc. access.  A more permanent solution is being developed.  

 Delivered several StART and Public Safety Workshops to faculty and administrators. Continue to work 
closely with the Dean of Student Development and the Associate Dean of Student Success with 
behavioral issues and the StART program. 

 Continue to strengthen relationships with police, fire, emergency medical services, emergency 
management and private sector partners affiliated with our campuses. 

o Facilitated a workshop for LCCC Development Day involving LCCC Security,  
State Police, Schnecksville Fire Department, and County Emergency Management. 

o Hosted and participated in training with South Whitehall Police at the main campus. 
o Meeting with Tamaqua Emergency Management, Schuylkill County Emergency Management, 

and Morgan staff to plan an exercise at LCCC – Morgan Campus (2012-2013).  
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o Schnecksville and area fire departments conducted training with LCCC staff April 2013.    
o There is an open invitation to all emergency services to conduct drills, exercises, and training 

at our campuses. 

 Revised job descriptions for Public Safety and Security officers and student workers.  Continue to utilize 
student workers to serve as “eyes and ears” of the department. 

 Serve as the point-of-contact for the Route 309 construction project.  Gather updates through 
meetings with Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, construction contractors, Lehigh and 
Northampton Transit Authority (LANTA) and disseminate the information through LCCC’s Public 
Information Officer. 

 Public Safety and Security participates in many campus committees, including:  Emergency Response 
Committee (Chair).  The committee developed campus-wide evacuation Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) and is currently improving registration for E2Campus Alerts; Critical Incident 
Management Team (Chair) Continuity of Operations Plans (COOP) in development 2012-2013; 
Environmental Health and Safety Committee; Parkland School District Emergency Management 
Committee; LVAIC:  Campus Police Chiefs and Public Safety Directors from area colleges and 
universities meet to discuss safety, training, equipment purchases, best practices, etc. 

 Community Out-Reach – Since August 2012 
o Assisted with developing surveys designed to solicit feedback from College employees.  A future 

survey will include students. 
o Meet regularly with Lehigh Career and Technical Institute, located in close proximity to the 

College, and Kids Peace, a 96-bed psychiatric hospital located in Schnecksville and dedicated to 
serving the behavioral and mental health needs of children and young adults. 

o Process of organizing a Town Hall Meeting with neighboring residents and businesses. 
o LCCC Early Learning Center Parents’ Meeting - discussed emergency plans and security. 
o Utilized LCCC radio station to discuss Public Safety, E2Campus Alerting, etc. 
o Serving as LCCC’s Point-of-Contact to keep the students, staff, employees and other impacted 

agencies up dated with the Route 309 construction project. 
o Met and continue to expand meetings with emergency services (Tamaqua, Nesquehoning, 

Schnecksville, Allentown, local and County and State Emergency Management, etc.).  Same for 
private sector. 

Strengthening the Link between Values, Goals and Allocation of Resources 

The 2007 LCCC Self Study recommended:  Strengthen the link between LCCC’s Values and Goals and the 
Executive Team’s allocation of resources, to include regular communication regarding institutional priorities 
and rationale (Strengthening the Link between Values, Goals and Allocation of Resources).  To assure clear 
communication, the President hosts Town Hall meetings for the College community twice a year providing 
project updates and discussing key strategic directions, including institutional priorities and rationale.  The 
College Voice functions as a key repository for institutional communication.  Board, Cabinet, Committee, 
Council, and Leadership Team minutes are posted to the College’s intranet.  

The three-year Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle was streamlined and more closely aligned in 2008 
and 2009.  Reviews of the cycle occur annually.  As part of the alignment, a series of budget hearings are held 
each spring for academic and administrative departments requesting additional funds.  Linkage with the 
Mission, Vision, Value Statement, and Strategic Plan Goals is a key component of the hearing process.  
Departments requesting budget hearings are notified of the disposition of their proposal by the Assistant 
Controller – Accounting. 
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Several Board resolutions set aside funds for Leadership Team projects to accomplish strategic plan goals.  The 
Leadership Team identifies and recommends projects and associated budgets in March of each year.  The 
recommendations are presented to the President’s Cabinet and,  after receiving preliminary approval, the 
proposal is posted for a period of comment and review.  Comments are considered in proffering final 
disposition (yea or nay) for the proposal.  A similar process is in place for the Banner Project Proposal and 
Technology Request Proposal. 

The Entrepreneurial Project Grant (EPG) encourages faculty and staff innovation to enhance the lives of our 
students and College community and improve educational delivery.  The EPG proposal requires linkage to the 
strategic plan as a criterion. Special consideration is given to creative ideas that transform curriculum, College 
operations, student life, partnerships, and/or support services.  Up to $35,000 is made available each year to 
support these maximum $4,000 grants.   

 

Assessment Process Streamlined/Support Collegewide Assessment Activities and Assessment of Student 
Learning 

At the Middle States Evaluation Team's suggestion, the assessment cycle was streamlined. (Competency 
Compendium, pp. 111-116)  The 2007 LCCC Self Study recommended:  Provide additional support for 
collegewide assessment activities and training activities as demand for expertise increases to improve 
student success and provide additional resources to support the assessment of student learning.   

Additional support.  At the completion of the Title III grant in 2009, the College institutionalized two 
assessment support positions, Associate Dean of Planning and Assessment and the Administrative Services 
Secretary. The role of the Associate Dean of Professional Accreditation and Curriculum was also revised with 
new duties and responsibilities.  Each fall and spring, the Associate Deans offer their assistance to 
Coordinators (Academic) and Directors (Administrative) as requested.   

Training activities and support of assessment of student learning.  The Associate Deans are available and 
attend Division meetings during spring and fall Convocations and as requested.  For the last four years, LCCC 
has participated in the Eastern PA Regional Two-Year College Assessment Consortium,3 comprised of eleven 
Pennsylvania two-year private and public colleges.  The Consortium hosts an annual Assessment Summit 
which is attended by over 100 faculty and staff from member organizations.  Additionally, through a 
Leadership Team initiative, Quality Matters, was purchased and faculty trained to improve student success 
(retention and A, B, C, Pass completion) in Distance Education classes.  The program supports alignment of 
course objectives, materials, assessment and measurement, in addition to learner support, appropriate 
technology, and accessibility.4  Initial trainings occurred in spring 2012, with pilots in fall and spring 2012-13.  
The initiative received wide acceptance by faculty for not only Distance Education but face-to-face classes as 
well.  Staff in the Faculty Instructional Technology and Teaching Learning Center completed Quality Matters 
training to facilitate integration.   

 

General Education 

The 2007 LCCC Self Study recommended:  (1) Ensure the general education policy and student learning 
competencies are aligned, clearly stated and published with the College Mission and educational philosophy 

                                                           
3
 Member institutions of the consortium: Bucks County Community College, Community College of Philadelphia, Delaware County Community College, Harrisburg 

Area Community College, Harcum College, LCCC, Luzerne County Community College, Manor College, Montgomery County Community College, Northampton 
Community College,  and Reading Area Community College.   
4
 Quality Matters Rubric http://www.qmprogram.org/rubric  
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and (2) Consider and further discuss the General Education Task Force’s recommendations regarding the 
general education core, course sequences as program requirements, the possible merits of co- and pre-
requisites, and integrated assessment of general education and the student learning competencies.  The 
2008 Middle States Evaluation Team supported the recommendation stating:  The documents, Institutional 
Assessment Plan Results 2005-2006, dated July 31, 2006, and Institutional Assessment Plan Results 2006-
2007, dated July 2007, provide some examples where general education outcomes were assessed.  
However, other programs listed in the documents clearly demonstrate that assessment plans did not 
systematically assess general education outcomes.  It is recommended that assessment of general 
education outcomes, as found in the Collegewide Student Learning Competencies, be more systematically 
incorporated into the existing assessment framework. 
 

General Education Requirements Published 

The General Education Philosophy and Degree, Certificate, and Specialized Credit Diploma, [including General 
Education] Requirements; Vision, Mission, Value Statement, Goals, and Collegewide Student Learning 
Competencies are published in the College catalog.  

 

General Education Policy/Student Learning Competency Alignment 

Alignment of student competency and general education was further ensured, as the institution: 

 Developed and published the General Education Philosophy.  

 Completed curriculum grids prior to passing any program/course through Curriculum committee 
indicating learning competencies addressed (Curriculum Committee).  For example MAT 160 – College 
Algebra:  Emphasizes such topics as exponents and radicals, factoring, complex numbers, rational 
expressions, functions and their graphs, shifting and reflecting graphs, inverse functions, solving 
equations and inequalities both algebraically and graphically, linear regression, polynomial and rational 
functions, systems of equations, and sequences.  A graphing calculator is required (Table 2.2). 

 

Table 2.2 MAT 160 – College Algebra Collegewide Student Learning Competency Grid 

Collegewide Student Learning Competencies 
Check if addressed 

by this course 
Describe tools used for 

measurement 

 1. Think critically  X Tests, quizzes 

 2. Communicate effectively X Tests, quizzes 

 3. Apply quantitative reasoning X Tests, quizzes 

 4. Participate cooperatively within a team   

 5. Use current technology effectively X Tests, quizzes 

 6. Apply information literacy skills   

 7. Analyze human diversity   

 8. Apply scientific reasoning   

 9. Evaluate ethical aspects of decision making   
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 Reviewed academic program assessments by Assessment Council and general education assessment 
through data/evidence gathered in the coordinator's review of their program.  

 Expanded the five-year Academic Program Review to include the section:  General Education 
Effectiveness/Competencies/Educational Effectiveness. 

 Further evaluated the integration of competencies through the General Education courses, some with 
a heavier focus on particular competencies.  Using the Collegewide Student Learning Competency grid 
found in master course outlines, General Education courses and the competencies they met were 
mapped and presented during the November 2011 Assessment Council meeting, General Education 
Course Outline Review for Student Learning Competency Grid Status and Student Learning 
Competencies which Reside within the Course.  The report was further discussed in the Coordinators’ 
meetings, the Academic Standards Mathematics and Science Sub-Committee, and Curriculum 
Committee.  Inter-disciplinary conversations were encouraged as curriculum revisions occurred to 
assure curricular changes still met the expectations of the discipline.  For example:  MAT120 – Survey 
of Mathematics5 met five of the College’s nine Collegewide Student Learning Competencies (2009):  
critical thinking, communicate effectively, apply quantitative reasoning, use current technology 
effectively, and apply scientific reasoning.  The 2012 revision deleted scientific reasoning after review 
and determination the exposure to scientific reasoning within the course was anecdotal. 

 Revised the course grid form to include a Collegewide Student Learning Competency column reflecting 
the use of general education or program specific requirements to meet Collegewide competencies 
within individual programs used by coordinators in fall 2012.    

 Under review by the various College committees dedicated to developing appropriate policy and 
procedure: 

o Divisions to determine specific assessment tools/methods to collate and report data for 
Collegewide competencies for all degree programs.  

o Academic Standards sub-committees to ascertain whether or not science/math and 
humanities/social science courses are needed in specific programs to meet student competency 

 

Commission Actions:  No action was required at time of Commission visit. 

 

CHAPTER 3.  NARRATIVE IDENTIFYING MAJOR CHALLENGES AND/OR OPPORTUNITIES 

 

Overview 

Since the 2008 Middle States site visit, Lehigh Carbon Community College has critically evaluated the 
challenges of financial conditions and enrollment management in  

(1) light of local job demands and  

(2) consideration of recruitment strategies, student support services, community accountability, and 
quality.   

The development and implementation of the Integrated Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle; 
reorganization of governance structures and improved communication; and informed planning:  Strategic 

                                                           
5
 MAT120 – Survey of Mathematics5  described as, introducing topics which expose the student to a variety of discrete mathematical tools. Developing critical-

thinking and problem-solving skills are unifying goals in this course. Topics to be discussed include problem-solving strategies, introduction to set theory, and an 
introduction to counting, probability and statistics. A scientific calculator is required for this course (Course outline – MAT120), 
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Plan, Academic Plan, Information Technology Plan, and Enrollment Management Plan (student development, 
admissions) are viewed as opportunities to further strengthen the organization. 

The challenges and opportunities that follow are by no means exhaustive but are those most relevant to this 
report and reflective of the many activities the Institution undertakes on a daily basis. 

Financial Condition Challenge. The College community is keenly aware of the challenges faced by the federal 
economy and its impact upon state and local institutions.  Increases in School District funding are limited to 
the rate by which the school districts are allowed to increase taxes under state law.  Despite a Pennsylvania 
2008 amendment to community college funding provisions which contained a hold harmless provision that no 
funding would be less than the previous funding year, the College experienced two consecutive years of 
budget reductions (2009-2010, 2010-2011).  Subsequently funding has not been increased and remained level 
for 2011-2012 and 2012-2013.   Addressing these economic challenges requires the College to (1) review local 
job demands and creatively develop programs to meet community needs, (2) develop new recruitment 
strategies, and provide services to support the student holistically.   Recognizing the need accountability to 
the community, to wisely use available resources, and to provide the best programs and services to students, 
the College will continue to engage in a strong planning and assessment model which provides the Foundation 
to promote continued organizational growth. (Standards 2, 3, 7). 

Enrollment Management Challenge.  ((1) (2) as above) School District high school graduates and future 12th 
grade enrollment projections indicate declining or flat enrollment possibilities at the one (2013), five (2018), 
and nine (2021) year horizons.  The number of actual graduates for periods may actually be lower as 
projections do not account for attrition rate (Fall 2012 Facts & Figures, p. 69). (Standards 2, 3, 9). 

1. Local Job Demands and Programs to Meet Community Needs - Opportunity. Three Joint Task 
Forces of the College’s Leadership Team undertook Responding to Local Job Markets: Aligning LCCC 
Programs with Labor Market Trends and Employer Needs in 2012-2013.  The project proposed the 
analysis review existing LCCC programs in light of recent trends and employment projections by 
occupation. The analysis reviewed LCCC’s competition in the education marketplace and identified 
potential opportunities for LCCC to grow or create programs to meet labor market needs. The 
analysis also identified programs whose graduates are at risk of facing highly competitive or 
shrinking job markets (Leadership Team Joint Proposal, 2012, pp. 3-4).  

Economic Modeling Specialists International (EMSI)6 presented the gap analysis to leadership, 
faculty coordinators, faculty, and other key stakeholders in February 2013 (EMSI Report LCCC 
Regional Employment Gap Analysis 1302).  As EMSI conducted the gap analysis, LCCC Workforce 
and Industry in conjunction with Career Services scheduled regionally based employer focus 
groups.  The project remains in-progress with one of the four focus groups completed and others 
scheduled for spring 2013.  

EMSI also completed Economic Contribution of Lehigh Carbon Community College:  Analysis of 
Investment Effectiveness and Economic Growth.  The study was the third completed , with prior 
studies in 2001 and 2007, and examined two primary areas:  the impact LCCC has on the growth of 
the regional economy (regional economic benefits) and the return-on-investment for students and 
taxpayers (investment analysis).  Results were received in early spring 2013.  Broader dissemination 
is planned with further discussion for use of results.  (Standards 1-7). 

                                                           
6 EMSI provides employment data and economic analysis via web tools and custom reports. 
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2. Recruitment Strategies, Holistic Student Support Services, Community Accountability, 
Stewardship, and Quality - Opportunities:   

 Enrollment Management Plan (EMP) – Opportunity.  The EMP 2010-2014 was created in 
response to several Strategic and Academic Plan goals and employed a collaborative 
development process across stakeholders.  EMP 2010-2014 is tied very directly to the 
Institution’s vision, mission and values demonstrated by the planning process utilized as well as 
the framing of goals, which position the College to focus on further development and 
strengthening of the infrastructure required for effective enrollment management.  The plan 
includes discussion and implementation of new marketing strategies, changes in admission and 
enrollment processes removing the obstacles students often face, adding and enhancing First 
Year Experience activities, offering personal finance training for students, and improving 
awareness of credit for life experience for returning adults and displaced workers.   

The Student Services Process Review was conducted as a first step in implementing the 
Enrollment Management Plan.  Seven recommendations emerged from the review and 
substantive progress was made in cross-training staff, development of the Reference 
Playbook/Frequently Asked Questions document and posting of the document to an easily 
accessible central repository, and creation of the peak period calendar, among 
others.7   Additionally, subsequent discussions played a role in the wayfinding project, a unified 
plan to improve student and visitor campus experiences, facilitating their navigation of 
buildings and classrooms (completion planned summer 2013); and the reorganization of several 
key service areas (including admissions, academic advising, placement testing, new student 
orientation) to better support student success.  The reorganization includes the de-centralized 
placement of advisors to the academic areas they support, increasing their visibility and 
accessibility to students.  As part of the planned building renovations, the campus Advising and 
Transfer Center will be created: providing advisement staff and services to assist undecided, 
general studies, and students seeking to enter a restricted program.  In addition, the Center will 
assist several student populations including: Honors Scholars, Athletes, ESL, International, 
Developmental students (99 level in English and/or Reading), students also enrolled in high 
school, and students reinstated following academic dismissal.   
 
There will be reference materials, tools, workspace, and advising staff to assist students 
planning to transfer credits earned at LCCC to another institution as the students work towards 
earning an advanced degree.  Representatives from the College's university partners will also 
have dedicated space within the Center to meet with students to assist them directly with the 
transfer process to their institutions.   

The Advising and Transfer Center will be staffed by 4 full-time advisors, 1 part-time advisor, the 
Director, support staff, and peer mentors. 

The campus Testing Center was relocated to larger quarters in fall 2012 and now provides the 
institutional capacity to offer area employers remote testing and a secure site for specialized 
employee testing.  An early demonstration of the promise and regional need of this type of site 
is reflected by the spring 2013 College contract to test over 800 incumbent workers.  (Standards 
7, 8, 9).  
 

                                                           
7
 See page 15-16 for fuller listing of the seven key Process Review recommendations.. 
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 Title III (~$2million/5 years) - Opportunity. Planning for a Title III grant began in September 
2009, at the completion of the existing Title III grant, and a committee officially convened in 
March 2010.  Over the next two years, continued assessment of institutional strengths and 
weaknesses occurred.  The 2012 submission was one of only 14 funded projects and proposed: 

The goals of this Title III project, Creating a Culture for Student Success, are to (1) 
improve student success in developmental courses, (2) increase student retention and 
completion, and (3) expand the use of data to support decision making. The single 
activity has several components: establish a comprehensive First Year Experience 
program to help students transition to college, revise the delivery of developmental 
education to improve success rates for underprepared students, create bridge programs 
to engage specific populations in progressing more quickly through their programs, and 
incorporate evidence-based teaching and learning strategies and redesigned courses 
into academic programs to better meet the needs of diverse Learners.  To support these 
components, the project will also provide faculty and staff professional development, 
expand the College’s information technology infrastructure, and install an 
administrative enterprise reporting system to transform the College into a “data-driven” 
Institution where faculty and staff have easy access to student performance data for 
making decisions on strategies to improve student outcomes. A portion of grant funds 
will be used for endowment investing.  

As of February 2013, Title III is underway and under the direction of the Vice President for 
Academic Services and Student Development.  Personnel are hired, the external evaluator 
identified, and activity directors engaged.   (Standards 1-14). 

Grants – Opportunity. Grants also play a key role in providing at-risk students and displaced 
workers with access to and support for post-secondary education for high-demand fields.  The 
grants that follow support local industry needs. 

 National Science Foundation ($600,000/5 years).  Through the PASS Program (Pathway to 
Achievement for STEM Scholars), Lehigh Carbon Community College (LCCC) provides 
structured support for a cohort of financially needy students who demonstrate academic 
potential for completing a STEM associate degree program. In addition to financial 
assistance, LCCC provides activities to encourage retention through program completion: a 
mentoring program that gives the scholarship recipients an opportunity to interact with 
professionals in STEM fields, a series of lectures and discussion panels with STEM 
professionals, workshops on academic and career topics, field trips to industries and four-
year colleges and universities, intensive faculty advising by project investigators, a newly 
formed student organization (STEM Club), and informal study groups. 

 U.S. Department of Education ($800,000/4 years).  Project Set Sail for Preparation of Early 
Childhood Education/Early Intervention Personnel – Personnel Preparation to Improve 
Services for Children with Disabilities.  Enrolls cohorts of students in an Early Childhood 
Education/Early Intervention A.A.S. degree program and provides financial assistance, a 
mentoring program, and college-funded support services to help students persist to 
completion.  

 Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College Career Training TAACCCT/ JOBTRAK PA 
($800,000/3 years).  To support displaced workers and facilitate access to credit for life 
learning, the 14 Commonwealth Community Colleges with the PA CareerLink collaboratively 
obtained $20 million in funding to “transform and accelerate the initial experience of 
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displaced workers and displaced-worker-like students and align educational programs with 
industry recognized credentials and industry needs in specific focus areas ultimately leading 
to job placement.”  Among other things, this process focuses on industry based skills, 
assessing job skills and matching the skills with college course objectives, further defining 
and enhancing models of stackable credentials to meet baseline technical and specific 
industry technical competencies  The project follows a pathway model which tracks into 
credit programs.  In addition, the placement testing process and required development 
education programming are systematically reviewed for continued relevance and reliability 
in student placement and preparation for content lever course-work.  

 

Fulbright Scholar-in-Residence – Opportunity. The joint faculty/staff committee’s grant application to the U. 
S. Department of State’s one year lecture Fulbright Scholar-in-Residence program has direct linkages to the 
Academic Plan and many of the Transformation strategies, in particular 10.03  “Internationalization of the 
curriculum (Fulbright opportunities)” and requested a scholar from Egypt or Morocco.  The proposal was 
approved in January 2012 and the scholar, Dr. Maged Botros, arrived in August 2012 from Egypt.  The scholar’s 
January 2013 presentation to the Personnel and Curriculum Committee of the College’s Board of Trustees 
demonstrated the impression this residence had on the Institution.  In addition to curriculum development 
(The Modern Middle East), classroom teaching and classroom visits across eight disciplines, and participation 
in two honors scholars’ graduation projects, there were multiple conferences and public lectures, including 
Lehigh University, Muhlenberg College, Moravian College, Allentown School District, and Community groups. 
In fall 2012, ~ 30 students and faculty accompanied the scholar on a co-curricular bus trip 
to Philadelphia where the group visited Independence Hall and the Constitution Center.  At LCCC, an Egyptian 
Film Festival was held, debates on Human Rights of Women conducted, and a faculty learning community read 
and discussed Politics of the Middle East. Further, the College’s Honors’ Scholars program will conduct a 
learning community in spring 2014 followed by a study abroad trip to Egypt.  The scholar presented the results 
of his work to the Board of Trustees and the Leadership Team in early spring 2013. On April 17, 2013, Dr. 
Botros presented “The Political Scene in Egypt” to students, faculty, staff, and the community.   (Standards 2, 
3, 4, 7, 8, 10, 11, 13). 

 

Bachelor of Applied Science Degree(BAS) – Opportunity.  Industry is placing increased emphasis on 
attainment of a post-secondary credential.  While the Associate in Arts (A.A.) and Associate in Science (A.S.) 
have several seamless pathways to a four-year college or university, no such path existed for students 
completing the Associate in Applied Science (A.A.S.), a degree traditionally thought to prepare students to 
enter the workforce immediately upon graduation.  Lehigh Carbon Community College spearheaded the 
Baccalaureate initiative, identified partnerships with Lehigh Career and Technical Institute (LCTI) and 
Bloomsburg University (BU).   The first of its kind in the PASSHE system and the second in the Commonwealth, 
Bloomsburg University of Pennsylvania’s (BU) new Bachelor of Applied Science in Technical Leadership degree 
resulted from the partnership and offers students the opportunity to complete the BAS degree on LCCC 
campuses and provides the knowledge and skills needed by technical professionals for leadership roles and 
career advancement.  

Providing a seamless pathway to a bachelor’s degree, the Technical Leadership program is designed in a 2+2+2 
format – with multiple entry points that serves students in career and technical high schools and community 
colleges, as well as working technical professionals.  (Standards 2, 3, 8, 13). 
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Quality Matters - Opportunity.  Championed by the Transforming the Learning Environment Task Force, 
Quality Matters was recommended during the Leadership Team 2010-2011 planning sessions to improve 
retention rates of distance learning students by focusing on the quality of the online product through 
establishing a voluntary peer review process for online courses.  Quality Matters (QM), a faculty-centered, 
peer review process that is designed to certify the quality of online and hybrid courses, was chosen. The LCCC 
Quality Matters peer review team was established in February 2011. LCCC faculty began QM training in fall 
2011, with eight instructors completing the two primary professional development programs by March 2012. 
Additional faculty were trained in 2012-2013 and pilot reviews conducted.  The broader implications of Quality 
Matters for improved classroom practice, syllabi development, embedded assessments is under consideration 
in spring 2013 (Standards 2, 3, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14). (Quality Matters website:  http://www.qmprogram.org). 

 
College locations - Opportunity.  Each of the College locations is unique in location and the community it 
serves.  The Donley center is positioned directly across from the largest redevelopment the city of Allentown 
has seen in the College’s history.  The erection of a hockey arena and subsequent economic development as 
old buildings are demolished and new structures erected will offer additional programming opportunities.  The 
Lehigh Valley’s largest employer, Lehigh Valley Hospital, recently signed a 20 year lease for a seven story 
building.  This presents enormous opportunity for the site.   

To strengthen the Carbon center, the College submitted the 2011-2012 Redevelopment Assistance Capital 
Program (RACP) proposal to relocate the current campus to a more central location for county residents and 
students.  The project leveraged the JobTrak PA grant, as the Carbon Center proposed to assist economic 
development in Carbon County by bringing STEM related education and workforce training to the county with 
a focus on regional High Priority Occupations. The new facility will provide a jobs-focused approach in line with 
the Governor’s plan targeting key growth sectors such as Life Sciences, High Technology and Advanced 
Manufacturing, Business and Finance, Green Energy, Energy Extraction, and Healthcare.  

A revitalized site will permit projects such as the Marcellus Shale project to tap into LCCC’s Carbon Center’s 
valuable training resources; hand picking the best candidates in the area for related jobs in Energy Extraction, 
Advanced Manufacturing and Logistics, and Information Technology.  

The Morgan center, a center funded due to the generosity of a local entrepreneur, continues to flourish due to 
his Foundation’s continual financial support.  Since 2004 and through his generosity, local high school 
graduates receive scholarships to attend LCCC.  Recent discussions with the Morgan Foundation centered on 
reducing the need for developmental courses for recent high school graduates through programming such as 
remediation in-place; that is identifying academic deficits in the sophomore or junior year and remediating the 
student while still enrolled, prior to high school graduation.  Additional conversations are on-going, as the 
Foundation considers extending its generous commitment to the region’s residents. 

 

Integrated Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment – Opportunity.  The development and implementation of an 
Integrated Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle was a significant organizational accomplishment and 
aligned activities across the Institution.  (Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle, July 1, 2013).  Requests 
for budget increases (1) are tied directly to the strategic plan, (2) contain a rationale based on assessment 
observations, and (3) are considered during the President’s Cabinet Budget Hearings portion of the budget 
building process.    

The College’s Strategic Plan, Transformation: Strategic Plan 2009-2014, served the Institution well and 
ensured the integration, coordination, and balance of resources.  During 2007-2008, internal assessments, 
external environmental scans, and MSCHE Self Study results were used as the College community concurrently 
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developed Transformation: Strategic Plan 2009-2014 and the Academic Plan establishing the goals and action 
strategies that guided the College in addressing opportunities and challenges.  The Strategic Plan identified 
three primary goals: Transforming Students’ Lives (TSL), Transforming the Learning Environment (TLE), and 
Transforming the College Organization (TCO) (Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2014).   In AY 2010-11, the 
College recognized a need to address enrollment patterns, and a fourth strategic area, Transforming 
Enrollment Related Services (TERS), was created to implement the Enrollment Management Plan 2010-2014.  

  

Leadership, Governance, and Communication – Opportunity.  The Middle States Self Study and 
Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2014 (Transformation) revealed opportunities for improved 
communication and increased transparency.  With the development and implementation of Transformation 
and the Academic Plan, and to act on these opportunities, the President reorganized the College governance 
structure; expanded the Executive Team (President, Senior Vice-President, and two Vice-Presidents) to form 
the President’s Cabinet (President, Senior Vice-President, two Vice-Presidents, three Deans, and Faculty 
governance leader); reformed the existing Leadership Team (Deans and Associate Deans) to the Leadership 
Team (Associate Deans and Directors) charged with implementation of Transformation; and sanctioned the 
Academic Council (Vice President for Academic Services and Student Development, Deans of Academic 
Services and Student Development, seven representative service and teaching faculty, and  Academic Services 
Support Administrator).  (Standards 2, 3, 4, 5).   

To further improve communication, The College Voice, a weekly electronic newsletter, was established and 
serves as a central information repository.  A portal and unified student email were deployed in 2010.  More 
recently, mobile apps were created to improve student access to the College website and other critical 
information.  A new phone system, expected to come on-line in summer 2013, is expected to improve student 
access to live respondents, reducing the need for call-backs and multiple student voice mail messages.  

Informed Planning – Opportunities.  Integrated planning and assessment is institutionalized at LCCC.  The 
Board of Trustees and Executive Team encourage bottom-up planning and routinely bring together cross-
functional teams to discuss planning initiatives, solicit insight from the College community, and develop 
forward thinking plans which engender ownership. 

 

Academic Plan. The Academic Plan was developed in response to the Middle States recommendation and 
clarified the concept of Academic Excellence as it applied to student learning, and unified committee activities 
and those of individual departments and divisions, clarified long-term academic goals and coordinated 
activities across campus.  The plan provided additional guidance in the prioritization of resources in pursuit of 
LCCC’s academic goal achievement (Academic Plan, 2008, p. 11).  

The 2012-2013 Academic Plan re-stated the  

purpose of the Academic Plan is to determine and promote a vision for academic and student 
development. . . The Academic Plan considers the mission, vision, and values of the College and sets 
short and long-term academic and student development goals. . . Academics at LCCC should inspire 
intellectual curiosity, encourage a thirst for knowledge, promote a critical awareness of self and 
society, and create lifelong learners.  The goals set in the Academic Plan outline the steps to achieve 
and maintain LCCC’s vision for academic excellence. . . The Academic Plan informs the Strategic Plan.  
(Academic Plan 2013-2016, Purpose and Basis for Current Goals, pp. 3, 4).  

Each academic year, the Academic Council develops an academic plan which guides the College towards 
maintaining and improving academic excellence.   The AY 2012-2013 draft of the Academic Plan identified 
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eight goals, all aligned with the Strategic Plan and supportive of the Enrollment Management Plan.  The goals 
maintain current policies and procedures in addition to providing guidance to further enhance academic 
excellence in areas determined as needs of the College.  (Standards 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 10). 

 

Campus Technology Plan.  Between 2005 and 2011, campus‐wide technology and information technology, in 
particular, underwent several substantive planning and assessment events, including review by The Davison 
Group, consultant/external evaluators. The need for a new cohesive plan became apparent as Technology Plan 
2006‐2011 expired and the search for an Executive Director of Information Technology ensued.  In 2011-2012, 
the Campus Technology Planning Ad Hoc Committee was formed and charged by the President to develop a 
plan using the prior activities as foundational. The eleven member cross-functional team had representation 
from faculty and each of the key areas identified above (five teaching faculty, one service faculty, and five 
administrators). The document was also tempered by a review of and alignment with the College’s Strategic 
Plan, consideration of environmental trends, comparisons to published higher education technology plans, 
and stakeholder discussions (Institutional Advancement, Distance Education, Library, Information, and 
Instructional Resources). The 2012‐2015 Campus Technology plan sets the strategic direction for campus 
technology with relevance for each of the stakeholder groups. The formal draft was presented to the 
President’s Cabinet, Academic Council, and Leadership Team during the May 2012 Report to Consultants and 
subsequently approved by the President’s Cabinet.  (Standards 2-7, 10, 13). 

 

Enrollment Management Plan.  Addressed earlier in this chapter. 

 

Strategic Plan.  Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2014 is a working document, a document which is 
frequently referred to, and broadly used across the College.  The Transformation 09-12 Summary capsulizes 
activities-to-date related to the current plan.  Substantive work was accomplished by the Task Forces as they 
choose two or three key projects each year.8 By way of professional development, the Leadership Team 
shared common readings of Covey’s Speed of Trust, Giltner’s At Your Service (Customer Service at a 
community college), Kotter’s Leading Change:  Why Transformation Efforts Fail, and O’Banion’s Pathways to 
Completion.  Full and half-day retreats, project presentations, and panels (student, employer) expanded an 
understanding of the internal and external environments in which the College operates.    

Planning for the next strategic plan, Many Voices, One Vision:  LCCC 2014-2017, commenced in fall 2012 and 
builds upon the existing plan, assessments such as this Periodic Review Report, solicitation of Institution-wide 
review and commentary.  Other integrated planning efforts such as:  the Academic, Enrollment Management, 
and Technology Plans will further inform the plan.   Seven established cross-functional working groups (Board 
of Trustees, President’s Cabinet, Leadership Team (4 Task Forces), Academic Council) and the Community of 
Vision, a body of respondents to the President’s call for volunteers, comprise the primary writers of the 
document.  Led by The Davison Group, forums, interviews, an Institution-wide survey and blog, and broad 
communication using the intranet website and the College Voice assured opportunities for all interested 
parties within the College community to contribute to this three-year rolling plan.  The final plan is expected in 
fall 2013.   (Standards 2-7). 

 

                                                           
8
 Select Leadership Team accomplishments are listed in Chapter 6. 
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Planning Assessment.  A Report to Consultants is scheduled annually and each of the planning groups 
(strategic, including enrollment; academic, and campus technology) present their activities for the year just 
ending and plans for the upcoming year.  In their May 2012 comments, the consultants remarked favorably on 
the level of student participation in planning efforts, recommended methods for consolidating success for the 
next generation of planners, and reported: 

the strategic planning process at LCCC remains vigorous, is working well, and has been highly 
successful. . . One of the vital standards running through all levels and stages of both planning and 
implementation has been the necessity for continuous communication.  Some of the most compelling 
evidence for unbroken attention to this high standard was conveyed through the level of engagement 
we saw on the faces of those in attendance, their expressive confidence, and their unspoken 
acknowledgment of shared experiences and ideas.  Since the project began, participants have received 
a wide-ranging, constant stream of reports, briefings, calls for responses and edits, interim summaries, 
meeting notes, research materials, data sets and queries.  The demand for accountability and study 
generated by this volume of campus-wide intelligence has no doubt been highly challenging for all. But 
the quality and focus of the materials bespeak an authentic respect for the value of continuous 
improvement established in the early days of the process: the form and the content have both 
improved over time.  Unquestionably, the LCCC community has established a higher mark of 
performance across the board as a consequence of doing all this hard work together.  It was also 
evident to us that there has been an overarching growth of trust among the players, trust in each other 
and their talents, trust in the methods, and trust in the search for better approaches and best ideas. 
This is an ideal foundation for the next “Great Cycle” of strategic planning  (Standards 7, 14). 

Additional Institutional activities and projects are detailed in alignment with LCCC’s vision, mission, and value 
statement.   (Addendum Chapter 3). 

 

 

CHAPTER 4.  ENROLLMENT AND FINANCE TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS 

 

Overview of Enrollment in Reviewing Enrollment and Finance Trends and Projections 

In approaching the task of developing fall 2013-fall 2017 enrollment projections for institutional planning and 
budgeting, data was reviewed from the Lehigh Valley Planning Commission; Schuylkill County Planning 
Commission; Carbon County Economic Development Corporation; Lehigh Valley Workforce Investment Board, 
Inc.; Lehigh Career and Technical Institute; LCCC Fact Book; Pennsylvania Department of Education, and the 
U.S. Department of Education.  From this review, the following observations, conclusions, and projections are 
offered. 

There appears to be little indication of significant projected change for the region from economic and 
employment perspectives within the time period under consideration.  There also does not appear to be any 
current indicators within the community or from within the College, that the adult student population will 
increase within this time frame.  As the economy continues its recovery, employment will increase.  The 
College made significant efforts to capture those who are currently unemployed and likely to seek further 
education.   

The 2012-2013 EMSI Gap Analysis was undertaken to evaluate LCCC programs, regional workforce needs, 
curricular gaps (where we need programs), and declining workforce requirements (possible program sunset).  
With results presented in February 2013, the study will provide a springboard for program development and 
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support enrollment of unemployed and underemployed residents.  As the College community considers the 
Gap Analysis, the deliberations will include the program and student resources required to support student 
success through curricular revisions, increased flexibility with course scheduling (i.e. evening, weekend, 
accelerated, etc.), faculty availability beyond the classroom, enhanced access and ease to completing course 
registration (including placement testing as needed), enhanced access to career and academic advising, 
greater opportunity to engage staff as needed for other enrollment related tasks (financial aid, tuition 
payment, disabilities support, etc.), and additional complementary academic and student development 
support services that are designed more specifically for working adults.  As a result of the Presidential focus on 
increased graduation among adults without college degrees, the GAP Analysis data, and institutional activities 
geared to returning adults, the College set a 17 percent graduation goal increase for this audience (2017).  
Initiatives currently underway to advance goal attainment include:  investment in the enhanced Student 
Development Center, scheduled for 2014 completion; new adult and veteran programming and through 
Perkins Career and Technical Education grant, creation and staffing of the new Veterans/Returning Adults 
Specialist position; and LCCC participation with the Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges to 
develop consistent prior learning assessment, encouraging adults to return to college with credit attained for 
prior work experience.  

Across the tri-county region, the number of high school graduates is projected to decrease, making a smaller 
population from which the College can actively recruit new students.   The Pennsylvania Department of 
Education warns that projections may be lower than proposed due to attrition rates.  Since recent high school 
graduates who enroll in college are more apt to enroll full-time, it is anticipated that new full-time student 
enrollment at the College may be impacted by these changes.  (Fall 2012 Facts & Figures, p. 69)  

It is important to note that numerous operational and student service enhancements are currently underway 
to increase recruitment, retention, enhance student success, persistence, and degree completion.   

 Enhanced recruitment strategies.  A newly unified effort is being led by Admissions and Institutional 
Advancement to bring multiple LCCC departments into key roles for enhancing recruitment strategies, 
such as:  targeted outreach to adult and non-traditional students. 

 Partnerships with the school districts.  Through projects and partnerships such as the  Allentown 
School District’s Career Force – High School Graduation Initiative (HSGI) Lehigh Carbon Community 
College helps over 250 district students plan for their long-terms goals to enter the workforce, seek job 
training, and/or plan  to attend college. The project provides many opportunities, motivators, and 
options for students to stay in school and move on to the next step in their career and educational 
plan; while also assessing students’ needs and addressing potential roadblocks through individual 
advising, small group interaction, and workshops.  

 Title III.  Discussed earlier in the PRR, the five-year Title III grant (2012) directly focused on increasing 
comprehensive support programs and services to attract students and increase their rate of 
completion.   

 Decentralized academic advising model.  The Office of Student Development is partially decentralizing 
the academic advising model, assigning advisors to a group of degree and certificate programs and co-
locating the advisors with faculty teaching in those programs. 

 Student e-portfolio pilot.  In spring 2013, the Career Services Office of the college conducted an e-
portfolio program with the National Science Foundation Scholarships in Science, Technology, 
Engineering, and Mathematics (NSF S-STEM) scholars. The program intentionally focused on reflective 
process as much as product.  If successful, a carefully phased program of broader student use is 
planned. 
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 First Year Experience.  Progress was achieved with LCCC’s summer orientation program and a 
comprehensive First Year Experience (FYE) program which will have a college success seminar is in the 
developmental stages.   Orientation and FYE will be advanced in alignment with Title III initiatives 

 Financial Literacy Program. The financial literacy program will begin fall 2013.  Improved student 
understanding and application of responsible financial practices will aid their persistence through 
college and support successful financial planning thereafter.     

These initiatives are still in foundational stages of development.  Based on the data review and additional 
components, fall 2013-fall 2017 enrollment projections were developed to assist institutional planning and 
budgeting efforts. 

 

Finance (Operational and Capital Accounts) 

What is the institution’s overall financial condition (MSCHE, 2011, p. 19)? 

Financial indicators or ratios (such as KPMG or Moody’s) (Table 4.1). 

Through fiscally conservative management, the College weathered the tight economic circumstances of the 
last several years, enduring periods of flat enrollment and State funding cuts (10 percent, then level funding in 
subsequent years), through reduction of non-salaried expenditures, operational efficiencies, and technology 
investment without cutting any vital student development services.  The College continues to act as a 
responsible community steward as the Commonwealth discusses two percent increases for 2014-15 and 2015-
16 using a different funding model.  The Institution’s financial condition continues to improve with a growth in 
net assets and improvement to the bottom line.  Evidence of this is reflected in the attached audits and 
Financial Indicators (Table 4.1, Table 4.3).   

 

In what aspects did the institution’s financial condition improve, worsen, or remain unchanged over the past 
five years (MSCHE, 2011, p. 19)? 

Over the past five years, the financial condition of Lehigh Carbon Community College improved.  Total 
Net Assets of the College from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2012 increased from $16,342,217 to 
$47,084,284.  Unrestricted Net Assets increased from $5,567,586 to $17,460,017 over the same time 
period.  However, in FY 2011-2012 State operating funding decreased $1,362,932 and the funding 
remained at the reduced amount for 2012-2013.  Local Sponsor funding for the fiscal years 2011-2012 
and 2012-2013 was increased 1%, down from 3% increases in the prior years.   

College credit enrollment has declined the past two years from a College record credit enrollment in FY 
2009-2010.  Total unduplicated headcount enrollment has declined 9.0 % from FY 2009-2010 (12,154) 
to the FY 2011-2012 (11, 058), while student credit hours (153,889 (FY 2009-2010) – 133,974 (FY 2011-
2012)) decreased 12.9% over the same period.  (Table 4.2). 

There are two projects underway that will have a profound impact in the Finance area.  Working with 
the Auditors, the Finance Department submitted a Banner Project Proposal to revise the existing Chart 
of Accounts.  This project requested support in delivering a new Chart of Accounts (COA) structure to 
improve the financial information required to make sound financial and business decisions, and to 
facilitate compliance with internal policies and external regulation.  The new COA structure will serve 
as the foundation by updating an antiquated numbering system in a dynamic Enterprise System that 
can be built on, expanded, and last for some time.  The project will require analysis, evaluation, and 
development of the use of the COA structure along with consideration of the integration and impact on 
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other Banner Modules.  The priority project is about 55 percent complete as of February 2013.  The 
Enterprise Reporting System, a tool to improve data accessibility, entered Phase II with Title III 
funding.  These two projects will improve the flow of information; provide access to additional detail 
and real-time information; and support priority reporting and forecasting tools in making timely 
adjustments for costs and location cost centers, cost controls, and unpredicted expenses and revenues. 

Table 4.1 Select Financial Indicators 

 FY 2011-2012 FY 2002-2003 

Working Capital = Current Assets – Current Liabilities (higher values indicate stronger 
financial position) 

$14.650M ($800.6K) 

Current Ratio (higher values indicate stronger financial position) Ratio to 1 3.06 0.84 

Cash to Current Assets (higher values indicate stronger financial position) Percentage 87.637% 42.65% 

Net Assets to Total Assets (higher values indicate stronger financial position) Percentage 61.26% 35.49% 

Net Income Ratio = Increase in Net Assets Compared to Total Revenues 7.98% (.76%) 

Interest Coverage (how many times a college can cover its annual interest obligation) 

Ratio to 1 
4.76 (0.56) 

 

 

Table 4.2 College Enrollment Comparison FY 2009-2010 (Peak) to FY 2011-2012  

Unduplicated Headcount 2009-2010 2011-2012 % Change 

Total 12,154 11,058 (9.0%) 

Student Credit Hours 2009-2010 2011-2012 % Change 

Total 153,889 133,974.0 (12.9%) 

 

Does the institution have the financial flexibility to weather unexpected changes in its environment 
(enrollment declines, stock market declines, etc.?) (MSCHE, 2011, p. 19)? 

The College maintained a balanced budget in FY 2011-2012 even with the reduction in State funding 
and the enrollment decline.  Operating costs were reduced with a focus on retaining  budget line 
expenses that would affect academic excellence.  Faculty and administrative salaries were frozen in 
fiscal year 2011-2012 and support staff increases were at the contracted increase of 2.5%.   The 
Operating Budget for 2012-2103 is balanced.  The Operating Reserve is fully funded at 5%, as allowed 
by agreement with the sponsoring school districts.  Additional reserve provisions were made for 
increases in health care costs and unemployment. 

34



 
 

Table 4.3 Operating Revenue & Expense Projections  

      12/6/2012 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

2012-2013   2013-2014   2014-2015 

 

  2015-2016 

 

 

Budget   
Proposed  

Budget   Projected     Projected 

 Revenues 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  
Student Tuition & Fees - Credit $    15,836,837 

 
$    16,267,497 

 
$    16,958,900 $3 incr. / 1% Growth 

 
$    17,679,700 

$3 incr. / 1% 
Growth 

Student Tuition & Fees - Non Credit 1,777,500 
 

1,777,500 
 

1,795,300 1% increase 
 

1,813,300 1% increase 

Sponsor Appropriation 4,058,505 
 

4,099,090 
 

4,140,100 1% increase 
 

4,181,500 1% increase 

State Appropriation 12,266,383 
 

12,266,383 
 

12,266,400 0% increase 
 

12,266,400 0% increase 

Miscellaneous Income 1,373,100 
 

1,365,100 
 

1,392,400 2% increase 
 

1,420,200 2% increase 

Total Revenues 35,312,325 
 

35,775,570 
 

36,553,100 
  

37,361,100 
 

          
Full Time Faculty Salaries 5,755,538 

 
5,885,039 

 
6,032,200 2.5% 

 
6,183,000 2.5% 

Full Time Administrative 5,018,545 
 

5,131,462 
 

5,234,100 2.0% 
 

5,338,800 2.0% 

Full Time Support Salaries 2,554,685 
 

2,618,552 
 

2,684,000 2.5% 
 

2,751,100 2.5% 

Part Time Faculty Salaries - Credit 3,932,960 
 

3,952,960 
 

4,032,000 2.0% 
 

4,112,600 2.0% 

Part Time Faculty Salaries - Non Credit 504,166 
 

514,250 
 

524,500 2.0% 
 

535,000 2.0% 

Part Time Salaries - (non faculty) 1,716,207 
 

1,768,920 
 

1,804,300 2.0% 
 

1,840,400 2.0% 
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Fringe Benefits 7,032,389 
 

7,362,995 
 

7,657,500 4.0% (H-Care at 7%) 
 

7,963,800 
4.0% (H-Care 

at 7%) 

Operating Costs 6,767,682 
 

6,560,730 
 

6,757,600 3.0% 
 

6,960,300 3.0% 

Utilities 1,286,802 
 

1,308,790 
 

1,335,000 2.0% 
 

1,361,700 2.0% 

Capital & Deferred Maintenance 743,351 
 

930,572 
 

491,900 
  

314,400 
 

Fringe Benefit Funding from 2012-13 
  

(258,700) 
      

Total Expenditures        35,312,325           35,775,570           36,553,100  

 

         37,361,100  

 

  

  

 

  

  

  

  Net Increase (Decrease)  $                   -       $                   -       $                   -    

 

   $                   -    
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Audited financial statement and management letters for previous three years (2010-2012).  

Addendum:  Financial Statements June 30, 2010 and 2009, Financial Statements June 30, 2011 
and 2010, Financial Statements June 30, 2012 and 2011  

Do the notes to the audited financial statements identify anything unusual or of 
concern?  Consider especially any notes that reference commitments or contingencies 
(MSCHE, 2011, p. 19). 

The fiscal year 2011-2012 audit did not identify any unusual occurrences or any 
concerns for the College.  The only contingency issue was related to federal and state 
grants.  The footnote stated that the College could potentially be liable for any 
disallowed costs that occurred under these grants.  

 

Do management letters identify any issues regarding internal financial operations or 
procedures (MSCHE, 2011, p. 19)? 

The independent auditors issued an unqualified opinion for the 2011-2012 financial 
audit.  The Audit Management Letter identified one recommendation regarding the 
fiscal year closing process.  The recommendation states the College should identify why 
delays occurred in certain closing processes and make the necessary adjustments for the 
2012-13 closing.  The College reviewed the issues and made the necessary adjustments.  
The Finance Office ensured reconciliations are timely and accurate through scheduled 
monthly review. 

 

Financial information submitted to IPEDS for three previous years (2010-2012).  (IPEDS 2010, 
2011, 2012) 

 

Enrollment 

Lehigh Carbon Community College’s enrollment peaked in 2009-2010.  Current year and three 
previous year enrollment figures for unduplicated headcount, total credits, and AFTE follow 
(Table 4.4). 

 

Projected enrollment for three future years (2014-2017).  While the high school graduation 
numbers are projected to decline in the coming years, a 1% increase in enrollment can be 
sustained due to retention efforts, some of which are made possible by the five-year Title III 
grant, and initiatives, such as the National Science Foundation S-STEM and Computer Game and 
Simulation projects, and new program development.  Also, a change in the Admissions 
Department leadership led to the development of a more intentional high school recruitment 
effort with an increased high school presence, as well as, a more focused recruitment effort of 
adult students and returning veterans (Figure 4.1).  A 1% increase in enrollment is projected for 
future years.   
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Table 4.4 Actual Enrollment Current Year2 and the Three Previous Years (2010-2013) 1.   

Fiscal Year 
Unduplicated 

Headcount 
Total Credits AFTE 

2008-20091 11,697 138,295 5,762 

2009-20101 12,154 (+3.90%) 153,889 6,412 

2010-20111 11,677 (-4.08%) 147,514 6,146 

2011-20121 11,058 (-5.30%) 133,974 5,582 

2012-20132  10,8262 (-2.09%) 131,1742 5,4662 

1Source:  Fall 2012 Facts and Figures (p. 7); Office of Institutional Research 
2Source:  Institutional Research estimated Summer enrollment, February 12, 2013 
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Figure 4.1 Fall Term Headcounts 2000-2012 and 
Projections to 2016 

Recession Total Non Degree Degree Projection
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Assumptions Demonstrating Plausibility. 

Do the assumptions for enrollment and finance projections appear to be realistic 
(MSCHE, 2011, p. 19)? 

The College used conservative assumptions in the budget and enrollment projections.  
The 1% increase in enrollment for future years is conservative as are the State and local 
funding projections based on recent history.  Salaries are based on contracted increases 
for support staff and faculty.  Administrative increases are held to a 2% annual increase. 

 

What has been the change in expendable net assets or adjusted equity (MSCHE, 2011, 
p. 19)? 

The condensed statement of net assets without component units, Foundation, reflects 
the change in expendable net assets (Table 4.5).  Additional information can be found in 
the Addendum:  Financial Statements June 30, 2010 and 2009, Financial Statements 
June 30, 2011 and 2010, Financial Statements June 30, 2012 and 2011 

 

Table 4.5 Condensed Statement of Net Assets (without component units – Foundation) 

Fiscal Years 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2002-03 

Total Assets $76.85M $75.18M $73.04M $55.74M $52.12M $24.12M 

 

What conclusions can be drawn from the analysis of the institution’s long-term debt, 
and what impact will this have on the institution’s financial condition (MSCHE, 2011, p. 
19)? 

As a community college in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, funding for state 
approved debt service projects is to be funded 50% by the Commonwealth and 50% by 
the local sponsor.  For FY 2012-2013 the total budgeted debt service for the College is 
$3,736,250.  Of this amount, $1,790,381 was funded by the state and $1,455,510 by the 
local sponsor.  The remainder was funded by the College’s capital budget and has little 
impact on the College financial condition.   

The Institution continues to pursue alternative funding sources with the aid of the 
Foundation and credit-non-credit partnerships, which include LCCC Workforce Training 
staff partnering with Technology faculty and program modularization; the enhanced 
Testing Center, available as a secure testing site for employment testing; and 
partnerships such as those with Lehigh Career and Technical Institute and Carbon Career 
and Technical Institute, working together in the service areas to meet workforce needs.  
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Related Entity 

Has an institution with a related entity followed the reporting guidelines in the 
Commission’s policy, “Related Entities” (MSCHE, 2011, p. 19)? 

The Institution does not have related entities. 

 

 

CHAPTER 5.  ORGANIZED AND SUSTAINED PROCESS TO ASSESS STUDENT LEARNING AND 
INSTITUTIONAL EFFECTIVENESS 

 

Overview and Analysis of the Institution’s Assessment Processes 

The Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Process discussed in the Middle States Self-Study 
(November 2007) was streamlined in 2008 to better align the College’s schedule with that of 
the sponsoring school districts and to simplify the process as suggested by the Middle States 
Evaluation Team).  Mid-year assessment reporting and budget review was revised from 
submission of written progress reports to an informal progress review between the 
division/department and the supervisor in early spring, with year-end reporting due April 15.  
These changes were intended to lessen the workload on divisions while maintaining focus on 
assessment and to relieve those divisions doing broader assessment through Academic 
Program Reviews (Audits) of the additional assessment burdens. Non-academic assessment is 
also managed with tools such as the College Services Survey, departmental metrics, and 
assessment projects to assess institutional effectiveness at the departmental level.  
(Competency Compendium, pp. 111-116). 

Times for Planning, Budgeting and Assessment are identified in the 2012-2013 Important Dates 
calendar: 

1. August 13-17, 2012 – Review of current year plans and budgets 
2. January 7-11, 2013 – Mid-year review of current budgeting and assessment activity 

(in place of all faculty meeting) 
3. March 18-22, 2013 — Reminder for Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment (2012-

2013 year-end reviews/reports and 2014-2015 requests/reports) Due April 15. 
4. April 15, 2013 – Planning, Budgeting, Assessment due (2012-2013 year-end 

reviews/reports and 2014-2015 requests/reports) (2012-2013 Important Dates).  

 The culture of assessment demonstrated in the 2007 Self-Study continues as academic and 
administrative units report progress on annual assessments and the Institution, as a whole, 
reviews assessment of strategic plan progress.  The assessment reports and strategic plan detail 
report are published internally on the College’s intranet and available to the College community   
Academic assessment results are used to inform quinquennial Academic Program Audit, a 
component of the overall integrated Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle.  Additional 
reports such as Facts and Figures, Grade Distribution, Cohort and Term-to-Term Retention and 
Graduation, Low Enrollment, Community College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE), and 
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National Community College Benchmark Project are posted on the Institutional Research 
intranet site. 

In 2002, the Assessment Council was formed with cross-functional membership.  The Council 
facilitates the assessment of both institutional effectiveness and student learning and is co-
chaired by the Associate Dean of Curriculum and Professional Accreditation and the Associate 
Dean of Planning and Assessment.  The Council’s Activities include:   

1. Lead College in developing means to assess institutional effectiveness for all College 
programs, departments, and activities. 

2. Lead College in developing means to create a feedback loop with the assessment 
information to improve teaching and learning at LCCC. 

3. Define, review, and revise the Collegewide Student Learning Competencies. 
4. Lead College in identifying and documenting in which courses the Collegewide Student 

Learning Competencies and the various Program Objectives are addressed. 
5. Lead College in developing objective measures of student achievement of Collegewide 

Student Learning Competencies, Program Objectives, and Course Objectives. 

Characteristics of Assessment Processes that Meet Middle States Expectations. In April 2009, 
the Assessment Council administered the Survey of Institutional Assessment to Academic and 
Administrative Planning Team Leaders, Coordinators and Assessment Council members. The 
survey introduction noted: “Focused Assessment Planning at LCCC is almost five years old. The 
Assessment Council will review LCCC’s campus-wide assessment with an eye to identifying what 
we are doing well and where we can improve. Your feedback will be most helpful in 
determining future discussions.” Of the 53 potential responses, 21 were returned for a 39.6% 
response rate. Responses were based on a five point Likert scale: 5 – Strongly agree, 4 – Agree, 
3 – Neither agree nor disagree, 2 – Disagree, 1 – Agree. With one exception, the category 
neither agree nor disagree was chosen as a response between 20 and 43 percent of the time. 
The exception was in response to question 11 – related to institutionally developed measures 
uniformly applied to all programs.  Majority of the participants strongly agreed or agreed that: 

 Submitted assessment plans are meaningful and related to the work of your unit. 

 Assessment results are used to make improvements in your unit. 

 There is evidence of quality improvement activities. 

 Planning and improvement processes are clearly communicated. 

 Additional Professional Development should be offered for developing and evaluating 
assessment plans and results.9 

Additional work can be done to demonstrate: 

                                                           
9 Lehigh Carbon Community College is a member of The Eastern Pennsylvania Regional Two-Year College 
Consortium and is represented by Associate Dean of Curriculum and Professional Accreditation and the Associate 
Dean of Planning and Assessment.  This group sponsors an annual regional assessment summit to which all LCCC 
faculty, administrators, and staff are invited.  Twenty-three faculty and administrators attended the 2012 
Assessment Summit hosted at LCCC, with introductory remarks by the President and Vice President for Academic 
Affairs and Student Development.  Three LCCC faculty presented the keynote address and addressed curricular 
changes they had made as a result of assessments in Nursing, Psychology, and Science. 
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 Assessment results are used to make improvements in the Institution. 

 Integrate assessment across disciplines.10 

While the Nichols model currently in use did not receive overwhelming support (43% agreed or 
strongly agreed and 43% neither agreed nor disagreed), few thought we should explore other 
models (28% strongly agreed or agreed, 38% neither agreed nor disagreed); no 
recommendations for specific models were offered. When asked if the time commitment 
expected for assessment was reasonable, 47% of the respondents strongly agreed or agreed 
with the statement and 33% neither agreed or disagreed, comments indicated overall about 10 
hours/per semester were dedicated to assessment activities (Competency Compendium – April 
2013, pp. 22-23, 118-125).  

Assessment and evaluation of mission, vision, and value statement. In spring 2010, the 
President charged the Assessment Council with the review and modification of the mission, 
vision, and value statement. A Google site was established, focus groups conducted, and 
invitations for comment published in the College Voice, and posted on bulletin boards, 
welcoming comments and feedback from the entire College community on LCCC’s mission, 
vision, and value statement.  The review concluded in fall 2010 and based on the results of 
those activities, the Assessment Council recommended that the mission, vision, and value 
statement remained as written until the next period of review in 2013.  The recommendations 
were approved by the President’s Cabinet and the Board of Trustees.  The President called for 
review of the vision, mission, and value statement in April 2013.  The review will occur through 
September 2013 and recommendations will be forwarded to the President’s Cabinet and the 
Board of Trustees for determination in October-November 2013.  The strategic goals 
underwent review in the 2012-2013 academic year as Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-
2014 neared completion and the strategic plan, Many Voices, One Vision:  LCCC 2014-2017, a 
rolling three-year plan, was developed.   

Summary of 2010-2012 Assessment Activities.  Lehigh Carbon Community College has nine 

Collegewide student learning competencies, three of which are evaluated each year on a 

rotating cycle.  During 2011-2012, academic areas were asked to assess Collegewide Student 

Learning Competencies 5, 6, and 7 and (1) student learning outcome or (1) student success 

outcome.  Of the 13 academic areas, one (1) participates in the Student Services review 

(Advising and Counseling) and two (2) underwent Academic Program Review (Audit - Computer 

Science and Media and the Arts, and Science).  Assessment Plans were submitted for the 

remaining 10 academic disciplines and a total of 72 assessment activities proposed.  Four 

disciplines (Health Information Technology, Nursing, Mathematics, Paralegal, and Veterinary 

Technician) were dependent on Psychology for competency #7 results:  Analyze human 

diversity.    

▪ Collegewide competency #5:  Use current technology effectively observation results:  
20 assessment activities were proposed; one (1) was not measured due to the course 

                                                           
10

 Faculty are encouraged to engage in cross-disciplinary conversations.  In fall 2012, Coordinators discussed 
integrated assessment of General Education.   

42



 

 
 

not running, one (1) observation was not submitted.  Of the remaining 18 observations, 
94.4% (16) met or exceeded expectations and 5.6% (1) did not meet expectations.   

▪ Collegewide competency #6:  Apply information literacy skills observation results:  22 
assessment activities were proposed; four (4) observations were not submitted.  Of the 
remaining 18 observations, 88.9% (16) met or exceeded expectations and 11.1% (2) did 
not meet expectations.   

▪ Collegewide competency #7:  Analyze human diversity observation results:  24 
assessment activities were proposed; one (1) observation was not submitted; and five 
(5) disciplines were dependent on the Psychology General Education observation which 
had a neutral (no significant gains or losses as a result of t-test analysis of pre-test/post-
test assessment).  Of the remaining 18 observations, 72.2% (13) met or exceeded 
expectations; 16.6% (3) did not meet expectations; 11.1% (2) had a neutral result. 

▪ Student success or student learning outcome observation results:  11 assessment 
activities were proposed; one (1) was not measured due to lack of student registration 
(n = 0) for the optional industry test, one (1) observation was not submitted.  Of the 
remaining 9 observations, 75% (6) met or exceeded expectations; 11.1% (1) did not 
meet expectations; 11.1% (1) had a neutral result as a baseline year. 

The Assessment process was streamlined in June 2008, in part as a result of an April 2008 
Middle States Site Evaluation Team Visit.  Previously, disciplines undergoing an Academic 
Program Review (APR) completed both the APR and assessment activities.  Beginning in the 
2008-2009 AY, disciplines undergoing APR focused on the APR as their sole assessment activity 
in the APR year.  Business, Paralegal, Physical Therapist Assistant, and Social Sciences 
underwent Academic Program Reviews in 2012-2013.   Division-wide assessment is achieved 
using a range of assessment tools and strategies, including embedded assessment, 
assignments, case studies, portfolios, presentations, projects, lab exercises, etc. In many 
instances, the percentages of students (i.e. 70%) who accomplish a pre-determined passing rate 
for the specified assessment activity (i.e. 70%) are deemed to have achieved expectations.   

 

Selected Assessments of Student Learning Activities 2011-2012. 

General Education.  The assessment of General Education discussion is contained within 
Chapter 2 Response to Recommendations. 

Veterinary Technology Program assessment of Collegewide competency #5: “Use current 
technology effectively” employed the technology required of veterinary nurses to succeed in 
the clinical setting.  Criteria for success:  90% + of students will receive passing grades in ALL of 
the clinical courses listed below.  Grading for each course will be derived from an individualized 
faculty assessment rubric. VET 125 Veterinary Clinical Laboratory Techniques:  written exam, 
practical exam (73%+); VET 220 Small Animal Clinical Procedures:  written exam, practical exam, 
critical skills inventory (75%); VET 230 Veterinary Technician Externship: employer assessment 
survey (Pass/Fail only).  Observations:  VET 220 97%, VET 230 100%.  Follow-up:  None 
required.   
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The Paralegal Program assessment of Collegewide competency #6: “Apply information literacy 
skills” used the PLG120 Introduction to Paralegal Studies research project grade as the 
assessment method.  Criteria for success: 70% of all students in PLG120 will receive a grade of 
"C" or better on the research project. Observation:  70% of the students in PLG120 received a 
grade of C or better on the research project.  Follow-up:  The students are able to research but 
there are still concerns that the materials are not cited properly. This will be reviewed. 

The Mathematics Department Student Success Assessment tracked success levels of baseline 
Spring 2010 MAT 100 Beginning Algebra students who moved on to MAT 105 Intermediate 
Algebra in Fall 2010 and success level comparison group Spring 2011 MAT 100 students who 
moved on to MAT 105 in Fall 2011.  Criteria for success: Determining if retention and success 
rates of students in the second year of this study show increase in success resulting from the 
changed emphasis of MAT 100 content first instituted in 2010-11 year, intended to better 
prepare students for the modeling emphasis of the MAT 105 course.  Observation:  Math 100 
success and retention remained roughly the same with change to modeling intensive text. The 
Math 105 distributions do differ, though. In fall 2010 35.4% of the students coming from Math 
100 the past spring earned a C grade or higher. In fall 2011 that number was 40.2%. Follow-up:  
No change is anticipated with text and results met expectation. Ongoing discussions with 
course reform will likely lead to new strategies to improve success overall. 

 

Select Assessments of Institutional Effectiveness Activities 2011-2012.   

Assessment of institional effectiveness 2011-2012.  Of 11 administrative areas, one ((1) 
Student Development – comprised of Admissions and Recruitment, Athletics, Career Services, 
Enrollment Services, Judicial Affairs, and Student Activities) conducts the Student Services 
Review.  Assessment plans were submitted for the remaining 10 administrative areas and a 
total of 32 assessment activities were proposed. 71.8% (23) achieved or exceeded expectations; 
3.1% (1) did not achieve expectations; 6.25% (2) were in progress; and 18.8% (6) were 
incomplete.  

The Finance and Community and Workforce Development Departments use select National 
Community College Benchmark Project national and Pennsylvania median results to measure 
progress as well as financial indicators and benchmarks.  Since 2002, the financial indicators 
and ratios demonstrate positive trends of increased fiscal stability.  

Educational Support Services (ESS) Assessment of Student Learning. Since prior to 2007, data 
indicates overall student satisfaction with services.  Quantitative data, including grade 
distributions, retention reports, and observations of department assessment action strategy 
results, attest to the positive results that ESS interventions renders on student learning.  The 
hallmark of the department is flexibility in identifying and responding to presented student 
needs. Individual programs operate within specific reporting requirements, yet ESS personnel 
interface continually in attempts to scaffold learning for student populations utilizing services.  

Surveys completed by students utilizing Educational Support Services demonstrated an 
overwhelming majority of satisfaction with the assistance given by the various areas under the 
ESS umbrella.  In attempts to quantify the significance of services to students, ESS pulled data 
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from AccuTrack and linked it with Banner to analyze statistics on successful course completion 
by those students served.   More than 70% of grades assigned to students using ESS were 
passing and transferrable or released grades during the 2010-2011 academic year.  

Follow-up and changes made/planned include, the observation of the increasingly diverse 
delivery of support services that utilize existing platforms (You Tube and i-Tunes U) and 
development of programming to provide value added educational support. ESS continues to 
enhance its services through the traditional means of face-to-face small group instruction, one-
on-one instruction, but added in-class tutoring to its expanding repertoire. As the College 
moves further into stages of its strategic planning, the utilization of support services will: (1) be 
embedded into course redesign, (2) increase the use of services by allocating traditionally 
under-used educational and leisure spaces throughout the main campus and its sites 
for educational and developmental support, and (3) strengthen the use of services by 
collaborating with academic divisions, student development, and the community at large.  
Many of these strategies are underway with Title III funding support. 

Information Technology:  In March 2011, Information Technology implemented software to 
manage technology issues for the five learning centers.  Trackit software increased efficiency by 
eliminating duplication of effort, provided a centralized repository for trend analysis, and 
improved user satisfaction.  Information Technology further participated in development of the 
Campus Technology Plan during 2011-2012.  The plan is in the initial stages of implementation.  
A new phone system, Avaya, will be installed in spring 2013 to alleviate the number of voice 
mail messages during peak periods and facilitate students access to live staff in real-time.   

The Student Development division engages in a continual self-review/self-assessment process.  
A five year Student Development Review Schedule, similar to the Academic Audit was 
developed in 2008.  In 2010, a focus group comprised of faculty, Marketing, Public Relations, 
and Institutional Assessment met with a marketing agency (SPARK) to identify student 
perceptions and determine our effectiveness in enrollment.  The department underwent 
further assessment during the 2011 Student Services Process Review conducted by the Davison 
Group.  The seven recommendations were addressed in Chapter 3 and 2011-2012 results can 
be found in the Leadership Team TERS Summary Review, 2011-2012. 

Title III:  As noted in Chapter 4, Student Development is currently engaged in multiple activities 
in support of student success, persistence, and graduation.  The activities are based in research 
and analysis of institutional data as found in the Title III application Academic, Student 
Development, and Educational Support Services began Title III implementation in October 
2012 as challenges such as high number of students requiring remediation and poor 
performance in developmental coursework, underprepared students facing barriers to success, 
low success rates in college-level courses, and unsatisfactory graduation rates are addressed 
through development of a comprehensive First Year Experience program, curricular redesign of 
developmental and gatekeeper courses, technology deployment, professional development, 
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Institutional strategic planning progress.  At mid-year and year-end, the results of institution-
wide strategic planning initiatives are shared and discussed with the Strategic Planning 
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Committee of the Board of Trustees and, then, the full Board.  The summary is published as a 
Report to the Community in the College’s Aspire magazine fall edition.   

Additionally, the strategic planning facilitating consultants, The Davison Group, are invited to 
campus each spring for a formal presentation of the Institution’s progress in several areas.   In 
2011-2012, the President’s Cabinet, writers of the Strategic Plan (including members of the 
Board of Trustees), and writers of the Technology Plan attended the presentation. Information 
Technology presented an overview of the Draft Campus Technology Plan, and the following 
areas presented year-end reports: (1) Leadership Team - Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-
2014 and Enrollment Management Plan, (2)  Academic Council -  Academic Plan, 2011,             
(3) Foundation -  Lehigh Carbon Community College:  Foundation Strategic Plan, (4) Campus 
Technology – Overview of Campus Technology Plan.  As part of their annual review, the Davison 
Group reviewed the documentation prior to the presentations and provided written 
observations and recommendations.   

External activities in support of institutional assessment 

LCCC course objectives and competencies are aligned with state Pennsylvania Department of 
Education (PDE) requirements in support of and improving articulation and assessment.  
Pennsylvania’s Department of Education TAOC initiative requires this.  As of March 2013, LCCC 
is in compliance with TAOC requirements for all included programs except Social Work which is 
under review spring 2013. 

 

External consultants are engaged to provide facilitation, analysis, and assessment.  Since the 
Middle States 2007 Self-Study, a sample of recent initiatives includes:  

 EMSI – conducted the gap analysis noted in Chapters 2 and 3 as well as the socio-
economic impact made by Lehigh Carbon Community College and its students.  

 The Davison Group – facilitated and/or conducted: 
1. Transformation: Strategic Plan 2009-2014 (2007-2008) 
2. Information Technology Gap Analysis Report (2009) 
3. Student Services Process Review (2010 - 2011) 
4. Many Voices, One Vision:  LCCC 2014-2017 (3-year rolling  plan (2012-2013) 
5. Annually the Davison Group participates in the Report to Consultants and 

provides observations on progress to goal and team effectiveness. Observations 
are both written and oral allowing for discussion with the College community. 

 Oracle Corporation - Identity and Access Management and Data Security:  Assessment 
(2011-2012) developed and presented both written and oral reports allowing for 
discussion with key stakeholders. 

 ParenteBeard,LLC.  Engaged to conduct financial audits (Annually). 
  

External contractors are engaged to better utilize existing resources, avoid redundancy, and 
provide critical data. Since the Middle States 2007 Self-Study, a sample of recent initiatives 
includes:  
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 Sallie Mae - Refund Management – previously, LCCC issued student refunds through the 
issuance and mailing of checks. For greater efficiencies representatives from the Finance 
Department met with two companies and, after completing due diligence, chose one 
company to outsource the College’s Refund Management. Students now have access to 
their refund status, account information and funds 24/7 with Manage Your Account as 
well as extended hours through toll-free customer service.  To do more with less, 
outsourcing with a highly respected and trusted brand such as Sallie Mae can help LCCC 
maximize income and find new ways to better utilize its existing resources. 

 HireVision -  MyLink, Ombudsman – The College initiated this centralized reporting 
mechanism for all levels of LCCC associates to communicate concerns including but not 
limited to: basic HR questions or inquires, HR compliance questions, ethics, disputes, 
mistreatment, conditions, misconduct, harassment and discrimination of any kind, and 
student concerns such as: student policies and procedures, academic issues, 
admissions/enrollment questions or inquiries, class/faculty issues, student discipline, 
campus life and student life. Monthly  reports are provided to the President detailing 
the number of issues by category and the average time for resolution. 

 Center for Community College Student Engagement - Community College Survey for 
Student Engagement - The spring 2010 Community College Survey for Student 
Engagement results revealed a decline in the five scales of student engagement, 
particularly in the Support for Learners scale.  The Office of Institutional Research 
conducted a follow-up survey in spring 2011 focusing on the Support for Learners’ 
survey items. Students in spring 2011 reported greater levels of support for learners 
than they had in spring 2010. The survey results were reviewed with College 
stakeholders including the Board of Trustees. 

 National Community College Benchmark Project (NCCBP) – Using 34 benchmarks, the 
project provides the individual institution with national- (2011 n = 280) and state-level 
perspectives.  Additionally, the 14 Pennsylvania community colleges voluntarily share 
their information with the Pennsylvania Commission for Community Colleges which in 
turn produces a comprehensive report reflecting their individual results.  NCCBP results 
were discussed within the Retention Committee and Developmental Education 
Committee, Title III Committee, among others in FY 2011-2012.  Title III used the data in 
developing grant strategies to improve in the areas of developmental education and 
retention.  The grant was in progress as of October 2012. 

Internal 

 

Internal mechanisms established to assist in assessment and analysis includes: 

1. The Integrated Three Year Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle outlines the 
stakeholders, their input/role, and timing surrounding the key initiatives. This document is 
reviewed and updated annually with the President’s Cabinet and Strategic Planning 
Committee of the Board of Trustees . 

2. The annual budget development process including capital and technology requests has 
been expanded after considerable review and input from stakeholders. To simplify the 
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process, the Finance Department developed a comprehensive budget development site on 
the Finance page of the Intranet.  

3. The College Services Survey, a survey of all LCCC employees (faculty, classified staff, and 
administrators) is conducted annually for a specific group of services and establishes a 
standard mechanism for providing feedback to College departments about the level of 
employee satisfaction with the services they provide. A set of standard questions is created, 
which is then modified by each department to suit their specific services. Departments are 
scheduled to participate in the evaluation on a five-year rotation schedule. The survey is 
conducted online. Each employee is sent an individual link through their LCCC email address 
and asked to participate. Survey results are reviewed with supervisors and President’s 
Cabinet. Areas that require attention provide confidential updates to President’s Cabinet 
approximately six months after the survey. 

 
Additional Assessment Results. 

 Curriculum Committee faculty and administrators collaborated and developed an 
improved, streamlined curriculum process. Curriculum submissions and reviews were 
digitized and automated, which improved communication and reduced paper costs. Two 
major initiatives were also undertaken:  (1) A program feasibility study and (2) Fast Track 
procedure were added to expedite the curriculum process. 

 Prior Learning records were re-organized.  The Prior Learning Process was streamlined and 
better defined to provide consistent portfolio assessment (Prior Learning) 

 Classroom Capture.  In April 2011, the Transforming the Learning Environment Sub-
Committee formed to investigate aspects of implementing classroom capture and 
recommend policies to be developed if LCCC were to adopt this technology on campus. 

In consideration of Action Strategy 9.02 and potential positive retention impact, the spring 
2010 Grade Distribution Report was reviewed and high-risk classes were identified. High-
risk was defined as those classes with significant enrollment and combined F and W grades 
exceeding 25%. PSY and SOC were included as their combined rates closely approximated 
the threshold. 

A piloted expansion (including the purchase of some software and equipment as well as a 
solution for content repository) of current campus technologies was recommended in which 
retention and success data in the pilot classes as well as the classes not using the 
technology was tracked. The existing technology was also recognized as not fully ADA 
compliant and an element of the pilot study was to develop best practices, including most 
effective uses and ADA accommodations guidelines. Further, it was recommend that a team 
be created for this purpose (team makeup is detailed in the recommendations section) and 
potential obstacles, such as: in order for this to work, content management solutions must 
be in place to provide a repository for the recordings and material created. This is an 
academically driven project that requires support for technology implementation. The 
faculty members are in the best position to maximize and guide the study of how this 
technology can be best implemented pedagogically in their own subject areas. 
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Three pilots were underway in spring 2013 with results and further recommendations 
expected in summer.  

 

 

Process and Progress Since the Last Middle States Report 

The Assessment Council Competency Compendium April 2013, draft – records revisions to the 
LCCC assessment process and progress since the last Middle States Report. 

Recommendations for Improvement in the Next Five Years. 

 In fall 2013, the Assessment Council will create two sub-committees to review, revise, and 
recommend improvements in the assessment of institutional effectiveness and student 
learning.  Program outcomes, course competencies, and general education need to be 
understood as an integrated whole. Through the creation of the Assessment Council sub-
committee on student learning outcomes, interdisciplinary conversations among divisions and 
programs will be facilitated as revisions occur.  Appropriate technology, perhaps beyond 
TracDat, such as Google sites and blogs, and procedures may need to be identified to facilitate 
these interactions.  Sub-committee recommendations, including the Gen Ed Course Review 
(November 2011, REV 2012), academic audit review, Curriculum Committee, Academic 
Standards and Assessment Council reports, will be discussed with constituents, such as program 
Coordinators. 

 
Efficacy of current system(s) or methods that are used to report, use, and interpret student 
learning information. 

 

1. The timeline for academic audits of programs and accreditation reviews/visits was 
aligned for greater efficiency in 2009-2010. The method appears to be efficient. 

2. Since 2007, the assessment process designated one staff position to collect both 
credit and non-credit data. This investment resulted in improved accuracy and 
collection of data.  TracDat serves as the central repository for assessment data and 
reports are published on the Assessment and Planning intranet site.  

3. As subject matter experts, faculty use their expertise to assess student work. 
4. Using Banner Project Proposal, Educational Support Services obtained an updated 

version of AccuTrack to provide necessary data for numerous initiatives and grants.   
5. The completion of the Chart of Accounts revision and implementation of the 

Enterprise Reporting System will increase user access to data for real-time decision 
making.  

6. The divisions use the Nichols’ five-column model to report results of student learning 
assessments, but there is not a streamlined system in place between divisions to 
share data and student reports to ensure competencies at the program levels.  
Interdepartmental data sharing continues to be addressed (i.e. Coordinators, 
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Assessment Status Report).  This will be addressed, in-part, through the creation of 
the Assessment Council sub-committee on student learning assessment 

7. Quality Matters subscription was purchased in 2011-2012 to assist in retention of 
Distance Education students.  The peer-reviewed process, in particular the rubric, 
was seen to have broader applications, as faculty reviewed the alignment of course 
outlines, student learning objectives, course materials, and assessment of student 
learning.  Additional faculty are being trained and the Director of Retention and 
Faculty Development is offering a series of Professional Development series.  

 

Discussion  of prudent use of scarce resources for all assessment, credit and non-credit, in a 
complete, systematic, and coordinated process. 

The Assessment Council Competency Compendium outlines LCCC’s assessment process and 
progress since the 2007 Middle States Self Study.  The streamlined assessment process 
implemented in 2008 makes prudent use of scarce resources.  The College increased resources 
for a systematic and coordinated academic and administrative assessment process by creating a 
system that is standardized, centralized and complete, and provides meaningful data which can 
be used for curricular, programmatic, and institutional improvement.   

As with all processes, improvements can be made.  Although master course outlines identify 
the student learning competencies that reside within the course, the completion of the Gen Ed 
Review discussion by Coordinators and Divisions more clearly identified where within the 
General Education Core the student learning competencies (i.e., critical thinking, quantitative 
reasoning, scientific reasoning, etc.) resided in (1) a substantive, primary way and (2) as an 
exposure.  Revisions to the Gen Ed Review began in 2011-2012, continued through 2012-2013, 
and are expected to be ongoing through further discussion within the disciplines, the Academic 
Council Sub-Committee, and the Academic Program Review. 

The Planning, Assessment, and Institutional Research intranet websites were revised in 2012 to 
facilitate improved accessibility to assessment data, and other information relevant to 
accreditation review.  The offices of Planning and Assessment and Institutional Research 
continue to monitor constituent data needs as part of continuous quality improvement.  

 

Conclusion:  Assessment of Student Learning and Institutional Effectiveness.  In 
conclusion, there is evidence of improved efficiencies in the LCCC academic assessment process 
as described in the April 2013 Competencies Compendium. The Compendium summarized the 
Assessment Processes, activities, and changes from 2003.  Since the 2008 Middle States 
Evaluation Team recommendations were implemented a number of changes occurred which 
sought to increase efficiencies and moderate the workload of assessment recognized in the 
Suggestions attached to Standard 7.   In 2009, the Assessment Council conducted the “Survey of 
Institutional Assessment,” which had a purpose to “review LCCC’s campus-wide assessment 
with an eye to identifying what we are doing well and where we can improve.” (p. 17). The 
model and tools for assessment planning were reviewed and considered. Additionally, the 2009 
Title III Team of seven faculty and administrators reported on their attendance at the Evergreen 
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College workshop on High Impact Practices in Washington State. The team recommendations 
were discussed during the Council’s August 2009 meeting and took note of a potential 
“Transition plan expanded to encourage the College to look at how we assess . . .” (p. 20). The 
Competencies Compendium document noted, “The Assessment Process Annual Review 
occurred with the observation: the streamlined process . . . appears to be working well.” (p. 20).   
The broader implementation of Quality Matters, improvements in assessment of student 
learning, and professional development opportunities hold great potential for sustaining the 
culture of assessment. 

 

 

CHAPTER 6.  LINKED INSTITUTIONAL PLANNING AND BUDGETING PROCESS 

 

Overview and Analysis of the Institution’s Planning and Budgeting Processes 

The 2008 Middle States Evaluation Team suggested “Given limited faculty and staff resources, 
the College might consider whether it should further streamline its planning teams.  This could 
include a survey of existing users to confirm that the new strategic plan and corresponding 
processes are meeting the expectations of the planning teams.  This will be particularly 
important as the College continues to integrate its separate plans with the overall institutional 
and financial planning efforts.”  At that same time, the Executive Team revised the College 
planning and budgeting process timelines to more closely align with sponsoring school districts’ 
timelines and concurrently planned the implementation of Transformation:  Strategic Plan 
2009-2014.  It was important for planning, budgeting, and assessment activities to be 
meaningful and related to the work of the participants.  Budgeting for future fiscal years was 
moved from August to March/April.  To foster transparency in decision making, the President’s 
Cabinet budget hearings were established and held each spring. Budget Directors present 
requests for additional operating budget based on results of assessment and related to the 
strategic plan. The President’s Cabinet considers the requests in new budget development.  
Capital funding budget development follows a similar format.   

As the budgeting process moved from August to March/April, the May year-end summary of 
accomplishments also moved to March/April.  This allowed the January Mid-Year reporting to 
become more of an informal Supervisor/Budget Director “check-in” where assessment plans, 
budgets, and department plans were reviewed for progress to date.  This process has worked 
well for the Institution. 

As stated in Chapter 3, the College embraces a strong planning and assessment model which 
provides the foundation to promote continued organizational growth. The development and 
implementation of the Integrated Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle was a significant 
organizational accomplishment. The College uses the Transformation: Strategic Plan 2009-2014 
to steer the Academic Plan, Enrollment Plan, and Campus Technology Plan ensuring a 
coordination and balance of resources.  These plans, in turn, inform the Strategic Plan.  Each of 
the plans is related to a key Task Force of the Leadership Team.   
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Strategic Plan.  Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2013 has three primary goals:  
transforming students’ lives, transforming the learning environment, and transforming the 
College organization.  As the Leadership Team was reorganized in 2007-2008, the President 
charged the team to implement the newly adopted plan and three Task Forces were created to 
address the three goals.   The Enrollment Management Plan 2010-2014 was developed in 2010 
and a fourth Task Force, transforming enrollment related services, was added to the Leadership 
Team to execute this plan.  At that time, the composition of the Leadership Team was further 
expanded to include Associate Deans, all Directors, and five faculty.  The Dean of Academic 
Services and Dean of Student Development were appointed as co-chairs of the new Task Force. 
The Senior Vice President of Administration serves as the Administrative Chair and liaison to the 
President’s Cabinet.  The Team meets monthly and is heavily involved in the development of 
the new rolling strategic plan, Many Voices, One Vision:  LCCC 2014-2017.  

Each year the Task Forces identify projects to improve institutional performance and student 
persistence.  The results are reported and presented during the Report to Consultants in spring, 
and posted to the Leadership Team intranet site.  Projects included (1) development of the 
Enrollment Management Plan, (2) inception of a First Year Experience (further enhanced by the 
Title III funding received in 2012), (3) Financial Literacy programming, (4) the Economic 
Modeling Specialists International (EMSI) report LCCC Regional Employment Gap Analysis and 
Employer focus groups, (5) Portal deployment, (6) expansion of Banner System usage, (7) 
implementation of Quality Matters, (8) Classroom Capture Recommendations  (pilots occurred 
spring 2013), (9) integrated professional development website, (10) Student Services Process 
Review, (11) the Wayfinding project (12) support of the Fulbright scholar, (13) support of the 
BAS degree development with Bloomsburg University of Pennsylvania, as well as the 
accomplishments of the Transforming Enrollment Related Services detailed in the Enrollment 
Management Plan results which follow. 

 

Academic Plan.  Although each plan touches the strategic plan as a whole, the Academic Plan, 
facilitated by the Academic Council, primarily informs the Leadership Team Transforming 
Students’ Lives Task Force.  The Academic Council is responsible for implementation of the plan 
and is chaired by a faculty member and comprised of seven service and teaching faculty, the 
Vice President for Academic Services and Student Development, the Dean of Academic 
Services, and the Dean of Student Development, with faculty liaisons to the Leadership Team 
and President’s Cabinet.  The Academic Council-Leadership Team liaison and Academic Council 
– President’s Cabinet liaison assure continued communication between the bodies and plans.  
Additionally, the Council requests updates from key organizational stakeholders.  Each 
academic year, the Academic Council develops an academic plan which guides the College 
towards maintaining and improving academic excellence.   The AY 2013-2014 draft of the 
Academic Plan identifies five goals, all aligned with the Strategic Plan and supportive of the 
Enrollment Management Plan.  

 Promote a Collegewide culture of student success. 

 Strengthen and support the College’s curricula. 
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 Provide an agile and strong technology infrastructure and support system for 
academics. 

 Provide an organizational framework that will support a strong academic commitment 
to excellence. 

 Reach out proactively to many diverse employers, four-year institutions, and high 
schools to ensure engagement in authentic partnerships that reflect the region’s needs 
and keep LCCC relevant to those needs. 
 

Campus Technology Plan.  Although each plan touches the strategic plan as a whole, the 
Campus Technology Plan primarily informs the Leadership Team Transforming the Learning 
Environment Task Force.  The plan reflects the needs of campus-wide technology (academic 
technology, distance education, information technology, student technology, including website 
and portal).  In developing the plan, the Campus Technology Plan Ad Hoc Committee, a  cross-
functional team from these key technology areas and faculty, considered current and future 
overlapping and integrated technology requirements of the College’s institutional, academic, 
and administrative areas as they related to the various technology departments.  The 
Committee (1) considered the relevant elements of Technology Plan 2006-2011, The Davison 
Group reports (2009), and Interim CIO assessments (2010), (2) remained mindful of the 
College’s Vision, Mission, Value Statement, Transformation:  Strategic Plan 2009-2014, and 
those elements the Institution holds as core as the foundation of the new plan, while balancing 
tradition with transition; (3) researched and examined critically the external environmental 
factors related to strategic technology directions through 2015; (4) developed the strategic 
technology directions into the Technology Plan and goals; (5) recommended benchmarks by 
which the Institution can measure its progress and the strategic technology directions will be 
achieved.  The final draft was presented May 23, 2012, reviewed summer and fall 2012, and 
approved.  Key stakeholders meet quarterly to discuss progress to date.  Early results include:  
identification of the new Learning Management System (LMS), early discussions of site level 
agreement development, expansion of iTunes U utilization, acquisition of additional bandwidth, 
development of mobile applications, establishment of a student-staffed student help desk, and 
incorporation of Project Management, Change Management, and Workflow strategies. 

The Technology Committee’s 2011 Summary recommended dissolution and the Information 
Technology Steering Committee (ITSC) was developed to serve an expanded function of 
Information Technology Governance.  The ITSC is comprised of the President, Senior Vice 
President, and two Vice Presidents, and Information Technology Senior Leadership Team 
(Executive Director and three Directors).  Additionally, the Enterprise Applications Support 
Team (EAST), a cross-functional team of Banner users, addresses the priority listing of Banner 
utilization projects.  The Academic Council has representation from the various technology 
areas, meets with Information Technology at least annually, and with the Leadership Team 
facilitates the annual call for Technology Request Proposals.  

In support of the Campus Technology Plan and improved technology access for LCCC students, 
the President’s Cabinet determined 45 % of the technology fee will be invested in student 
focused technology. 
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Enrollment Management Plan.  Although each plan touches the strategic plan as a whole, the 
Enrollment Management Plan primarily informs the Leadership Team Transforming Student 
Enrollment Related Services Task Force.  Responsibility for the plan lies with the Transforming 
Enrollment Related Services Task Force and much of the work is done within the various, 
College offices.  The Task Force is co-chaired by the Dean of Academic Services and Dean of 
Student Development.  In 2011-2012, Transforming Enrollment Related Services (TERS) 
addressed many of the recommendations of the Davison Group 2011 Enrollment Management 
Process Review: (1) facilitated the development of Reference Playbook – FAQ guide (written 
from a students’ point of view) for front line staff, and eventually students’ themselves, to 
provide the information and support needed for all staff to better assist students with general 
questions, decreasing the information silos effect and enabling quick referral of the student to 
the appropriate office; Update 2012:  The FAQ document was drafted with input from all ERS 
offices including sites and the bookstore, revised, finalized, and  posted on the portal for use by 
all staff (effective January 2012); (2) identified areas and supported cross training  of 
appropriate tasks, intra and interoffice,  to work more efficiently and eliminate the complete 
loss of job knowledge when an employee leaves the department; (3) identified areas and 
supported departmental training and sharing  department to department; conducted 
Collegewide student development staff meetings, to enhance general knowledge of each 
other’s roles and responsibilities, facilitated and supported collaborative problem-solving and 
planning efforts; Update 2012:  ERS Support Staff Group submitted a draft (March 2012). TERS 
will review and determine next steps in fine tuning for use in cross training plans; (4) developed 
the calendar of peak periods  by office, to facilitate cross department planning, cross training 
and cross staffing to better anticipate and address needs in the high volume periods; (5) 
initiated development of Process maps, by campus/site  each enrollment related service office 
was asked to identify the general step(s) that must/should occur just before the student seeks 
assistance at their door, to develop a basic map for main campus and each site, analyze and 
determine how the College might adjust/refine processes to uncomplicate the student 
experience and enhance effectiveness of efforts; as an example, in 2011 students were given 
access to their assigned advisor’s calendar and were able to schedule an appointment with that 
advisor without interfacing with front desk staff; thereby saving time and frustration; Update 
2012:  (a) TERS site staff developed flow chart process maps for students seeking enrollment at 
their locations and (b) Enrollment Services developed a flow chart to document registration 
processes; (6) enhanced Portal assistance for students during peak periods to make it simple, 
intuitive, and easy for students to navigate and locate information critical to enrollment related 
processes; Update 2012:  Enrollment Services currently provides assistance by letter, email and 
in person upon request. A log of personal contacts is maintained; (7) participated in wayfinding 
discussions, Campus signage external and internal.   No signage, ambiguous signage, inaccurate 
signage has created far more questions and discomfort for prospects and visitors when 
attempting to navigate our College,; signage was recommend that is consistent from main 
campus to sites, that welcomes, directs, and reassuringly guides visitors/prospects/students; 
Update 2012:  (a) TERS worked with the Director of Facilities Management to study the 
‘wayfinding’ system, including an informational presentation by a local contractor; (b) TERS 
recommended that LCCC hire a contractor to design and install a phased comprehensive 
‘wayfinding’ (exterior and interior) signage system for main campus/sites; (c) TERS reviewed 
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and provided recommendations for finalizing the components and requirements of the RFP; (d) 
TERS reviewed RFP’s; the contract was awarded.  Fall 2013 estimated project completion; (e) 
TERS will continue on as a member of the Project Team. 

Master Facilities Plan.  Although each plan touches the strategic plan as a whole, the Master 
Facilities Plan primarily informs the Leadership Team Transforming the Learning Environment.  
Responsibility for the plan lies with the Director of Facilities, Vice President - Finance and 
Facilities, President, and the Building and Site Committee of the Board of Trustees.  The 
Director of Facilities is a member of the Transforming the Learning Environment Task Force.  
Since 2008, completed projects included renovation of Berrier Hall and Academic Resource 
Center; design and construction of the Community Services Center building; main campus 
landscape project, athletic fields development, and parking lot improvements. The 
Administration Building is scheduled to begin renovations summer 2013 to improve workflow 
and student access to support services. The RACP grant was submitted to the State in 2011-
2012 to request 50% funding in support of a new Carbon Facility. During 2012-2013, Physical 
Plant also worked with the Department of Public Safety and Security to develop a CD for local 
police, fire, and rescue teams to save precious time as emergency services plan responses to 
critical situations. 

 

Demonstration of processes as integrated and linked 

1. The Integrated Three Year Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment Cycle outlines the 
stakeholders, their input/role, and timing surrounding key activities.  

2. The President’s Cabinet and Community and Government Relations/Strategic 
Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees review the process annually and 
revisions are made as needed. 

3. The annual budget development process, including capital and technology requests, 
was expanded after considerable review and input from stakeholders and the 
development of a comprehensive budget site on the Finance page of the College’s 
intranet.  This was done to streamline the preparation of many duplicative reports, 
provide consistent information, and serve as a central location for this pertinent 
information.  The resulting process was less labor intensive for Finance Department 
personnel, saving about a week’s worth of time and improved user understanding of 
financial information.   

4. As part of budget development, Budget Directors requesting additional funds must 
link the request to the strategic plan and include a rationale/use of assessment 
results. 

 

 

Assessment 

The data from assessment informs the planning and budgeting process.  Not all data used in 
planning and budgeting is reported through the Annual Assessment Report. The College follows 
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the Nichols’ model (Figure 6.1) in explaining the Institutional understanding of the relationship 
between planning, budgeting, and assessment.  Assessment is a non-punitive activity done 
within the current budget and focused on a current practice or emerging trend as an area of 
inquiry.  Assessment provides data.  Strategic planning is future focused, budget driven, and 
informed by assessment results.  While Lehigh Carbon Community College frequently reports 
the detail behind strategic planning activities, strategic planning results can usually be reported 
as Achieved - “yes – we did it,” Not Achieved or Not Actioned - “no – we did not do it,”  or In 
Progress.  

Assessment of institutional effectiveness covers broad areas.  In 2011-2012, Transforming the 
Learning Environment researched and made recommendations for Classroom Capture and 
Content Management.  Distance Education researched a Learning Management System (LMS) 
replacement for ANGEL and recommended WebCT.  After several years of introspection, data 
and literature review, the Title III grant was written.  Detailed more fully in Chapter 5, the grant 
clearly uses the results of assessment in defining a future course for the Institution.   

The Entrepreneurial Projects Grants funded projects and encouraged faculty and staff to 
consider innovations to enhance the lives of our students and College community and improve 
educational delivery.  Applications demonstrate the project’s relation to the strategic plan and 
reflect the proposer’s initial assessments of the topic under consideration. Through the EPG, 
grant recipients engage in research, design, and project deployment; transform curriculum, 
College operations, student life, support services, and foster partnerships.  

The Workforce and Community Development Office, Finance Office, Retention Committee, and 
Developmental Education Committee used the several years of National Community College 
Benchmark results in examining trends within the Institution as compared to state and national 
medians.  Other areas, such as Duplicating and Word Processing, investigated departmental 
practices for improved efficacy.  The College’s First Year Experience, revised Orientation, 
Financial Literacy, and Financial Aid awareness resulted from an assessment of perceived 
obstacles to student success and determination to improve the student experience, student 
retention, and student persistence to goal. 

Academic Divisions participates in annual assessment of student learning as three of the nine 
Collegewide student learning competencies are reviewed as well as a student success outcome 
(performance on a credentialing examination, employment, successful transfer) or student 
learning outcome related to the discipline.  Due to the rigor of the Academic Program Review 
(or Academic Audit), programs in review are exempted from the Collegewide competency 
assessment.   In compliance with Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Department of Education 
regulations, all academic programs are reviewed on a minimum five-year cycle (Table 6.1.). 

As a result of the 2011-2012 audits, evaluation of state level academic prerogatives, and 
transfer college preferences, several new programs were developed, including:  Biology, 
Chemistry, Environmental Science, and Physics. Other assessments of emerging employment 
demands were reflected in programs such as Social Work and the Computer Game and 
Simulation Development programs.   
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Over twenty college Programs/Areas (i.e. Nursing, Aviation, Tutoring, childcare center,) are 
accredited and/or regulated.  

 

Figure 6.1 Alignment of Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment 

LCCC DEVELOPMENT DAY October 19, 2005 

Dr. James O. Nichols and Karen Nichols Presenters 

 

 

Table 6.1.  Academic Audit Schedule 

2007/2012 2008/2013 2009/2014 

Media/Arts Business Aviation 
Computer Science Paralegal Health Information Tech. 
Sciences Physical Therapist Assistant Mathematics 
 Social Sciences Nursing 
  Occupational Therapy Asst. 

 2010/2015  
Vet Tech Criminal Justice Adm. Humanities/Arts 
Medical Assistant World Language/ESL Technology 
Human Services Reading  

 2011/2016 Teacher Education 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College  

Middle States Periodic Review Report Participants 

 
 
 
Tri-Chairs:  
Michelle Mitchell, Learning Specialist / Assistant Professor, Disability Support Services 
Jodi Rowlands, Assistant Professor, Criminal Justice Administration 
Winona Schappell, Professor, Social Sciences 

 
 
Steering Committee: 
Michelle Mitchell, Tri-Chair, Learning Specialist / Assistant Professor, Disability Support Services 
Jodi Rowlands, Tri-Chair, Associate Professor, Criminal Justice Administration 
Winona Schappell, Tri-Chair, Professor, Social Sciences 
Scott Aquila, Associate Dean, Professional Accreditation and Curriculum 
Dr. Ceil Connelly-Weida, Facilitator, Associate Dean, Planning and Assessment 
Dr. Glynis Daniels, Associate Dean, Institutional Research and Effectiveness 
Peggy Heim, Dean of Student Development 
Jeffrey Herman, Chair, Standard 2, Assistant Professor, Counselor 
Dr. Thomas Leamer, Vice President for Academic Services and Student Development 
Virginia Mihalik, Chair, Standard 12, Professor, Transfer Counselor 
Sue Miner, Chair, Standard 7, Professor, Computer Science 
Laura Segatti, Chair, Standard 14, Professor, Teacher Education 
Dr. Barry Spriggs, Dean, Academic Services 
Diane Tallarita, Chair, Standard 3, Associate Professor, Paralegal 
Larissa Verta, Chair, Standard 1, Associate Academic Dean 
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Standard 1 Mission and Goals 
Larissa Verta, Chair Associate Academic Dean 
Gary Andrews  Instructor of Psychology/Sociology 
Cindy Brooks Administrative Secretary to the President and Board of 

Trustees 
Peg DeFrain  Human Resources Assistant 
Val Hayes  Assistant Director of Registration/Student Records 
Peggy Heim  Dean of Student Development 
Tim Herrlinger Executive Director of Foundation/Institutional Grants 
Terri Keefe Executive Director of Workforce and Community Education 
Scott Keim Instructor of English* 
Charles Molano Assistant Professor of Spanish 
Nada Veskovic  Assistant Professor of Electronics 
 
Standard 2 

 
Planning, Resource Allocation, and Institutional Renewal 

Jeff Herman, Chair Associate Professor, Counselor 
Dr. Mary Black Associate Professor, Academic Advisor 
Connie Burns Controller 
Susie Lindenmuth Purchasing and Contract Manager 
Margarita Rodriguez Site Supervisor, Donley Center 
Janet Seggern Professor of Business 
Marian Snyder Director of Financial Aid 
Melanie Wursta Professor of Early Childhood Education 
 
Standard 3 

 
Institutional Resources 

Diane Tallarita, Chair Associate Professor of Paralegal Studies* 
Barbara Balas Professor, Librarian 
Jim DePietro Professor of Mechanical Technology, Kitchen and Bath 

Design, and Construction Technology 
Barbara Blose Academic Services Support Supervisor 
Dr. Barbara Kistler Professor of Mathematics 
Linda Mesics Director of Academic Grants 
Sandy Mosser Director of Registration/Student Records 
Jennifer Myskowski Associate Professor of English 
Rick Paterick Assistant Professor, Librarian 
Dr. Betsy Swope  Instructor of Psychology 
 
Standard 7 

 
Institutional Effectiveness 

Sue Miner Associate Professor of Computer Science 
Dr. Ann Bieber Senior Vice President for Administrative Services 
Cheryl Fisher Site Supervisor – Carbon/Schuylkill Centers 
Christy Hediger Instructor of Mathematics 
Chris Orban  Assistant Professor, Academic Advisor* 
Dr. Eike Reichardt Assistant Professor of Social Sciences 
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Doug Rigby  Associate Professor of English 
Donna Williams Director of Human Resources 
 
Standard 12 

 
General Education / Distance Education 

Ginny Mihalik, Chair Professor,  Transfer Counselor 
Dominic Christison Associate Dean for Distance Education 
Monica Cottrell Assistant Professor, Career Advisor 
Myra Handwerk Academic Services Secretary 
Creed Hyatt Assistant Professor of Social Sciences* 
Patrick Kane Assistant Professor of Mathematics 
Susan Logorda Associate Professor of Accounting 
Dr. Lori Madiara** Associate Professor of Physical Therapy 
Beth Marquardt Instructor of Reading/Developmental English 
Dianne Melnychuk Assistant Professor, Librarian 
Holly Morris Professor of Biology 
Dr. Carrie Myers Professor of English 
Dr. Michael Torrence** Associate Dean of Educational Support Services and Interim 

Dean of Library, Information, and Instructional Resources 
Ann Turoczy Instructor of Psychology/Sociology* 
Melanie Turrano Professor of English 
Steven Weitz Assistant Professor of Media Arts 
Pam Weldon Associate Professor of Teacher Education 
 
Standard 14 

 
Assessment of Student Learning 

Laura Segatti Professor of Business 
Scott Aquila Associate Dean of Professional Accreditation and Curriculum 
Deb Condon Educational Support Center Lab Supervisor 
Kerri Green Student? 
Miriam Harris-Botzum Associate Professor of Mathematics 
Dr. John Heffner Associate Professor of Biotechnology/Chemistry 
Julie Labbiento Professor of Mathematics 
Jeanne Miller Director of Carbon and Schuylkill Counties Educational 

Services 
Stephanie Miller Assistant Professor of Occupational Therapy 
Cindy Terry Associate Professor of Nursing 
Richard Warner Professor of Business 
Saskia Windig Assistant Professor of Biology 
Bethany Zornek Associate Professor of English as a Second Language 
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Appendix: Guide to Abbreviations and Acronyms 

 

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act) 

ANGEL LCCC’s Learning Management System (LMS) 
APA American Psychological Association (writing format) 
ARRA American Recovery and Reinvestment Act  

ASD Allentown School District 

ATE Advanced Technological Education 

AY Academic Year 
BAS Bachelor of Applied Science 

BIT Behavior Intervention Team 

CampusEAI Campus Enterprise Application Integration 

CBJT Community Based Job Training 

CCSSE Community College Survey of Student Engagement 

CDC Career Development Center 

CIO Chief Information Officer 

EMP Enrollment Management Plan 

EMSI Economic Modeling Specialists International 

EPG Entrepreneurial Project Grant 

ESL English Second Language 

FAQ Frequently Asked Question 

FIPSE Fund for the Improvement of Postsecondary Education 

FY Fiscal Year 

FYE First Year Experience 

GED General Education Development 

HEOA Higher Education Opportunity Act 

HIPPIE High Impact Practices Promoting Intellectual Experiences 

HSGI High School Graduation Initiative 

LCCC Lehigh Carbon Community College 

LCTI Lehigh-Carbon Technical Institute 

LMS Learning Management System  
MLA Modern Language Association (writing format) 
MSCHE Middle States Commission on Higher Education 

NACCTEP National Association of Community College Teacher Education Programs  

NSF National Science Foundation 

PRR Periodic Review Report 

QoS Quality of Service 

SGA Student Government Association 

SHINE Schools and Homes in Education 

STAR Student Transition, Advising, and Registration 

StART Student  Assessment and Response Team 
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STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics 

SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats 

T3 Title III 
TAACCCT Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career Training  
TLC Teaching Learning Center 

TCO Transforming the College Organization 

TDG The Davison Group 

TERS Transforming Enrollment Related Services 

TLE Transforming the Learning Environment 

TSL Transforming Students’ Lives 

VISTA Volunteers in Service to America 
WebCT LCCC’s former Learning Management System (LMS) 
WIRED Workforce Innovation in Regional Economic Development 
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Integrated Planning, Budgeting, Assessment Cycle July 2013 – June 2014
Lehigh Carbon Community College 

January 1, 2013 
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Academic Audits    
Administrative Units/Coordinators      
Administrative Unit/Coordinator Supervisors        
Assessment Council       
Board of Trustees      
Budget Directors        
Budget Director Supervisors       
Director of Curriculum     
Enrollment Management Council    
Entrepreneurial Projects Grant     
Finance              
Finance and Insurance Committee of BOT    
Grant Fund Directors     
Institutional Research     
Leadership Team      
President   
President’s Cabinet                   
Sponsors            
Strategic Planning Committee of the BOT       
Student Support Service Review      
VP ‐ Finance    

 

NOTE:  

Administrative Assessment will be conducted by Administrative Units determined by the President Cabinet member. 

Academic Assessment will be conducted by the Coordinators.  
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INTEGRATED PLANNING, BUDGETING, and ASSESSMENT 

LCCC’s Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment cycle parallels the budgeting cycle of the sponsoring school districts and provides LCCC with a continuous three‐year cycle of 

linked/integrated planning, budgeting, and assessment activities.   These activities comprise several of the core steps in the College’s Planning, Budgeting, and Assessment cycle.  

The cycle is simple, predictable, and not only satisfies Middle States and school board requirements, but provides the College with a useful and effective means of planning and 

allocating resources.  Assessments are data driven, occur using current budgets to investigate current or proposed activities, such as institutional effectiveness, student learning, 

technology needs, etc.  The results of assessment are used to inform both practice and the strategic plan 

Planning is future focused and budget driven.  Divisional or unit budget requests to execute planned activities use the results of assessment,  tied to the strategic plan, 

developed in consultation with the area supervisors and Vice Presidents, and considered by the President’s Cabinet during scheduled Budget Hearings as part of this cycle. 

 

JULY  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 

NOTE:  July 1 begins a new fiscal year 

Strategic Planning 
Committee of BOT 

Yr0  
Yr1  

Strategic Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees review:
1. final strategic planning results for Yr0  
2. committee charter and schedule of activities for Yr1  
3. final report on College's Strategic Plan (Vision 2020) 

Yr2  
Strategic Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees to review budget requests for Yr2 and the College's Strategic 
Plan Many Voices, One Vision LCCC 2014‐2017 

Finance 
Yr1   Finance to approve/disapprove revisions to Yr1 budget as reporting by Budget Directors

Yr2   Finance to continue review of preliminary Yr2 budget  and new initiative funding requests

    No Assessment activity this month

    No Audit activity this month

    No Sponsors activity this month
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AUGUST  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
Leadership Team  Yr2   Leadership Team revises strategic plan implementation Yr2 

Finance 

 
Yr0  
Yr1  

 
Finance to complete fourth quarterly report for Yr0 
Finance to distribute Yr0 budget vs. actual statements to budget directors and faculty coordinators 
Finance to complete revised final Yr1 budget 

Yr2   Finance to complete a preliminary Yr2 budget

Yr1   Preliminary external audit begins (annual/single)

President’s Cabinet 
Yr0  
Yr1  

 
President's Cabinet to review fourth quarterly report for Yr0 for:
1.  operating vs. budgeted activity 
2. determine what adjustments need to be highlighted for Yr1  

Entrepreneurial Project Grant  Yr1    
Entrepreneurial Project Committee members review Yr1 Entrepreneurial Project Grant applications.
Notice of approval/disapproval for EPG applications to be sent to President’s Cabinet and applicants for 
funding 

Budget Directors 
Budget Director Supervisors 

Yr2    Budget Directors review Yr2 Budget in consultation with Budget Director Supervisors 

Assessment Council  Yr1      

Assessment Council to review final assessment plans  for Yr0 , revised assessment plans for 
Yr1, and developed assessment plans for Yr2. Complete college‐wide competency review. 
Assessment Council to review the College Planning, Budget, and Assessment Process and 
make recommendations.   

Administrative 
Units/Coordinators and 
Supervisors 

Yr2     
Administrative Units and Coordinators revise assessment plan for Yr2  if necessary in 
consultation with Supervisors 

Student Support Service 
Review 

Yr1      
Student Support Service Review revise assessment plan for Yr2  if necessary in consultation 
with Supervisor 

Sponsors    No Sponsors activity this month
 

SEPTEMBER  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
    No Plan activity this month

President’s Cabinet 
Yr1   President's Cabinet adopts Yr1  revised budget. (wk 1 September)

Yr2   President's Cabinet adopts Yr2  budget. (wk 1 September)

Finance  Yr1   Finance to enter revised Yr1  budget into Banner.

Finance and Insurance 
Committee of BOT 

Yr1    
Finance & Insurance Committee of Board of Trustees to adopt revised Yr1 budget (Mailing wk 2 
September) 

Yr2    
Finance & Insurance Committee of Board of Trustees to review preliminary Yr2 budget (Mailing wk 2 
September) 

    No Assess activity this month 

    No Audit activity this month

Sponsors  Yr2         
Share preliminary Yr2  budget with Superintendents for 
feedback 
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OCTOBER  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 

Strategic Planning 
Committee of BOT 

Yr2 

Strategic Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees review:
1. Leadership  Team goals for Yr2  (overview) 
2. Budget goals for Yr2  
3.  Strategic Plan update 

Finance 
Yr1   Finance to complete first quarterly report for Yr1 

Yr2  Finance to complete final Yr2 budget 

President’s Cabinet  Yr1    

President's Cabinet to review first quarterly report for Yr1 for:
1.  operating vs. budgeted activity 
2. determine what adjustments need to be made for Yr1  
3. determine what adjustments need to be highlighted for Yr2  

Finance and Insurance 
Committee of BOT 

Yr2    
Finance & Insurance Committee of Board of Trustees reviews the final Yr2  budget to determine sponsor 
appropriations. 

Yr1        
Final external audit presentation to Finance & Insurance Committee of Board 
of Trustees (annual/single) 

Assessment Council  Yr1   Assessment Council to complete assessment plan rubrics for yr1 

Sponsors 
Yr1          

Present sponsors with LCCC allocations for Yr2 by 
November 1 

Yr2          
Preliminary Yr2 budget mailed to Superintendents and Business 
Managers. 

VP ‐ Finance  Yr2          
Vice President‐ Finance schedules meetings with Business 
Managers to discuss budget. 

 

NOVEMBER  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
    No Plan activity this month

Finance  Yr2    
Finance to make any revisions to the Y2 budget as appropriate
Y2 budget book is completed. 

    No Assessment activity this month

    No Audit activity this month

           
Distribute Yr0  final audit and financial statements to school 
districts 
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DECEMBER  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
President  Yr3   President to draft Yr3  Presidential Goals

Finance  Yr2   Finance to mail Yr2  budget books to Finance and Insurance Committee of the Board of Trustees.

Finance and Insurance 
Committee of BOT 

Yr2   
Finance and Insurance Committee of the Board of Trustees reviews Yr2 budget book and recommends 
final budget to Full Board for adoption. 

Entrepreneurial Project Grant  Yr1    
Entrepreneurial Project Committee members review Yr1 Entrepreneurial Project Grant applications.
Notice of approval/disapproval for EPG applications to be sent to President’s Cabinet and applicants for 
funding 

    No Assessment activity this month

    No Audit activity this month

    No Sponsor activity this month
 

JANUARY  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
Leadership Team  Yr1   Leadership Team conduct informal mid‐year strategic plan review for Yr1 

President’s Cabinet 
 

Yr1 
Materials for Strategic Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees review:
1. mid‐year strategic plan progress (overview) 
2. Strategic Plan update 

Yr1    

President's Cabinet to review second quarterly report for Yr1 for:
1.  operating vs. budgeted activity 
2. determine what adjustments need to be made for Yr1  
3. determine what adjustments need to be highlighted for Yr2  

Strategic Planning 
Committee of BOT 

Yr1  
Strategic Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees review:
1. mid‐year strategic plan progress  
2. Strategic Plan update 

Finance  Yr1   Finance to complete second quarterly report for Yr1  (October‐December)
Finance 
Institutional Research 
Director of Curriculum 

Yr1       Finance, Institutional Research, and Director of Curriculum provides information for Annual 
Program Review Report  

Budget Directors  Yr1   Budget Directors conduct informal mid‐year budget  review for Yr1 

Board of Trustees  Yr2  Board of Trustees to adopt final Yr2 budget 

Administrative 
Units/Coordinators 

Yr1      
Administrative Units & Coordinators conduct informal mid‐year assessment plan  review 
for Yr1  

Student Support Service 
Review 

Yr1      
Student Support Service Review conduct informal mid‐year assessment (review) meetings 
for Yr1  

    No Audit activity this month

Sponsors           
Yr2 Budget presentation to Superintendents and Business 
Managers 
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FEBRUARY  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
President’s Cabinet  Yr1   President's Cabinet to review informal mid‐year strategic plan  for Yr1  

Budget Director Supervisors  Yr1   Budget Directors to review informal mid‐year budget status for Yr1 

Finance 
Yr1   Finance to meet with Budget Directors for April planning meeting for Yr1 

Yr2  Finance to meet with Budget Directors for April planning meeting for Yr2 

Administrative Unit and 
Coordinator Supervisors 

Yr1     
Supervisors  review Administrative Unit and Coordinator informal mid‐year assessment 
plan progress to date for Yr1  

    No Audit activity this month

Sponsors    Sponsors review LCCC allocations for Yr2
 

 
MARCH 

Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 

Finance 
Yr0  
Yr1  
Yr2  

 

Finance prepares statements showing actual and budgeted items for all budget directors:
Yr0 (actual) 
Yr1 (to date and budgeted) 
Yr2 (approved) 

Institutional Research     
Institutional Research to send relevant program related data to President's Cabinet and Program 
Coordinators prior to budget hearings for Yr3 

Budget Directors 

Yr 1    
Budget Directors to review budget statements from Finance, explain variances and recommend 
adjustments to line items for current year 

Yr2   Budget Directors to recommend operating budget revisions for next Yr2 if appropriate

Yr 3    

Budget Directors to project Yr3 operating budget based on three‐years of Finance statements and 
complete: 
1. submit extraordinary  funding requests demonstrating tie in to Strategic Plan 
2. Entrepreneurial Project Grant applications if applicable 

Assessment Council  Yr 1   Assessment Council to review Student Learning Competencies.

Grant Funds Directors  Yr1        
Grant Project Budget Directors to review grant activity to ensure spend down 
of funds prior to year end 

Sponsors  Yr2   Sponsors review and approve LCCC allocations for Yr2 
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APRIL   Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
President’s Cabinet* and 
Leadership Team** 

Yr3  
President’s Cabinet  and Leadership Team review preliminary College’s Strategic Plan/Annual Institutional Goals wk1 
April 

Board of Trustees  Yr1   Board Retreat preparation for discussion of College’s Strategic Plan

Leadership Team** 
Yr1   Leadership Team completes review of final strategic plan for Yr1 results  wk4

Yr2 ‐ Yr3   Leadership Team completes strategic plan implementation Yr2, including considerations for Y3 – wk 4

SPC of BOT  Yr 2‐ Yr 3   Strategic Planning Committee of the Board of Trustees meets to discuss the College's Strategic Plan for Yr2  and Yr3 

Enrollment Management 
Council 

Yr3  

Enrollment Management Council to review:
1. Yr1 enrollment 
2. Yr2 projections 
3. Complete Yr3 Enrollment Management Plan

Finance 
Yr1    

Finance to complete third quarterly report forYr1 (January‐March)
Finance to address any variances and make adjustments to line items for the 2009‐2010 budget 
reported by Planning Teams 

Yr2   Planning meeting with Independent Auditor.

Budget Directors 
Budget Director Supervisors 

Yr2   Budget Directors to submit Yr2 revisions to supervisor (preceding budget hearings – wk 1 April)

Yr3   Budget Directors to submit Yr3  budget to supervisor (preceding budget hearings – wk 1 April)

Entrepreneurial Project Grant  Yr1    
Entrepreneurial Project Committee members review Yr1 Entrepreneurial Project Grant applications.
Notice of approval/disapproval for EPG applications to be sent to President’s Cabinet and applicants for 
funding 

President’s Cabinet*  Yr1    

President's Cabinet to review third quarterly report for Yr1  for:
1.  operating vs. budgeted activity 
2. determine what adjustments need to be made for Yr1  
3. determine what adjustments need to be highlighted for Yr2  
Conduct campus wide budget hearings – wk 3 April 

Administrative Units, 
Coordinators 

Yr 1   Administrative Units and Coordinators conduct final assessment plan meetings for Yr1 

Yr2   Administrative Units and Coordinators revise assessment plan  for Yr2

Yr 3   Administrative Units and Coordinators set assessment plan  for Yr3 

Academic Audits  Yr1   Academic Audits are due to the Vice President for Academic Affairs (last Friday in April)

Student Support Service 
Review 

Yr1       Student Support Service Review conduct final assessment (review) meetings for Yr1  

Sponsors  Yr2   Sponsors review and approve LCCC allocations for Yr2

 

MAY  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 

President’s Cabinet 

Yr1   President's Cabinet reviews final strategic planning reports  for Yr1 from Leadership Team 

Yr2  President's Cabinet to review Yr2 strategic plans  from Leadership Team

Yr3   President's Cabinet to review preliminary Yr3 strategic plans  from Leadership Team

Yr1   President's Cabinet reviews final assessment plan reports for Yr1

Yr2   President's Cabinet to review Yr2  assessment plans 
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MAY  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
Yr3   President's Cabinet to review preliminary Yr3  assessment plans 

Yr2  President's Cabinet to discuss extraordinary items for Yr2 and make recommendations

Budget Directors 
Budget Director Supervisors 

Yr1    Budget Directors review variances in Yr1 budget reports with Budget Directors 

Finance 

Yr1   
Finance to address any variances and make adjustments to line items for Yr1 budget reported by Budget 
Directors 

Yr2    
Finance to review any adjustments to Yr2 budget reported by Budget Directors
Finance to compile list of extraordinary items for President's Cabinet for Yr2  

Yr3    
Finance to review preliminary Yr3 budget sheet and new initiative funding requests
Finance to compile list of extraordinary items for President's Cabinet for Yr3  
Finance prepares first draft of budget for President's Cabinet for Yr3  

Board of Trustees  Yr2   Board of Trustees to approve annual administrative salary increases for Yr2 

Entrepreneurial Project Grant  Yr2   Campus group of 3‐5 members will review Yr2 Entrepreneurial Project Grant applications

Administrative 
Unit/Coordinator Supervisors 

Yr1   Supervisors review final assessment plan reports  for Yr1

Yr2  Supervisors  to review preliminary Yr2  assessment plans

Yr3   Supervisors  to review preliminary Yr3 assessment plans 

    No Audit activity this month

Sponsors  Yr2   Sponsors review and approve LCCC allocations for Yr2 

 

JUNE  Fiscal Year  Plan  Budget  Assess  Audit  Sponsors 
    No Plan activity this month

Finance 

Yr2    
Finance to continue review of any adjustments to Yr2  budget 
Finance to input adopted Yr2 budget into Banner 

Yr3   Finance to continue review of preliminary Yr3 budget sheet and new initiative funding requests

Yr2   Preliminary audit visit 

President’s Cabinet 
Yr2   President's Cabinet recommends Entrepreneurial Project Grant funding

Yr3   President's Cabinet reviews Yr3  budget and submits any further changes

Entrepreneurial Project Grant  Yr2   Campus group of 3‐5 members to continue review 2009‐2010 Entrepreneurial Project Grant applications

Assessment Council 

Yr1     
Assessment Council to review final Yr1 assessment plans using rubric.  Complete college‐
wide competency review 

Yr2   Assessment Council to review Yr2  assessment plan revisions using rubric 

Yr3   Assessment Council to review Yr3 assessment plan  using rubric

Sponsors  Yr2          
Final month for sponsors to approve LCCC budget and allocation 
for Yr2. 
All school districts will have taken action on LCCC budget 
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Appendix Chapter 3:  Challenges and Opportunities 

Summary aligned with Vision, Mission, and Value Statements 

Vision for Excellence at LCCC:  National prominence and academic excellence as a 
comprehensive community college. 

LCCC Mission:  Responding to the community by providing affordable, accessible, and high 
quality education. 

Values:  As a student-centered learning institution, Lehigh Carbon Community College values: 

Learning the development of foundational knowledge, critical thinking skills, and self-
awareness, that advance intellectual, ethical, and social responsibility. 

Student Development best practices that engage and challenge students; foster 
individual growth, leadership and service; and intentionally support holistic 
development. 

Instructional Excellence an environment of best practices that engages and challenges 
students, advances intellectual curiosity; fosters lifelong learning with quality teacher-
student contact and use of current technology. 

Diversity differences, open dialogue and increased understanding of diverse thoughts 
and experiences. 

Open Access opportunity for students to pursue learning in an environment that 
supports identification and achievement of goals within their ability. 

Partnerships relationships that provide innovative and entrepreneurial solutions to 
meet the demands of the community and region’s economic development and 
workforce needs. 

Employees contributions, capabilities, collegiality, teamwork and professional 
development of our employees. 

Continuous Improvement decision-making based on assessment, solid planning, and 
effective management of resources. 

During the development of the Strategic Plan, Academic Plan, and the Enrollment Plan and with 
continuing efforts, the College embarked on many initiatives to ensure the institutional 
mission, vision, and values  (Transformation: Strategic Plan Mid-Year Update January 2012).  
The College initiated several projects aligned with the value of learning: the development of 
foundational knowledge, critical thinking skills, and self-awareness that advance intellectual, 
ethical, and social responsibility.  The College, in an effort to better assist all students, with an 
emphasis on those at risk, empowered the new Associate Dean of Student Success to provide 
leadership for a First Year Experience (FYE) program.  Student  Assessment and Response Team 
(StART) project was implemented in August 2009 with 150 student cases managed.  A team of 
nine administrators and faculty attended a First Year Experience conference in Atlanta, GA in 
October 2010. Speakers were on the main campus in May 2011 to speak to the FYE experience 
(Committee Academic Standards minutes 101118). 
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In January 2012, Educational Support Services offered at Donley, Morgan, and Schnecksville 
sites a five-day workshop for returning adult students on various skills that are needed to help 
with student success at the college level.  The Social Sciences, Math, and Science Divisions 
continue to assess the general education competencies of diversity and critical thinking across 
all sections of various courses such as Introduction to Psychology.  Currently, both Introduction 
to Psychology and Introduction to Sociology sections are all being used to assess the 
competency of scientific reasoning.  The Mathematics Division assesses critical thinking across 
all sections of all math courses. 

The English division has been working on the development of curriculum structure for the 
English 100 developmental course.  Two English faculty were awarded an Innovative Project 
Grant by the college in 2011 (Committee Entrepreneurial Projects Grant Year End Report 2011-
12).  The two faculty members created five student modules that address the grammatical 
concepts that the weakest writers in developmental courses struggle to master; concepts that 
contributed to some students failing the Exit Exams and being required to retake the 
developmental course.  The modules were piloted in all English 100 courses for the spring 2012 
semester.  If successful, the English Division will vote to make the Modules a mandatory 
assignment for all English 100 students; increasing retention in developmental courses. 

Educational Support Services continues to offer support services to students in terms of 
tutoring in content specific areas as well with career and technical education skill development. 
Workshop presentations occurring within class and out of class for students, e.g. research 
paper writing, how to proofread/find your own errors, groovy grammar review, writing cool 
essays, writing anxiety, using MLA (Modern Language Association ) or APA (American 
Psychological Association) format, top secrets for understanding class assignments, e-mail 
etiquette in the workplace, and college success through writing. Disability Service Faculty offer 
faculty and staff workshops on ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) compliance in face-to-face 
and online courses.   

The strategic plan, academic plan, and enrollment plan all support the value of student 
development.  The College intentionally seeks to implement the best practices that engage and 
challenge students, foster individual growth, leadership and service, and intentionally support 
holistic development.   

There were several initiatives in program and processes that were developed by different 
departments of the Office of Student Services. In the AY 2009-2010, the College launched a 
behavior intervention team (BIT) model, dubbed StART Team (Student Assessment and 
Response Team) utilizing a centralized web-based reporting system for reporting, tracking and 
responding to concerning student behaviors. The StART mission is to maintain a healthy, safe 
learning environment for all members of the college community. The program was chaired by 
the Associate Dean of Student Success, a new position at the college and the Dean of Student 
Development.  The program is designed to assist students and address concerns before they 
reach crisis or emergency proportions; reports to the system are reviewed, investigated, and 
interventions determined enlisting the assistance of team members and other college 
employees as appropriate.  The program functioned for about two years with great success in 
addressing behavior concerns within and outside the classroom, on main campus and the sites. 
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Future plans include the development of a more proactive preventive component, open access 
to students for reporting concerning behavior, and review of operating protocol to maintain 
alignment with best practices and implications from civil court decisions 

In 2010, the college’s policy governing student conduct, The Rights, Freedoms and 
Responsibilities of Students was revised to shift from a legalistic disciplinary model to one of 
conduct responsibility and management.  The college recognized that legalistic disciplinary 
models or the ‘crushing of spirit’ upon which these systems depend, generally does not 
facilitate positive learning, nor encourage desire to engage more appropriately within the 
community, as the practices themselves appear contrary to the stated community values. 
Language within the policy and its procedures was reframed to clearly convey responsibility for 
actions in a manner that is respectful, developmentally sound, and inclusive of all members of 
the community (Rights Freedoms and Responsibilities of Students Policy approved by Trustees 
June 2010). 

The Dean of Student Development and Director of Student Life initiated the formation of a 
Student Leadership Council in 2011.  Council members are selected through an application and 
interview process.  Members are trained to serve as Conduct Board members, attend a full day 
leadership retreat, and complete special assignments as brought forth by the Dean.  In its first 
year, the Council focused its efforts on the development of recommendations for the creation 
of a financial literacy program for students.   In addition, the Council provided 
recommendations for the development of peer mentors programs, provided representation on 
Transforming Student Life Task Force, and is currently collaborating with Student Government 
Association (SGA) to plan a Fall 2012 ‘Success’ Conference open to all LCCC students.    

During AY 2010-2011, the College developed a more intentional, and comprehensive First Year 
Experience Program (FYE). Orientation program for new students, dubbed STAR (Student 
Transition, Advising, and Registration), was redesigned to include utilization of student peer 
mentors and academic program specific sessions, enabling new students to meet other 
students and faculty teaching in their majors. In 2011, the First Year Coordinating Council was 
appointed by the Vice President of Academic Services and Student Development, and chaired 
by the Associate Dean of Student Success.  The College sponsored a team of faculty and staff to 
attend a FYE national conference in Atlanta, Georgia. 

During the same time period, the Admissions Office began to implement a shift in operational 
model from one that largely focused on securing applicants to a model that focuses on 
establishing relationships with all prospects and “coaching” students to admission and through 
all of the steps required for successful enrollment.   

The Academic Advising Office began to move away from a generalist model to one in which 
advisors were assigned to specific academic programs grouped by common career skills.  
Several program initiatives that began in Academic Year (AY) 2012 included; admitted student 
receptions, multi-phased orientations to include advising and registration, prep for start of 
classes; a comprehensive peer mentor program to support students through all phases of 
advisement. Academic advisors will begin to work more closely with the teaching faculty of 
their assigned academic programs to collaboratively and actively assist students in their 
academic success, career and transfer preparation.  The first year seminar course has been 
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redesigned from a traditional semester long credit course model to one of portfolio 
development linked to coursework as appropriate. The Educational Support Center, Career 
Development Center and Student Life Office will play prominent roles creating co-curricular and 
extra-curricular activities that align with the programs of study and related career skills cluster 
to support the portfolio development.  

In 2011, the Career Services Office was renamed the Career Development Center to reflect the 
student developmental process of career direction and selection. The Career Development 
Center reframed its services, events and activities to more intentionally engage students in the 
developmental process of career direction and selection, obtaining workplace knowledge and 
expectations specific to the chosen field, developing and achieving goals and strategies to 
enhance employment, performance and success in their chosen career.   This is an intentional 
shift in orientation, by both approach and outcomes, from provision of services to facilitating 
student learning and development that is key to success in the workforce.   In 2012, the office 
established a Career Development Center Advisory Board consisting of area employers.   The 
purpose of this group is to advise the Center in how it might better prepare students for 
successful and gainful employment.   The Center will be a strong player in the new Fiscal Year 
(FY) framework, collaborating with Academic Advisors and faculty to provide extra and co-
curricular programs for the specific career areas  

Recognizing the need to continue program emphasis on assisting at-risk students, the College ‘s 
2012 application to the U.S. Department of Education Title III, Part A –Strengthening 
Institutions Program Grant was one of only fourteen projects funded.  The ~$2 million/5 year 
project, Creating a Culture for Student Success, proposed to (1) improve student success in 
developmental courses, (2) increase student retention and completion, and (3) expand the use 
of data to support decision making. (LCCC T3 Program, 2012).  The College is also aware of the 
need to plan and prepare for the returning veterans who will be in need of training and 
supports required for this specialized group of students. 

The Academic Plan has been instrumental in guiding the value of instructional excellence in an 
environment of best practices that engages and challenges students, advances intellectual 
curiosity, fosters lifelong learning with quality teacher-student contact and use of current 
technology.  Faculty driven, the Distance Education Department has supported a faculty driven 
committee to explore Quality Matters software and training to be used to assess the quality of 
online courses. As of fall 2012, eight faculty completed the peer review training and will begin 
to review the English 105 online workbook requirement and the PSY 140 course in the fall 2012 
semester. The committee intends to explore training in regards to course accessibility and ADA 
compliance (B.Swope.personal communication. 19 May 2012).  Following the end of a Title III 
grant in 2009, the Teaching Learning Center of Academic Services formed a committee, HIPPIE 
— High Impact Practices Promoting Intellectual Experiences to continue to move the college 
forward in the continual offerings of learning communities and implementation of other high 
impact practices that engage students in the classroom, facilitate college wide learning 
competencies, and aid in the retention of students.  The HIPPIE committee hosted a Diversity 
Day in spring 2011 that focused on workshops for faculty, staff, and students on topics related 
to issues in culture and diversity that would broaden the college’s efforts in helping students 
develop the college wide student learning competency, analyze diversity.  
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The College used the Community College Survey of Student Engagement (CCSSE) 2010 to assess 
student connection with college environment. In 2011, the Office of Institutional Research 
collected data from a follow-up independent survey that focused on support for learning. 
Results were shared with stakeholders to improve student engagement.   

Professional development continues on “First Tuesdays” and volunteer attendance has shown 
an increase in participation from all areas of the college including support staff. 

The college values diversity and offered many activities recognizing differences, promoting 
open dialogue and increased understanding of diverse thoughts and experiences. In 2010, the 
Student Life Office in partnership with Student Government Association (SGA), made a 
commitment to offer at least 2 programs per semester, designed to introduce and engage 
students in culturally diverse experiences, e.g. Native American Dance and History; Civil Rights 
Coffee House; African Acrobats; Chinese Lion Dance Demonstration; Irish-Celtic Dance, Music 
and History; Taiko Japanese Drummers, Caribbean Steel Drum Trio, and African Story-telling. 
The ESL Department continues to offer coffeehouse programs throughout the year presented 
by enrolled international students to learn of cultural customs, how these cultures may differ 
from the United States, and learn firsthand of the direct impact of these factors on College 
students. 

The College was accepted as institution to be awarded a Fulbright Scholar for the Academic 
Year, 2012-2013 to offer both the college and surrounding communities with diverse and 
cultural growth.  The scholar will align with the Study Abroad program. 

A Diversity subcommittee of Academic Standards was formed and sponsored a special event in 
celebration of human diversity in November 2012, guest speaker:, Executive Director for Equality PA.l  
The College’s mission is built upon the value of open access, an opportunity for students to 
pursue learning in an environment that supports identification and achievement of goals within 
their ability.  An important value associated with open access and not identified previously but 
worthy of discussion for inclusion is degree/goal completion.  For perhaps too long, the 
community college sector concentrated efforts on open access, working to create and promote 
pathways into college for everyone.  This in fact, is a core community college value.  While not 
suggesting its abandonment, the College must focus greater effort on success once inside the 
door and more intentionally support students’ progress to graduation.   If degree completion is 
more likely to lead to success, then what value does access alone bring?   To value both, the 
College must orient, adjust and align service design and delivery, teaching and learning 
strategies, policies and practices, and interactions with students in ways that more intentionally 
and consistently promote academic and career success.   The College’s development of the First 
Year framework is an excellent example of a commitment to this value.   Members of the First 
Year Experience council (FYE) reviewed data from the 2011 Student Risk Assessment Pilot 
Survey for the purpose of providing feedback to develop strategies to help students, faculty, 
and administration better meet the ever growing challenges and changing needs of College’s 
student body. 

During the summer 2011, the College hired a new Director of Admissions.  Several positions 
within this department were then filled with new hires as well.  The department recently 
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conducted a departmental SWOT (Strengths Weaknesses Opportunities and Threats) analysis of 
the department and then started the development of a strategic initiative to move the 
admissions department forward in bringing in new students on all sites.  The department has 
involved the entire college community in a collaborative approach to enrollment/admissions. 

 The Developmental Education committee also continues to explore how the College can open 
higher education opportunities and supports for underprepared students, e.g. completing 
remedial level courses within a learning community.  In January 2012, the College was awarded 
a 5-year, $600,000 grant from the National Science Foundation to provide scholarships to 
financially needy, high achieving, STEM field underrepresented students enrolled in one of the 
STEM majors. This project, entitled PASS Program — Pathway to Achievement for STEM 
Scholars will serve approximately 60 to 80 eligible students for scholarship awards of up to 
$5,000 per year to enroll in programs leading to employment in a STEM field or transfer to a 
STEM baccalaureate program.  The College was also awarded a 2012 ~$2 million five-year Title 
III Grant for the development of programs to  increase retention, increase completion, and 
increase the use of data to support decision making  that will assist in student development, 
academic standards, and in helping with student retention and degree/program of study 
completion. 

A pathways model was implemented for non-credit English Second Language (ESL) and General 
Education Development (GED) classes. The model initiates career awareness into the 
instructional program in which participants are exposed to programs at the College, visit the 
main campus of the college and Lehigh-Carbon Technical Institute (LCTI); and learn about skills 
and qualifications in high priority occupations while mapping a career plan for their future. 

Recognizing the increase of Spanish speaking students at the sites, financial aid marketing 
materials have been translated to Spanish.  The College is revitalizing Si Se Puede (Yes I Can) a 
bi-lingual financial aid publication to address the changing demographics of first generation 
college recruits in both the Allentown and northern county regions. Access to these materials 
and programs in Spanish will assist in parent support during the admissions process.  64.4% 
Hispanic student body in the Allentown School District (ASD Annual Report 2010-2011, p. 5). 
This population growth will offer an opportunity for the College to identify other services and 
supports for the academic success and career goals of this population. 

College partnerships build institutional strength. promote relationships, provide innovative and 
entrepreneurial solutions which meet the demands of the community and region’s economic 
development and workforce needs.  Numerous stakeholders with the college have been 
working closely with Bloomsburg University and Albright College to further bring opportunities 
for students to complete a Bachelor’s degree from LCCC sites following the completion of the 
Associate’s degree.  Bloomsburg University has been offering from the Morgan center a 
Bachelor’s degree in Education and is now expanding this opportunity to the main campus. 
Stakeholders from Lehigh Carbon Community College, Bloomsburg University, and Lehigh 
Career Technical Institute partnered in spring 2012 to create a Bachelor of Applied Sciences 
(BAS) in Technical Leadership.  This National Science Foundation funded project is the first of its 
kind in the PASSHE system and the second in the Commonwealth. LCCC students can apply 
technical education credits earned at LCTI and LCCC towards a baccalaureate degree from 
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Bloomsburg University.   Discussions with Albright College may also lead to the availability of a 
Bachelor’s degree in Business and in Applied Psychology at the Morgan center. 

In 2012, the Career Development Center (CDC) established a Career Development Center 
Advisory Board consisting of 10-15 carefully selected area employers who best represent the 
diversity of business/industry within the Lehigh Valley region. The purpose of this group is to 
advise the CDC in how it might better prepare students for successful and gainful employment, 
including development of workforce skills now commonly required: workplace ethics, aptitude 
and attitude, employer expectations of job applicants, and policies regarding current 
employees.  The Advisory Board’s recommendations will be incorporated in the Career 
Development Center’s service design and delivery, work with faculty to support students’ 
success in their specific academic programs, and support of students in accordance with the 
developing First Year framework.   

The High School Graduation Initiative (HSGI) grant, partnered the College’s student success 
coach with Allen and Dieruff High Schools. The grant offers one week career academies in 
manufacturing, healthcare, business, and professional services for 9th, 10th, 11th and 12th 
graders.  The partnership began in fall 2011 with William Allen High School students and in 
2012 were offered to Dieruff High School Students. The College’s dual enrollment high school 
program continues to gain momentum as noted in a 1415 student enrollment in fall 2011.   

Because of Pennsylvania Department of Education’s directives to ensure a 2+2+2 progression 
from high school career and technology education to postsecondary education, the College in 
2011 expanded partnerships with local career and technical schools to now include the Career 
and Technology Center of Lackawanna County, Career Institute of Technology, and the Monroe 
Career and Technical Institute. 

The Trade Adjustment Assistance Community College and Career Training (TAACCCT) grant 
bridges a student population, unemployed due to international outsourcing, from non-credit to 
credit programs in Health Information Technology, Green Energy, and Advanced 
manufacturing.   The College is aware of industry demanding accelerated, credentialed, and 
flexible training.  This is an opportunity the College is considering. 

The College recognizes the federal government’s emphasis on the role of community colleges 
to provide training for residents. One of the College President’s goals for 2011-12 is to partner 
with the Lehigh Valley Workforce Investment Board to determine the feasibility and funding for 
the operation of a Career Link Center on the College campus. 

The College values and supports the contributions, capabilities, collegiality, teamwork, and 
professional development of the employees.  The Teaching Learning Center (TLC) and Distance 
Education department continue to offer an array of workshops to faculty and staff. The 
Professional Development Committee continues to organize College-wide Development Day in 
October of each year to the entire college community by offering workshops that are 
professionally and personally informative and rewarding. The Office of Human Resources has 
also been offering workshops on various topics related to public safety measures, taking care of 
oneself physically and mentally as well as learning more about nursing homes and care for the 
elderly as many staff have family members that are experiencing age-related obstacles and 
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difficulties. President Snyder conducts Town Hall meetings each semester to offer information 
on the state of the college and allow faculty and staff to ask questions and/or voice their 
concerns.  In March 2011, the Disney Institute presented Inspiring Creativity.  Open to the 
entire college community the program was geared to help all employees explore risk-taking, 
innovative ideas to further the mission and vision of their respective departments and college 
constituents.  The Leadership Team 2011-2012 professional development activities aligned with 
the goals of the task force and were designed to facilitate the deeper understanding of issues 
related to enrollment management, increasing student financial literacy, ADA compliance, 
entrepreneurial spirit and competencies, and leadership skills. (Transformation Mid-Year 
Update-January 2012).   

 

The College embraces a process of continuous improvement based on assessment, solid 
planning, and effective management decision making. LCCC hosted the 4th Annual Assessment 
Summit, Closing the Loop: Improving Teaching and Learning, for Faculty of Eastern Pennsylvania 
Two-Year Colleges in April 2012.  (The Eastern Pennsylvania Two-Year Assessment Summit 
2012).  The College recognizes the attention of general education in reviews at other 
institutions.  During the AY 2011-2012, the Academic Standards and Curriculum committees 
focused attention on general education requirements and definition of general education 
electives.  The Academic Standards committee formed a General Education subcommittee for 
the AY 2012-13 to evaluate TAOC directives.   In AY 2011-12, the Curriculum Committee also 
developed a sub-committee to focus and direct specific curriculum concerns of course and 
program structure as related to General Education requirements and electives. (Committee 
Curriculum Year End Report 2011-12 and Committee Academic Standing Year End Report 2011-
12).  Divisions are moving towards more specific and detailed means for addressing and 
measuring outcomes so that assessments demonstrate a direct connection between course 
content/objectives and collegewide learning competencies. During program audits, divisions 
review assessments tools for clarity, meaningfulness, and measurability.  An opportunity of 
using a mixed method model of assessment between academic programs and Educational 
Support Services could be explored to identify relationships between the use of Educational 
Support Services and student success in academic programs or courses.  In 2010, the College 
activated a Portal to improve communication for students, faculty, and staff.  An updated and 
revamped webpage with an improved navigation system was launched in summer 2012 and 
focuses on the future student.  

In its vision, the College continually strives for national prominence.  From 2009-2011, the 
College hired Darryl Dawkins, NBA legend, to coach the men’s basketball team.  President 
Barack Obama visited the college in December 2009.  President Snyder was named 
Entrepreneurial President 2010 by the National Association for Community College 
Entreprenuership.  In 2010, Linny Fowler was honored as the Council for Resource 
Development’s Region III benefactor, an award given annually to a benefactor nominated by a 
member community college for their financial and leadership support of community colleges. 
The College hosted the 2011 Beacon Conference, student research competition for 2 year 
colleges.  The Fowler Center/Early Childhood Education program was deemed a Model of 
Success by the National Association of Community College Teacher Education Programs 
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(NACCTEP). The Schools and Homes in Education (SHINE) initiatives in the Carbon and Schuylkill 
Regions have received regional and national recognition as a model afterschool program which 
addresses the needs of at risk students through development of study skills, enrichment 
activities, and family support networks.  

Finally, the College is very cognizant of the financial constraints placed upon community 
colleges by the Commonwealth.  Future funding from local and state entities is uncertain.  To 
ensure financial stability, the College implements the Integrated Planning, Budgeting, and 
Assessment Cycle process to ensure vitality and future growth.  Through this process, College 
initiatives are supporting efforts to advance the college even during fiscally tight times.  In 
2010, the College’s Foundation developed a strategic plan which includes three goals: 
sustainability, visibility, and operations.  The Foundation is working on new ways to market 
philanthropy and communicate a focused development of Foundation scholarship programs for 
students. During the development of the Enrollment Management Plan (EMP), the College 
initiated the requirement of all faculty members to indicate the date of last attendance for 
students after week 10 of the semester to  more accurately reflect the monies to be sent back 
for students receiving financial aid and any subsequent repayment.  The change resulted in a 
savings of $200,000 to the college as well of a more accurate payback to the student (Academic 
Standards Committee minutes 101118).  The awarded 2012 U.S. Department of Education Title 
III, Part A –Strengthening Institutions Program Grant will further support these initiatives.  The 
second draft of the AY 2012-13 Academic Plan recommended an increase in the number of full-
time security personnel who are adequately equipped to ensure that there are multiple 
guards/officers on duty when the college, including the sites, is open.   In fall 2012, the College 
created a new position and hired the Director of Security with a focus on changing site security 
services to a behavior model rather than a punitive model.  Prior to the behavior model focus, 
Campus Security reported to the Vice President – Finance and Facilities.  It became apparent as 
the model was developed that a more appropriate reporting alignment would be with Student 
Development.  Security now reports to the Dean of Student Development. 

In May 2012, The Davison Group met with representatives from all leadership teams and 
reviewed the plans and outcomes. Response at the meeting noted that the next strategic 
planning should focus on “serve the customer” with the focus on including the civic 
engagement of the student in the strategic planning process so the student is more informed of 
the process and thus more competent. As a result of this recommendation, Student Services 
has initiated a Student Leadership Council for student representation in the strategic planning 
process beginning in AY 2012-13. Also noted was the recommendation that the College begin to 
establish an archived content management system so the history of the College will be readily 
accessible for future leadership.  This will assist the College in avoiding past practices that didn’t 
work as well as building upon the accomplishments (Leadership Team TDG report to LCCC 
120528). 
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Appendix - Finance Comparative Data Analysis
Lehigh Carbon County Community College
Comparitive Ratio Analysis 

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

FY2011-12 FY2010-11 FY2009-10 FY2008-09 FY2007-08 FY2006-07 FY2005-06 FY2004-05 FY2003-04 FY2002-03

Condensed Statement of Net Assets (w/o component units -  Foundation)
Current Assets 21,769,004      19,440,766      20,197,680      16,447,553      15,079,948      10,276,593      4,959,520        4,329,422   3,127,248   4,058,545   
Noncurrent Assets 55,084,794      55,739,816      52,845,147      39,288,801      37,043,775      36,552,944      19,024,126      19,841,221 19,997,294 20,064,007 

Total Assets 76,853,798      75,180,582      73,042,827      55,736,354      52,123,723      46,829,537      23,983,646      24,170,643 23,124,542 24,122,552 

Current Liabilities 7,118,948        7,181,405        7,736,589        5,546,841        6,406,675        6,139,368        3,908,760        6,931,883   5,849,217   4,859,155   
Noncurrent Liabilities 22,650,566 24,570,559      27,653,163      21,826,760      22,730,004      24,347,952      9,745,608        10,974,764 11,712,228 10,702,113 
Total Liabilities 29,769,514      31,751,964      35,389,752      27,373,601      29,136,679      30,487,320      13,654,368      17,906,647 17,561,445 15,561,268 

Net Assets 47,084,284      43,428,618      37,653,075      28,362,753      22,987,044      16,342,217      10,329,278      6,263,996   5,563,097   8,561,284   

Total 76,853,798      75,180,582      73,042,827      55,736,354      52,123,723      46,829,537      23,983,646      24,170,643 23,124,542 24,122,552 

Working Capital
Current Assets 21,769,004      19,440,766      20,197,680      16,447,553      15,079,948      10,276,593      4,959,520        4,329,422   3,127,248   4,058,545   
Less : Current Liabilities 7,118,948        7,181,405        7,736,589        5,546,841        6,406,675        6,139,368        3,908,760        6,931,883   5,849,217   4,859,155   
Working Capital 14,650,056      12,259,361      12,461,091      10,900,712      8,673,273        4,137,225        1,050,760        (2,602,461)  (2,721,969)  (800,610)     

Current Ratio (higher values indicate stronger financial position)
Current Assets 21,769,004      19,440,766      20,197,680      16,447,553      15,079,948      10,276,593      4,959,520        4,329,422   3,127,248   4,058,545   
Current Liabilities 7,118,948        7,181,405        7,736,589        5,546,841        6,406,675        6,139,368        3,908,760        6,931,883   5,849,217   4,859,155   
Ratio to 1 3.06                 2.71                 2.61                 2.97                 2.35                 1.67                 1.27                 0.62            0.53            0.84            

Cash to Current Assets (higher values indicate stronger financial position)
Cash and Cash Equivalents 19,077,159      14,107,824      13,048,378      9,005,809        10,742,940      7,838,097        2,955,062        2,720,653   1,043,181   1,730,973   
Current Assets 21,769,004      19,440,766      20,197,680      16,447,553      15,079,948      10,276,593      4,959,520        4,329,422   3,127,248   4,058,545   
Percentage 87.63% 72.57% 64.60% 54.75% 71.24% 76.27% 59.58% 62.84% 33.36% 42.65%

Capital Assets to Total Assets
Property Plant & Equipment, Net 53,397,305      52,240,152      43,932,676      37,108,408      31,432,769      22,619,392      18,560,732      19,363,324 19,517,128 19,524,851 
Total Assets 76,853,798      75,180,582      73,042,827      55,736,354      52,123,723      46,829,537      23,983,646      24,170,643 23,124,542 24,122,552 
Percentage 69.48% 69.49% 60.15% 66.58% 60.30% 48.30% 77.39% 80.11% 84.40% 80.94%

Net Assets to Total Assets (higher values indicate stronger financial position)
Net Assets 47,084,284      43,428,618      37,653,075      28,362,753      22,987,044      16,342,217      10,329,278      6,263,996   5,563,097   8,561,284   
Total Assets 76,853,798      75,180,582      73,042,827      55,736,354      52,123,723      46,829,537      23,983,646      24,170,643 23,124,542 24,122,552 
Percentage 61.26% 57.77% 51.55% 50.89% 44.10% 34.90% 43.07% 25.92% 24.06% 35.49%

Operating Activity
Total Revenues 45,783,846      50,374,094      53,593,088      48,042,216      48,008,751      45,213,541      42,088,261      35,964,394 35,565,818 29,983,020 
Total Expenses 42,128,180      44,598,551      44,302,766      42,666,507      41,363,924      39,200,602      38,022,979      35,263,495 36,370,226 30,212,200 
Increase In Net Assets 3,655,666        5,775,543        9,290,322        5,375,709        6,644,827        6,012,939        4,065,282        700,899      (804,408)     (229,180)     

Net Income Ratio (signifies managements ability to control costs)
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Lehigh Carbon County Community College
Comparitive Ratio Analysis 

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

FY2011-12 FY2010-11 FY2009-10 FY2008-09 FY2007-08 FY2006-07 FY2005-06 FY2004-05 FY2003-04 FY2002-03
Increase In Net Assets 3,655,666        5,775,543        9,290,322        5,375,709        6,644,827        6,012,939        4,065,282        700,899      (804,408)     (229,180)     
Total Revenues 45,783,846      50,374,094      53,593,088      48,042,216      48,008,751      45,213,541      42,088,261      35,964,394 35,565,818 29,983,020 
Percentage 7.98% 11.47% 17.33% 11.19% 13.84% 13.30% 9.66% 1.95% -2.26% -0.76%

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Interest Coverage (how many times a college can cover its annual interest obligation)
Change In Net Assets (Operating Income) 3,655,666        5,775,543        9,290,322        5,375,709        6,644,827        6,012,939        4,065,282        700,899      (804,408)     (229,180)     
Interest Expense 767,213           1,093,598        930,312           946,200           1,065,619        358,080           411,101           434,902      458,236      411,410      
Ratio to 1 4.76                 5.28                 9.99                 5.68                 6.24                 16.79               9.89                 1.61            (1.76)           (0.56)           
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Lehigh Carbon County Community College
Comparitive Ratio Analysis 

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

Lehigh
Carbon

FY2011-12 FY2010-11 FY2009-10 FY2008-09 FY2007-08 FY2006-07 FY2005-06 FY2004-05 FY2003-04 FY2002-03

Tuition and Fees to Total Revenues
Tuition and Fees, net of scholarships 18,740,848      19,902,176      20,271,158      17,156,332      16,886,243      15,939,676      15,414,897      13,464,107 13,111,103 10,265,105 

Total Operating Revenues 20,534,387      21,393,796      22,052,217      19,321,453      19,568,499      18,089,047      18,234,091      14,691,342 14,196,535 11,169,456 
Total Non-Operating Revenues 19,950,649      22,532,104      21,781,565      22,602,497      20,833,182      22,219,323      19,807,029      18,464,566 19,156,372 16,423,051 
Total Other Revenues 5,298,810        6,448,194        8,680,719        5,172,066        6,541,451        4,905,171        4,047,141        2,808,486   2,212,911   2,390,513   
Total Revenues 45,783,846      50,374,094      52,514,501      47,096,016      46,943,132      45,213,541      42,088,261      35,964,394 35,565,818 29,983,020 
Percentage 40.93% 39.51% 38.60% 36.43% 35.97% 35.25% 36.63% 37.44% 36.86% 34.24%

Operating Appropriations
Local 4,018,232        3,978,537        3,890,920        3,777,010        3,667,000        3,532,999        2,801,134        2,801,146   2,801,146   2,801,146   
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 12,977,389      14,375,716      14,390,119      14,393,759      13,251,070      12,382,369      12,448,857      10,750,414 9,961,493   8,203,587   

16,995,621      18,354,253      18,281,039      18,170,769      16,918,070      15,915,368      15,249,991      13,551,560 12,762,639 11,004,733 

Capital (Includes local) (Mandated) 4,903,667        4,819,433        4,523,200        5,172,066        6,541,451        3,400,247        3,706,168        2,535,614   2,007,929   1,793,513   
Appropriations 21,899,288      23,173,686      22,804,239      23,342,835      23,459,521      19,315,615      18,956,159      16,087,174 14,770,568 12,798,246 
Appropriations to Total Revenue 47.8% 46.0% 42.6% 48.6% 48.9% 42.7% 45.0% 44.7% 41.5% 42.7%

Tuition & Fees as % of Total Expenses
Tuition & Fees 18,740,848      19,902,176      20,271,158      17,156,332      16,886,243      15,939,676      15,414,897      13,464,107 13,111,103 10,265,105 
Total Expenses 42,128,180      44,598,551      44,302,766      42,666,507      41,363,924      39,200,602      38,022,979      35,263,495 36,370,226 30,212,200 
Percentage 44.49% 44.63% 45.76% 40.21% 40.82% 40.66% 40.54% 38.18% 36.05% 33.98%

Depreciation & Amortization Expenses 3,077,395        2,553,553        2,486,616        2,452,638        2,341,606        2,181,411        2,094,236        1,910,148   1,923,692   1,755,719   
Total Expenses 42,128,180      44,598,551      44,302,766      42,666,507      41,363,924      39,200,602      38,022,979      35,263,495 36,370,226 30,212,200 
Percentage 7.30% 5.73% 5.61% 5.75% 5.66% 5.56% 5.51% 5.42% 5.29% 5.81%

Interest Expenses 767,213           1,093,598        930,312           946,200           1,065,619        358,080           411,101           434,902      458,236      411,410      
Total Expenses 42,128,180      44,598,551      44,302,766      42,666,507      41,363,924      39,200,602      38,022,979      35,263,495 36,370,226 30,212,200 
Percentage of Interest Exp. to Total Expemses 1.82% 2.45% 2.10% 2.22% 2.58% 0.91% 1.08% 1.23% 1.26% 1.36%

Interest Income 104,228           155,643           254,802           357,964           715,343           218,870           117,688           48,705        29,472        50,812        
Total Revenues 45,783,846      50,374,094      53,593,088      48,042,216      48,008,751      45,213,541      42,088,261      35,964,394 35,565,818 29,983,020 
Percentage of Interest Inc. to Total Revenues 0.23% 0.31% 0.48% 0.75% 1.49% 0.48% 0.28% 0.14% 0.08% 0.17%

Foundation Value - Net Assets 11,779,391      11,795,027      11,479,220      11,137,359      10,221,703      9,415,066        9,383,053        9,245,969   8,103,101   6,470,700   
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Year Total
2011-12 47,084,284  
2010-11 43,428,618  
2009-10 37,653,075  
2008-09 28,362,753  
2007-08 22,987,044  

financial position.

Comparative Analysis - Net Assets
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012

Higher values indicate stronger 
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FY Total
2011-12 14,650,056          
2010-11 12,259,361          
2009-10 12,461,091          
2008-09 10,900,712          
2007-08 8,673,273            

Working Capital
Current Assets - Current Liabilities

 financial position.

Comparative Analysis - Working Capital
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012

Higher values indicate stronger
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FY Ratio
2011-12 3.06         
2010-11 2.71         
2009-10 2.61         
2008-09 2.97         
2007-08 2.35         

Current Ratio 
Current Assets -  Current Liabilities

Ratio of 1.5 to 2.0 is  considered 
 adequate to meet financial operating 
 requirements.

Comparative Analysis - Current Ratio
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012
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FY Ratio
2011-12 87.6%
2010-11 72.6%
2009-10 64.6%
2008-09 54.8%
2007-08 71.2%

Cash to Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents compared to 
 total Current Assets

 financial position.

Comparative Analysis - Cash Ratio 
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012

Higher values indicate stronger
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FY Total
2011-12 3,655,666        
2010-11 5,775,543        
2009-10 9,290,322        
2008-09 5,375,709        
2007-08 6,644,827        

Comparative Analysis - Annual Increase in Net Assets 
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012
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FY Ratio
2011-12 8.0%
2010-11 11.5%
2009-10 17.3%
2008-09 11.2%
2007-08 13.8%

Net Income Ratio 
Increase In Net Assets compared to
  Total Revenues

Net Income Ratio - Annual Net Assets  as a function of Total Revenues
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012
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FY Total
2011-12 104,228           
2010-11 155,643           
2009-10 254,802           
2008-09 357,964           
2007-08 715,343           

Comparative Analysis - Interest Income
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012
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FY Total
2011-12 11,779,391       
2010-11 11,795,027       
2009-10 11,479,220       
2008-09 11,137,359       
2007-08 10,221,703       

Comparative Analysis - Foundation Net Assets
Fiscal Years 2008 - 2012

10,000,000 

10,500,000 

11,000,000 

11,500,000 

12,000,000 

FY Foundation Net Assets

9,000,000 

9,500,000 

Page 11 of 11

90



Lehigh Carbon Community 

College 


Financial Statements 


June 30,2010 and 2009 


91



Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Table of Contents 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

Page 

Independent Auditors' Report 1 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 2 

Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Assets - Primary Institution 6 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Primary Institution 7 

Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Institution 8 

Statement of Net Assets - Component Unit 10 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Component Unit 11 

Notes to Financial Statements 12 

92



rparenteBeard 


Independent Auditors' Report 

. Board of Trustees 
Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Schnecksville, Pennsylvania 

We have audited the accdmpanying financial statements (as described in the table of contents) of 
Lehigh Carbon Community College (the "College") and its discretely presented component unit, as 
of and for the years ended' June 30, 2010 and 2009. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the College's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

'In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Lehigh Carbon Community College and of its discretely presented 
component unit as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, and the changes in their financial position and their 
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

The Management's Discussion and Analysis ("MD&A") on pages 2 through 5 is not a required part 
of the basic financial statements but is supplementary information required by the accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United · States of America. We have applied certain limited 
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of this supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it. 

Malvern, Pennsylvania 
November 30, 2010 

93



Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

This discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an overview of 
the College's financial activities for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. Management's 
Discussion and Analysis in conjunction with the financial statements immediately follow. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The Statement of Net Assets reflects the financial position ofthe College at June 30, 2010 and 
2009. The statement presents the various College assets, related liabilities and other. 
obligations, and the various categories of net assets. Net assets is an accounting concept 
defined as total assets less total liabilities, and as such, represents institutional equity or 
ownership in the total assets of the College. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets reflects the results of 
operations and other changes for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. The statement 
presents the various operating and non-operating revenues and expenses that reconcile the 
beginning n~t assets to the ending net assets amount which is shown on the Statement of Net 
Assets described above. 

The Statement of Cash Flows presents the inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents 
for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. The statement presents the various cash activities 
by type, reconciling the beginning cash and cash equivalents amount to the ending cash and 
cash equivalents amount, which is shown on the Statement of Net Assets described above. In 
addition, this statement reconciles cash flows from operating activities to operating revenues on 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets described above. 

Financial Highlights and Analysis 

Consistent with its mission of "responding to the community with high quality, affordable, and 
accessible education," the College offers educational, career and lifelong learning opportunities 
through innovative partnerships which enhance the lives of residents in Lehigh, Carbon and the 
neighboring counties. Major funding sources supporting all functions of the College include 
tuition and fees, local sponsor appropriations and the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
appropriation. 

Credit enrollment in fiscal year 2009-2010 increased 11.4% with 6,088 full-time equivalent 
students (FTEs) as compared to 5,465 in fiscal year 2008-2009. Non-credit enrollment 
increased 36.1 % over the prior fiscal year with 1,539 FTEs in fiscal year 2009-2010. Over the 
past three years, credit enrollment has increased 19.3% while non-credit enrollment has 
increased 12.3% over the three year period. 

Overall the net assets of the College increased by $9,290,322 in fiscal year 2009-2010 to a 
cumulative total net assets of $37,653,075. The cumulative net assets are comprised of 
investment in capital assets of $22,378,150, restricted net assets of $479,146 and unrestricted 
net assets 01$14,795,779. 

Although the College's unrestricted netassets are not subject to externally imposed restrictions, 
. $14,787,700 of the College's $14,795,779 of unrestricted net· assets are designated for 
purposes to fulfill its various fiduciary responsibilities, including maintaining reserves for capital 
and operating projects and reserves for future operations. 

2 
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lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

Total College revenues increased $5,550,800 (11.6%). Student tuition. and fee revenues· 
increased by $3,114,800 (18.2%) due to the credit enrollment growth of 11.4% and a $3.00 per 
credit hour increase in the sponsor credit tuition rate, a $6.00 per credit hour increase in the 
non-sponsor credit tuition rate, and a $9.00 per credit hour increase in the out-ot-state credit 
tuition rate. The non-credit tuition and fee revenue has increased by 28.6% over the prior fiscal 
year. The Commonwealth appropriation for operating and capital decreased $281,500 due to a 
decrease incapital funding for the debt service on two loans that were paid off in 2008-2009 
and Commonwealth special project funding being eliminated in 2009-2010. The Commonwealth 
operating appropriation remained the same as the prior fiscal year. The local sponsor 
appropriation increased $211,500 due to an overall increase of 3.6% in the sponsor operating 
and capital appropriation. Federal, State and Local grants and contracts decreased $695,700 
due to a decrease in Commonwealth grants in fiscal year 2009-2010. Capital grants and 
contracts increased $3,688,900 due to the outside funding received for the construction of the 
new Community Services Center. Other revenues decreased by $487,200. 

Total expenses increased by $1,636,300 (3.8%). Employee. compensation and benefits 
expenses increased $1,893,000 from the prior fiscal year. Compensation costs increased 
$1,611,800 due to salary increases and an increase in adjunct faculty wages as the number of 
courses increased due to the enrollment increase. Employee benefit expenses increased by 
$281,200 as health care premium costs increased slightly over the prior fiscal year and 
employer taxes increased as wages increased. 

Condensed Statement of Net Assets 

The following is a Condensed Statement of Net Assets as of June 30,2010 and 2009. 

2010 2009 

Assets 
Current assets $ 20,197,680 $ 16,447,553 
Non-current assets 52,845,147 39,288,801 

Total assets $ 73,042,827 $ 55,736,354 .. 

Liabilities and net assets 
Current liabilities $ 7,736,589 $ 5,546,841 
Non-current liabilities 27,653,163 21,826,760 

Total liabilities 35,389,752 27,373,601 

Net Assets 
Investment in capital assets 22,378,150 15,311,477 
Unrestricted 14,795,779 12,578,360 
Restricted 479,146 472,916 

Total net assets 37,653,075 28,362,753 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 73,042,827 $ 55,736,354 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) \ 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 

The condensed financial information below highlights the main categories of the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Operating revenues include tuition and fees, 
net of scholarship discounts and allowances. The construction and acquisition of capital assets, 
although budgeted and tracked as an expenditure in the accounting system, are not reflected as 
an expense in these statements. Rather, such transactions are reported as an asset with the 
systematic allocation of the costs expensed over the useful life of the asset acquired. The 
College shows· an operating loss as a result of the requirements that two of the three main 
revenue sources, local sponsor appropriation and state appropriations, are reported as non
operating revenues. Depreciation expense is reported as an operating expense. The College 
does not budget fordepreciation expense. For a description of the difference between operating 
and non-operating, please refer to the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Note 1 to the 
basicfinancial statements. 

2010 2009 

Operating revenues: 
Tuition and fees $ 20,271,158 $ 17,156,332 
Auxiliary services 662,719 573,074 
Other 1,118,340 1,592,047 

Non-operating revenues: 
Commonwealth and local sponsor appropriations 22,804,239 22,874,230 
Government/local grants and contracts 4,324,311 5,019,964 
Capital grants and contracts 4,157,519 468,605 
Investment income 254,802 357,964 

Total revenues 53,593,088 48,042,216 

Operating expenses: 
Educational and general 40,554,974 39,095,330 
Depreciation and amortization 2,486,616 2,452,638 
loss on abandonment of capital assets 148,275 
Auxiliary services 182,589 172,339 

Non-operating expenses: 
Interest on indebtness 930,312 946,200 

Total expenses 44,302,766 42,666,507 

Changes in net assets 9,290,322 5,375,709 

Net assets, beginning 28,362,753 22,987,044 

Net assets, ending $ 37,653,075 $ 28,362,753 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussi.on and Analysis 
(Unaudited) . 

Debt Administration 

In June of 2010 the College issued $8,000,000 of bonds, series of 2010. The proceeds of the 
bonds will be used to finance the construction of the new athletic fields and renovations to 
Berrier Hall that houses the College's physical education classes, athletic programs and a 
fitness center. 

At June 30, 2010, the College had four debt issues outstanding; three general obligation bond 
issues totaling $27,355,000 and a term loan totaling $885,741. The debt issues are funded from 
the Commonwealth capital appropriation, local sponsor capital appropriation and the College 
capital funds. The fiscal year 2009-2010 debt payments were funded from the following sources: 

1) 50.0% from the Commonwealth appropriation 

2) 48.8% from the local sponsor capital appropriation 

3) 1.2% from the College capital funds 


. Additional information on the College's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 to the basic 
financial statements. 

Current Factors Having Probable Future Financial Significance 

The Fall 2010 semester enrollment has increased 1.5% over Fall· 2009. The College is 
expecting the Spring and Summer enrollment to increase at least 1.5%. Any increase in growth 
will have a positive impact of the College's financial situation as the 2010-2011 budget was 
based on the projected 2009-2010 enrollment and the actual enrollment exceeded the 
projection. The Fall 2010 non-credit tuition and fee revenue has increased significantly through 
October 2010 over the same period the prior year. Although there is an increase through 
October, expectations are that non-credit programs will remain consistent with the prior fiscal 
year. 

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's operating appropriation for fiscal year 2010-2011 
remained the same as the prior fiscal year. The Commonwealth operating appropriation for 
2009-2010 and 2010-2011 includes Federal Stimulus funds of $1,244,000. The Federal 
Stimulus funding currently will not be available to the Commonwealth in future years. If the· 
Commonwealth continues to experience a budget crisis in future fiscal years there is a concern 
that the operating appropriation could decrease significantly and have a negative impact of 
College finances. The College will closely monitor this situation. 

The Local Sponsor appropriation for fiscal year 2010-2011 increased 2.3% over the prior fiscal 
year appropriation. The 2011-2012 increase is expected to be only 1.0%. 

Capital appropriations for the Commonwealth and the Local Sponsors are expected to remain 
constant over the next several years. Any future decreases in the capital appropriations will 
have a negative impact on the operations of the College as the College may need to fund from 
operations any reduction in the capital appropriations. 

Summary 

This discussion and analysis is designed to provide a general overview of Lehigh Carbon 
Community College's finances for all those with an interest in such matters. The College is 
proud of the affordable, high-quality educational programs and services the College offers to our 
communities. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Net Assets - Primary Institution 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2010 2009 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1'3,048,378 $ 9,005,809 
Certificates of deposit 3,028,497 5,075,935 
Accounts receivable, students and other, net 1,021,198 963,737 
Accounts receivable, grants 2,522,349 727,665· 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 577,258 674,407 

Total current assets 20,197,680 ' 16,447,553 

Noncurrent Assets 
Bond proceeds available for campus construction 8,074,479 1,494,722 

Student loans receivable, net 421,267 423,121 

Capital assets, net 43,932,676 37,108,408 

Deferred charges 416,725 262,550 


Total other assets 52,845,147 39,288,801 

Total assets $ 73,042,827 $ 55,736,354 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Notes payable, current portion $ 2,267,024 $ 1,936,858 
Capital lease obligation, current portion 636,815 492,628 
Accounts payable 2,381,172 845,564 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,469,383 1,243,248 
Accrued interest payable 183,976 152,735 
Deferred revenue 620,411 653,684 
Accrued settlements 177,808 222,124 

Total current liabilities 7,736,589 5,546,841 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Accrued settlements 549,648 702,044 
Notes payable, less current portion 26,189,984 20,412,432 
Capital lease obligation, less current portion 913,531 712,284 

Total noncurrent liabilities 27,653,163 21,826,760 

Total liabilities 35,389,752 27,373,601 

.Net Assets 
Unrestricted 14,795,779 12,578,360 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 22,378,150 15,311,477 
Permanently restricted 479,146 472,916 

Total net assets 37,653,075 28,362,753 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 73,042,827 $ 55,736,354 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Hevenues, Expenses,and Changes in Net Assets- Primary Institution. 
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 . 

2010 2009 

Operating Revenue 
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowance 

of $4,507,805 in 2010 and 3,700,733 in 2009 
Auxiliary enterprises 
Other operating revenues 

$ 20,271,158 
662,719 

1,118,340 

$ 17,156,332 
573,074 

1,592,047 

Total operating revenues 22,052,217 19,321,453 

Operating Expenses 
Educational and general: 

Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Depreciation and amortization 

Auxiliary services 

15,972,239 
4,805,037 
4,514,917 
9,767,247 
5,495,534 
2,486,616 

182,589 

14,469,101 
5,081,171 
4,160,816 
9,730,725 
5,653,517 
2,452,638 

172,339 

Total operating expenses 43,224,179 41,720,307 

Operating loss (21,171,962) (22,398,854) 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Appropriations: 

Local 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania  ARRA 

Federal grants and contracts 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania grant and contracts 
Local grants and contracts 
Investment income 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Interest on indebtednes,s 

3,890,920 
13,145,714 

1,244,405 
3,823,290 

253,344 
247,677 
254,802 

(148,275) 
~930,3122 

3,777,010 
14,393,759 

3,954,747 
795,454 
269,763 
357,964 

~946,2002 

Total non-operating revenues 21,781,565 22,602,497 

Income before other revenues 609,603 203,643 

Other Revenues 
Capital appropriations: 

Local 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

Capital grants and contracts 

2,226,212 
2,296,988 
4,157,519 

2,128,580 
2,574,881 

468,605 

Total other revenues 8,680,719 5,172,066 

Increase in net assets 9,290,322 5,375,709 

Net Assets, Beginning 28,362,753 22,987,044 

Net Assets, Ending $ 37,653,075 $ 28,362,753 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Institution 
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2010 2009 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Student tuition and fees 
Payments to employees 
Payments for benefits 
Payments to suppliers and utilities 
Auxiliary services 
Other receipts 

$ 20,182,278 
(21,918,022) 

(6,099,713) 
(10,860,936) 

662,719 
1,118,340 

$ 17,764,225 

(19,278,736) 
(5,547,242) 

(16,187,064) 

573,074 
1,598,212 

Net cash used in operating activities (16,.915,334) (21,077,531 ) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Local appropriations 
Commonwealth appropriations 
Grants and contracts for other than capital purposes 

3,890,920 
14,390,119 
4,324,311 

3,777,010 
14,393,759 
5,051,269 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 22,605,350 23,222,038 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Local and commonwealth capital appropriations 
Capital grants and contracts 
Purchases of capital assets 
Proceeds from capital debt 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 
Payments on capital lease obligation 
Payments on accrued settlement 

4,523,200 
2,362,835 

(8,354,515) 

7,866,220 

(1,932,143) 

(899,071) 
(739,744) 
(196,712) 

4,703,461 

583,605 
(7,520,605) 

1,250,000 

(2,041,995) 
(951,987) 

(476,500) 
(127,128) 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing 
activities 2,630,070 (4,581,149) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
(Increase) decrease in bond funds available 

for campus construction 
Net (purchases) redemptions of certificiates of deposit 
Proceeds from maturities of investments 
Interest on investments 

(6,579,757) 

2,047,438 

254,802 

2,754,866 

(3,094,277) 

680,958 

357,964 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (4,277,517) 699,511 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,042,569 (1,737,131) 

Cash and CashEquivalents, Beginning 9,005,809 10,742,940 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 13,048,378 $ 9,005,809 

See notes to financial statements 
8 100



Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Institution 
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2010 2009 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Used in Operating Activities 

Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used in operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Bad debt expense 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid and other current assets 
Student loans receivable 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

$ (21,171,962) 

2,486,616 
297,070 

(354,531 ) 
97,149 

1,854 
1,535,608 

226,135 

(33,273) 

$ (22,398,854) 

2,452,638 
308,794 

(358,432) 
(107,126) 

(25,350) 
(889,071) 

41,766 

(101,896) 

Net cash used in operating activities $ (16,915,334) $ (21,077,531) 

Supplementary Disclosure of Noncash Capital, Financing Activity 
Capital leases $ 1,085,178 $ 587,533 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community Colleg.e 
Statement of Net Assets - Component Unit 
Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

Assets 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Accounts receivable 

Promise to give 

Prepaid expenses 


Total current assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Promise to give 

Land and buildings, net 


Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 

Unrestricted, designated 

Temporarily restricted 

Permanently restricted 


Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2010 2009 

$ 1,887,732 
1,534,527 

10,000 
1,034,299 

700 

4,467,258 

$ 1,644,727 
1,091,275 

734,935 
2,200 

3,473,137 

$ 

1,082,274 
6,028,981 

7,111,255 

11,578,513 $ 

1,543,638 
6,120,584 

7,664,222 

11,137,359 

$ 99,293 $ 81,158 

$ 

6,606,954 
2,543,946 

823,784 
1,504,536 

11,479,220 

11,578,513 $ 

6,980,303 
2,037,803 

593,412 
1,444,683 

11,056,201 

11,137,359 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Component Unit 
Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation . 
Years Ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2010 
Temporarily Permanently 

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues, Gains and Other Support 
Contributions $ 239,662 $ 356,095 $ 52,703 $ 648,460 
Rental income 502,531 502,531 
Investment return 133,827 6,699 7,150 147,676 
Other income 782 782 
Net assets released from restrictions, 

satisfaction of program restrictions 132,422 (132,422) 

Total revenues and other support 1,009,224 230,372 59,853 1,299,449 

Expenses 
Program services 673,360 673,360 
Supportive services: 

Management and general 127,980 127,980 
Fundraising 75,090 75,090 

Total expenses 876,430 876,430 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenses 132,794 230,372 59,853 423,019 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 9,018,106 593,412 1,444,683 11,056,201 

Net Assets, End of Year $ 9,150,900 $ 823,784 $ 1,504,536 $ 11,479,220 

Unrestricted 

2009 
Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted Total 

$ 32,209 
500,713 
(66,577) 
15,840 

$ 12,587 $ 1,444,683 $ 1,489,479 
500,713 
(66,577) 
15,840 

1,540,609 (1,540,609) 

2,022,794 (1,528,022) 1,444,683 1,939,455 

771,441 771,441 

118,364 
121,255 

118,364 
121,255 

1,011,060 1,011,060 

1,011,734 (1,528,022) 1,444,683 928,395 

8,006,372 2,121,434 10,127,806 

$ 9,018,106 $ 593,412 $ 1,444,683 $ 11,056,201 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financfal Statements 
June 30,.2010 and 2009 

1. Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity 

Lehigh Carbon Community College (the "College") was founded in response to a need for a 
two-year collegiate institution to serve citizens within the· Lehigh and Carbon County area of 
Pennsylvania who would benefit from an experience in higher education. The Board of Trustees 
is the College's governing body, which establishes the policies and procedures by which the 
College is governed. The College is funded through a diversified financial support system 
consisting of local school districts, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania; and the students. 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, an amendment to GASB 14, 
the College has determined that the Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation (the 
"Foundation") should be included in the College's financial statements as a discretely presented 
component unit. A component unit is a legally separate organization for which the primary 
institution is financially accountable or closely related. 

Under Section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Foundation is a legally separate tax
exempt component unit of the College. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising 
organization to supplement the resources that are available to the College in support of its 
programs. Although the College does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the 
Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds and invests 
are restricted to the activities of the College by the donors. Since these restricted resources held 
by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundation is 
considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College's financial 
statements as of June 30, 2010 and 2009. 

Complete financial statements for the Foundation may be obtained at the College's 
administrativ,e office. 

The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (UFASB") accounting standards codification. As such, certain revenue 
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition 
criteria and presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation's 
financial information in the College's financial reporting entity for these differences. 

2. Summary of Signmcant Accounting Policies 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

The College's financial statements have been presented using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as presented by the GASB. 
Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

The College functions as a business type activity, as defined by GASB. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30,2010 and 2009 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the College's financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term highly liquid investments readily 
converted to cash with original maturities of three months or less. The College maintains its 
cash accounts in various commercial banks. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation to $250,000. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fees charged to current and former students, or 
third parties, amounts due from federal and state governments in connection with 
reimbursements of allowable expenditures made pursuant to grants and contracts and other 
miscellaneous sources. 

Accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value. Accounts are written off when they 
are determined to be uncollectible based upon management's assessment of individual 
accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based upon the College's 
historical losses and periodic review of individual accounts. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts was approximately $107,000 and $141,000 as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. 

Capital Assets , 

Capital assets are stated at cost or at fair market value at date of donation if received by gift. 
The College provides for depreciation using the straight-line· method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets as follows: 

Buildings 30 - 50 
Furniture 10 - 12 
Equipment 7 -10 
Computer equipment 3-5 
Library books 10 
Vehicles 5-8 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2. Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The College capitalizes assets with a useful life in excess of one year and an original cost 
exceeding $4,000. 

At each statement of financial position date, management evaluates whether any property 
and equipment have been impaired. The College made no adjustments to carrying values of 
property and equipment during the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. 

Deferred Financing Costs 

Costs incurred in connection with debt 'financing are deferred and amortized over the term of 
the related debt using the straight-line method, which approximates the interest method. 
Amortization expense was $1 9,466 and $20,139 in 2010 and 2009, respectively. 

Compensated Absences 

Liability for compensated absences (unused vacation leave) is accounted for in accordance 
with the provisions of GABS Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, 
and, accordingly, the liability for employees' rights to receive compensation for future 
absences is recorded as a liability in the statement of net assets. 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenues include: (1) amounts received for tuition and fees prior to the end of the 
fiscal year that are related to the subsequent fiscal year and (2) amounts received from 
grant and contract sponsors that have not been earned. 

Deferred Cost of Refunding 

The College has deferred the difference between the reacquisition price (the amount 
deposited into escrow to payoff the notes) and the net carrying amount of previously 
refunded debt. This deferred cost of refunding is being amortized into interest expense on a 
straight-line basis over the shorter ·of the life of the new and old bonds. The unamortized 
deferred costs of refunding are reported as a reduction of the outstanding bonds payable. 

Net Assets 

The College maintains the following net asset classifications: 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principle balances of 
debt, plus· restricted cash, attributable to the acquisition, construction, repair or 
improvement of those assets. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Unrestricted 

All otHer categories of net assets. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific 
purposes by the College's Board of Trustees .. 

WHen both restricted and unrestricted assets are available for expenditure, the decision as 
to which assets are used first is left to the discretion of the College. 

Classification of Revenues 

The College has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating. Operating 
revenue include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such as (a) 
student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances and (b) sales and 
services of auxiliary enterprises. Nonoperating revenue includes transactions related to 
capital and financing activities, noncapital financing activities, investing activities and 
activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange transactions. Nonoperating 
revenues include such items as (a) local and state appropriations, (b) most Federal, state, 
and local grants and contracts, (c) gifts and contributions and (d) investment income. 

Tuition Revenue 

Tuition revenue is recognized when instruction is provided. A receivable is recognized when 
a student application is processed and an invoice submitted, with revenue recognition 
deferred until the instruction starts. 

Scholarship Discounts and Allowances· 

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net 
of scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses and 
changes in net assets. Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between 
the stated charge for goods and services provided by the College and the amount that is 
paid by students and/or third parties making payments on students' behalf. Certain 
governmental grants are recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the 
College's financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to 
satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a scholarship 
discount and allowance. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

2.. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Income Taxes 

The College is exempt from federal and state income taxes as it is essentially a potential 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Foundation is exempt from taxation 
pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c). 

Risk Management 

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and 
natural disasters. The College purchases commercial insurance coverage for general 
liability, property and casualty, workers' compensation, environmental and antitrust liabilities, 
and certain employee health benefits. 

Unemployment Compensation Fund 

The College has elected to use the direct reimbursement method of paying for any 
unemployment compensation claims charged to it. In order to cover future Giaims, the 
College has established an unemployment compensation liability reserve account included· 
in other liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

AdvertiSing 

Advertising expenses are recorded as incurred and were approximately $511,000 and 
$566·,000 in 2010 and 2009, respectIvely 

Subsequent Events 

The College has evaluated subsequent events through November 30, 2010, which is the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Reclassifications 

Certain accounts in the 2009 financial statements have been reclassified for comparative 
purposes to conform with the presentation in the 2010 financial statements. 
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lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

3. 	 Cash, Certificates of Deposit and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The College follows Section 1706 of the County Code of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania for investment of College funds. As such, the College is authorized to invest 
its funds in the following: 

• 	 United States Treasury Bills 

• 	 Short-term obligations of the United States government or its agencies and 
instrumentalities. 

• 	 Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits, other than certificates of deposit, or share 
accounts of institutions having their principal place of business in the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania and insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other 
like insurance. 

• 	 Obligations of the United States of America or any of its agencies or instrumentalities 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States, the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit 
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or of any political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the 
full faith and credit of the political subdivision. 

• 	 Shares of an investment company registered under the Investment Company Act of 
1940, whose shares are registered under the Securities Act of 1933. 

• 	 Certificates of deposit purchased from institutions having their principal place of 
business in or outside the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania that are insured by the FDIC 
or other like insurance. For any amounts in excess of the insured maximum, such 
deposits shall be collateralized by a pledge or assignment of assets pursuant to 
Act No. 72 of the General Assembly. Certificate of deposits may not exceed 20% of a 
bank's total capital surplus or 20% of a savings and loan's or savings bank's assets net 
of its liabilities. 

• 	 Commercial paper and prime commercial paper meeting certain requirements. 

• 	 Repurchase agreements that are fully collateralized by obligations of the United States 
of America. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

3. Cash, Certificates of Deposit and Investments (Continued) 

The carrying amount of the College's deposits was $24,151,354 and $15,576,466 as of 
June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively" including restricted cash of $8,074,479 and 
$1,494,722 as of June 30 2010 and 2009, respectively. The bank balance totaled 
$24,573,426 and $16,339,343 as of June30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The difference 
represents outstanding checks payable and normal reconciling items. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the College's deposits may 
not be returned to it. The College does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 
Commonwealth of PenilsylvaniaAct 72 of 1972, as amended, allows banking institutions to 
satisfy the collateralization requirement by pooling eligible investments to cover public funds 
on deposit in excess of federal insurance. Such pooled collateral is pledged with the 
financial institutions' trust departments. 

The balance of the College's cash deposits is categorized as follows to give an indication of 
the level of risk assumed by the College at year end. 

2010 2009 

Insured $ 1,141,238 $ 2,390,047 
Collateralized, collateral held by pledging banks trust 

department not in the College's name 15,357,709 12,454,574 

$ 16,498,947 $ 14,844,621 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the College will not be able to recover the value of its investments of collateral 
securities that are in the posseSSion of an outside party. 

Bond proceeds available for campus construction represent restricted funds held by First 
Niagara Bank, N.A., State Public School Building Authority and The Bank of New York, (the 
trustees), under the terms of various bond indentures. Bond proceeds available for campus 
construction are carried in the financial statements at fair value and consist of short-term 
investments guaranteed by the U.S. Government. As of June30, 2009 and 2008, bond 
proceeds available for campus construction. 

The College invests in the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT), 
which is an external governmental investment and money market pool. The purpose of the 
pool is to allow local governmental units to maximize investment potential through cash 
pooling while providing security and liquidity. Pool participants are allocated a pro-rata share 
of each investment purchased by the pool. PLiGIT's investment policies are consistent with 
the investment policies of its participants. The investments of the pool serve as collateral 
and are held in safekeeping by the pool's investment custodian. As of June 30, 2010 and 
2009, $632 and $632, respectively, was included in cash and cash equivalents from PLGIT. 

PLGIT is governed by a Board of Trustees who is resp0nE;ible for the overall management of 
the Trust, including the formulation and implementation of investment policies and the 
oversight of the Trust's investment advisor and its custodians. The PLGIT pool is not SEC 
regulated. The fair value of the College's position in the PLGIT pool is the same as the value 
of the pool shares. The College's investment in PLGIT has been rated AAA, the highest 
rating available, by Standard and Poor's, an independent investment rating company. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

3. Cash, Certificates of· Deposit and Investments (Continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The College does not have a formal investlllent policy that limits the amount invested in an 
individual insurer. 

As required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 40, the College's 
investment In external investment pools such as PLGIT and investments in mutual funds 
such as the First Niagara Treasury Money Market are excluded from the concentration of 
credit risk disclosure above. 

4. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable represent amounts due for tuition fees from currently enrolled and former 
students and grants from other entities. The College extends unsecured credit to students and 
other entities in connection with their studies and other educational services provided. Accounts 
receivable consist of the following at June 30, 2010 and 2009: 

2010 2009 

Accounts receivable, student and other $ 1,127,869 $ 1,104,522 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (106,671 ) (140,785) 

1,021,198 963,737 
Accounts receivable, grants 2,522,349 727,665 

$ 3,543,547 $ 1,691,402 

5. Capital Assets, Net 

Capital asset of the College as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 consisted of the following: 

2010 2009 

Land and land improvements 
Building and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Computer equipment 
Equipment under capital lease 
Student center 
Library books 
Vehicles 
Construction in progress 

$ 3,943,433 
38,900,496 
7,522,145 
4,795,091 
3,597,919 
3,163,672 
1,256,426 

125,695 
8,031,271 

$ 3,206,689 
38,920,121 
11,096,360 
5,416,963 
2,512,742 
3,165,565 
1,220,609 

183,009 
768,174 

Accumulated depreciation 
71,336,148 

(27,403,472) 
66,490,232 

(29,381,824) 

$ 43,932,676 $ 37,108,408 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

5. Capital Assets, Net (Continued) 

Depreciation expense for the· years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was $2,467,150 and 
$2,432,499, respectively. As of June 30, 2010, the College has committed to approximately 
$6,400,000 of additionalcapital expenditures related to the above construction in progress. ' 

6. Notes Payable 

Notes payable as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 consists of the following: 

2010 2009 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2010, evidencing the 
College's obligation to pay the required debt service 
on the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Public 
School Building Authority Bonds, Series of 2010, due 
serially through November 1, 2030 at interest rates 
ranging from 0.50% to 5.00% $ 8,000,000 $ 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2007, evidencing the 
College's obligationto pay the required debt service 
on the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Public 
School Building Authority Bonds, Series of 2007, due 
serially through November 1, 2026 at interest rates 
ranging from 3.625% to 5.00% 16,800,000 18,220,000 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2002, evidencing the 
College's obligation to pay the required debt service 
on the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Public 
School Building Authority Bonds, Series of 2002, due 
serially through November 1, 2026 at interest rates 
ranging from 2.50% to 4.30% 2,555,000 2,825,000 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2008, interest at 
2.0%, payments due semiannually through 
November 1, 2013 885,741 1,127,897 

28,240,741 22,172,897 
Unamortized premium on notes payable 301,758 273,548 
Deferred cost of refunding (85,491) (97,155) 

$ 28,457,008 $ 22,349,290 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

6. Notes Payable (Continued) 

All of the above obligations require the College to pledge as collateral its unrestricted gross 
revenues not previously pledged. . 

The aggregate future principal payments on the notes payable are as fOllows: 

Years ending June 30: 

2011 $ 2,267,024 

2012 2,416,961 

2013 2,492,053 

2014 2,619,703 

2015 1,755,000 

Thereafter 16,690,000 


$ 28,240,741 

7. Capital Lease Obligations 

The College has entered into lease agreements for equipment under a noncancelable leases 
that are classified as capital leases. The principal balance due under capital leases amounted to 
$1,550,346 and $1,204,912 as of June 30,2010 and 2009, respectively. Future minimum lease 
payments under capital leases are as follows: 

Years ending June 30: 

2011 $ 694,481 

2012 510,989 

2013 268,228 

2014 182,135 


1,655,833 
Less amounts representing interest (105,487) 

Present value of net minimum lease payments 1,550,346 
Portion reflected as current liability (636,815) 

$ 913,531 

The cost of equipment under capital leases is $3,597,919 and $2,512,742, respectively, as of 
June 30, 2010 and 2009.· Accumulated depreciation for equipment under capital leases is 
$2,324,056 and $1,583,842 as of June 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Depreciation for 
equipment under capital leases is included with depreciation expense in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

8. Operating Leases 

The College has entered into numerous operating lease agreements for the rental of classroom 
space and equipment. Future minimum annual rentals are as follows: 

Years ending June 30: 
2011 $ 1,561,980 
2012 1,302,424 
2013 1,137,059 
2014 779,242 
2015 696,723 
Thereafter 2,533,532 

$ 8,010,960 

. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 was approximately $1,786,000 and 
$1,910,000, respectively. 

9. Related Party Transactions 

The Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation provided institutional support to the College 
of approximately $673,000 and $771,000 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively. . 

The Foundation leases building space to the College under formal lease agreements. Rental 
expense for the College was $502,531 and $500,713 for the years ended June 30, 2010 and 
2010, respectively. The following isa schedule of future minimum lease rental payments as of 
June 30,2010: 

Years ending June 30: 
2011 $ 504,394 
2012 506,304 
2013 428,000 
2014 10,000 

$ 1,448,698 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 201·0 and 2009 

10. Retirement Plans 

Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS) 

The College participates in the Public School Employees' Retirement System of 
Pennsylvania (PSERS), a state-administered pension program established by authority of 
the Public School Employees' Retirement Code (Act No. 96 of October 2, 1975, as 
amended) (24 Pa. C. S. 8101-8535). The pension program is a governmental cost-sharing 
multiple-employer plan covering substantially all public school districts and many vocational
technical schools, intermediate units, colleges and universities within Pennsylvania. PSERS 
provides retirement and disability benefits, with legislative mandated ad hoc cost-of-living 
adjustments and health care insurance premium assistance to qualifying annuitants. The 
System issues a comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained by 
writing to Diane J. Wert; Office of Financial Management, Public School Employees' 
Retirement System, P. O. Box 125, Harrisburg, PA 17108-0125. 

The report is also available on the PSERS website at www.psers.state.pa.us 
Ipublications/cafr/index.htm. 

The contribution policy is established by the Public School Employees' Retirement Code and 
requires contributions by active members, employers and the Commonwealth·. of 
Pennsylvania. Active members who joined PSERS prior to July 22, 1983 contribute at a rate 
of 5.25% (Membership Class TC) or at 6.50% (Membership Class TO) of the member's 
qualifying compensation. Members who joined the PSERS on or after July 22, 1983 and 
who were active or inactive as of July 1, 2001; contribute at a rate of 6.25% (Membership 
Class TC) or at 7.50% (Membership Class TO) of the member's qualifying compensation. 
Members who joined PSERS after June 30, 2001 contribute at 7.50% (automatic 
membership Class TO). For all new hires and for members who elected Class TO 
membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after 
January 1, 2002. 

Contributions required by employers are based upon an actuarial valuation. The current rate 
at June 30, 2010 is 4.78% of annual covered payroll. The 4.78% rate is composed of a 
pension contribution rate of 4.00% for pension benefits and .78% for healthcare insurance 
premium assistance. The rate was 4.76% at June 30,2009 and 7.13% at June 30, 2008. 
The College's contribution to PSERS for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 
was $46,737, $65,483 and $59,119, respectively, which equals the required contractual 
contribution. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010and·2009 

10. Retirement Plans (Continued) 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) 

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) is a 
governmental cost-sharing multiple-employer defined· benefit plan. SERS provides 
retirement, death, and disability benefits, and legislative mandated ad hoc cost-of-living 
adjustments. Article II of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's Constitution assigns the 
authority to establish and amend the benefit previsions of the plan to the General Assembly. 
SERS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained 
by writing to Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Employees' Retirement System, P.O. 
Box 1147, Harrisburg, PA 17108. 

The contribution policy for SERS, as established by SERS's Board, requires contributions by 
active members and employers (the College). Active members contribute at a rate of 5.00 
percent of their qualifying compensation. The contribution rate for the College is an 
actuarially determined rate. The rate for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is 
5.00%, 3.29%, and 3.28% respectively of annual covered payroll. The College's contribution 
for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $23,711, $24,490, and $22,677, 
respectively . 

.	Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-College Retirement and Equity Fund {TIAA
CRE~ . 

The Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-College Retirement and Equity Fund 
(TIAA-CREF)is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined contribution plan in which 
employees are eligible to participate. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend on 
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees who elect to 
participate in this plan are not required to make contributions to the plan, although they may 
elect to contribute a percentage of total annual compensation. The College's contribution rate 
on June 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was between 3 and 9 percent of qualifying compensation. 
The contributions to TIAA-CREF for the years ended June 30, 2010, 2009, and 2008 were 
$1,069,099, $973,833, and $894,335, respectively. 

11. Accrued Settlements 

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has conducted audits of cost reimbursements and other 
matters for the year 1998 through 2005. Based upon these audits, the College has recorded a 
liability of $727,456 a result of the findings and resulting claims against the College for these 
years. The liability for each applicable audit year is payable to the Pennsylvania Department of 
Education over a period of 18 consecutive quarters. . 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

11. Accrued Settlements (Continued) 

Estimated future payments of the liability are as follows: 

Years ending June 30: 
2011 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

$ 177;808 
177,768 
177,768 
177,768 
16,344 

$ 727,456 

12. Contingencies 

The College participates in both state and federally assisted grant programs and receives 
appropriations from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. These programs and appropriations 
are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The College 
is potentially liable for any expenditure which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of the 
grant and appropriation programs. Management is not aware of any material items of 
noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of expenditures, other then the audit 
settlements discussed in Note 11. 

13. Concentrations 

Approximately 32%a:nd37% of the College's total revenue for the years ended June 30, 2010 
and 2009, respectively, was provided by appropriations and contracts with the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. A significant reduction in the amounts provided by the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania could have an adverse impact on the College's operations. 

14. Designation of Unrestricted Net Assets 

Designations of unrestricted net assets are not legally required segregations but are segregated 
by the College's management for specific purposes. As of June 30, 2010 and 2009, the College 
designated unrestricted net assets as follows: 

2010 2009 

Unrestricted net assets $ 14,795,779 $ 12,578,360 

Less designations: 
Designated for capital projects 10,218,387 8,619,934 
Designed for operating projects 2,752,313 2,179,525 
Reserve for future operations 1,817,000 1,775,000 

Total designations 14,787,700 12,574,459 

Unrestricted, undesignated net assets $ 8,079 $ 3,901 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

15. Commitments 

The College employs approximately 1,250 employees. Approximately 18% of the College's 
employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements. The current contract with the 
Faculty Association expires August 13, 2011. The current contract with the Education Support 
Professionals expires June 30, 2011. 

16. Component Unit Disclosures- Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 

Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows: 

2010 2009 

Capital Campaign, general $ 11,7,50 $ 26,000 
Clay Shoot 5,000 10,000 
Golf Classic 1,250 2,500 
Health Science Center 20,000 70,000 
Library renovations 900,000 900,000 
Moon Dance 2,000 4,000 
Fowler Education Center 92,067 194,310 
Biotechnology teaching lab expansion 18,125 
Scholarships 900,000 1,200,000 
Field of Dreams 6,882 
Entrepreneurial education programs 250,000 

$ 2,188;949 $ 2,424,935 

Receivable in less than one year $ 1,034,299 $ 734,935 
Receivable in one to five years 1,154,650 1,690,000 

2,188,949 2,424,935 
Less discounts to net present value at 2.60% - 5.60% (72,376) (146,362) 

$ 2,116,573 $ 2,278,573 

Conditional promises to give for both the years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 consist of 
the following: 

2010 2009 

Donate Technology Center $ 6,000,000 $ 6,000,000 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

16. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
(Continued) 

Investments 

Investments as of June 30, 2010 and 2009 are as follows: 

2010 2009 

Fixed income mutual funds $ ., 696,498 $ 389,317 
Accrued income 2,533 1,679 
Equity mutual funds 671,322 228,954 

Total mutual funds 1,370,353 619,950 

Com mon stock 133,329 117,082 
Temporary investments 30,845 354,243 

$ 1,534,527 $ 1,091,275 

The following schedule summarizes the investment return (loss) and its classification in the 
Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the years ended June 30, 
2010 and 2009: 

2010 2009 

Investment income $ 70,367 $ 61,593 
Accrued investment income 854 173 
Realized (losses) (12,167) (13,672) 
Unrealized gains (losses) 101,078 (105,549) 
Investment fees (12,456) (9,122) 

$ 147,676 $ (66,577)=============="= 

Land and Buildings 

Land and buildings is comprised of the following as of June 30, 2010 and 2009: 

2010 2009 

Land $ 572,725 $ 572,725 
Buildings 6,106,892 6,106,892 

6,679,617 6,679,617 
Accumulated depreciation (650,636) (559,033) 

$ 6,028,981 $ 6,120,584 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

16. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
(Continued) 

Restrictions and Limitations on Net Assets 

The Foundation's Board of Trustees has chosen to place the following limitations on 
unrestricted net assets: 

2010 2009 

Endowment $ 504,000 $ 504,000 
Scholarships 223,138 216,995 
Building construction, improvement and maintenance 1,816,808 1,316,808 

/
$ 2,543,946 $ 2,037,803 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods. 

2010 2009 

Building construction, improvement and real property 
acquisition $ 257,391 $ 362,683 

Scholarships 208,424 99,084 
Other 357,969 131,645 

$ 823,784 $ 593,412 

Permanent restricted net assets of $1,504,536 and $1 ,444,683 at June 30, 2010 and 2009 
respectively, are comprised primarily of scholarships. 

Endowment 

The Foundation's endowments consist of two individual funds established for a variety of 
purposes. Its endowments include both a donor-restricted endowment fund and fund 
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as an endowment. As required by GAAP, 
net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of 
Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

16. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
(Continued) 

Interpretation of Relevant Law 

The Foundation's policy is to require the preservation of the fair value of the original gift 
as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor 
stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, the Foundation classifies 
as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the 
permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent 
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with 
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added 
to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not 
classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net 
assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a 
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by the relevant state law. 
Unless specifically defined, a donor-restricted endowment fund that is required by donor 
stipulation to accumulate or appropriate endowment funds, the Foundation considers 
the following factors: 

1. The duration and preservation of the fund. 

2. The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund 

3. General economic conditions 

4. The possible effect of inflation and deflation 

5. The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments 

6. Other resources of the organization 

7. The investment policies of the organization 

The following schedule represents the endowment net asset composition by type of 
endowment fund as of June 30, 2010 and 2009: 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

2010: 
Board deSignated 

endowment funds -$ 504,000 $ $ .$ 504,000 
Donor-restricted 

endowment funds 1,504,536 1,504,536 

$ 504,000 $ $ 1,504,536 $ 2,008,536 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2010 and 2009 

16. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
(Continued) 

Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

2009: 
Board designated 

endowment funds $ 504,000 $ $ $ 504,000 
Donor -restricted 

endowment funds 1,444,683 1,444,683 

$ 504,000 $ $ 1,444,683 $ 1,948,683 

The following schedule represents the changes in endowment net assets for the years 
ended June 30, 2010 and 2009: 

Endowment net assets, July 1, 2008 
Investment return: 

Investment income 
Net depreciation (realized and unrealized) 

Total investment return 

Contributions 

Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure' 


Endowment net assets, June 30, 2009 
Investment return: 

Investment income 
Net realized and unrealized 

Total investment return 

Contributions 
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure 

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2010 

Funds with Deficiencies 

Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted 

$ 504,000 $ 

504,000 

1,444,683 

504,000 1,444,683 

7,150 
32,703 

39,853 

20,000 

$ 504,000 $ 1,504,536 

The fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor or the relevant state law requires the Foundation 
to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, these deficiencies 
are reported as unrestricted net assets. There were no such deficiencies reported at 
June 30, 2010 or 2009. 
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June 30, 2010 and 2009 

16. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
(Continued) 

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters 

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets 
that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its 
endowments while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. 
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Foundation 
must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as well as board-designated 
funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the endowment assets 
are· invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and 
yield results of the S&P 500 index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. 
The Foundation expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of 
return of approximately 9 percent annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary 
from this amount. 

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives 

The Foundation relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved 
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater 
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within 
prudent risk constraints. 

Endowment Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to the 
Spending Policy 

The Foundation has a policy of appropriating restricted net assets for distribution on an 
as needed basis. The amount needed to fund the distributions will first be taken from 
the accumulated excess earnings from prior years, then from the accumulated net 
capital gains of Endowment Funds and, conversely, any undistributed income after the 
allocation of the total return distribution is added back to the Temporarily Restricted 
Endowment Fund balance. Over the long term, the Foundation expects the current 
spending policy to allow its endowment to grow at an average of 4 percent annually. This 
is consistent with the Foundation's objective to maintain the purchasing power of the 
endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide 
additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. 
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16. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
(Continued) 

Concentrations 

For the year ended June 30, 2010, approximately 23% of the Foundation's revenues and 
other support was from a pledge from one donor. This pledge represents approximately 
41% of undiscounted promises to give as of June 30,2010. 

For the year ended June 30,2009, approximately 74% of the Foundation's revenues and 
other support was from a pledge from one donor. This pledge represents approximately 
50% of undiscounted promises to give as of June 30, 2009. The Foundation had 
additional individual pledges which represent 33% of undiscounted promises to give as 
of June 30, 2009. 
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Auditors' Report 

Community College 
Schnecksville, Pennsylvania 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements (as described in the table of contents) of 
Lehigh Carbon Community College (the "College") and it's discretely presented component unit, as 
of and for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the College's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audits. 

auditing standards accepted in the 
that we plan the audits to obtai 

statements are misstatement 
examining, on a test evidence supporting and disclosures in 

statements. An audit assessing the principles used 
sig estimates made by as well as evaluating financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Lehigh Carbon Community College and of its discretely presented 
component unit as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, and the changes in their financial position and their 
cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Discussion MD&A") on pages is not a required 
financial statements supplementary information by the accounting 

accepted in States of America. applied certain 
wrlich consisted inquiries of managernent the methods 

and presentation supplernentary information we did not audit 
express no opinion 

Malvern, Pennsylvania 
November 30, 2011 

1 

127



Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

and analysis financial statements provides an overview 
financial activities ended June 30, 10. Management's 
Analysis in conjunction follow. 

Statements 

The Statement of Net Assets reflects the financial position of the College at June 30, 2011 and 
2010. The statement presents the various College assets, related liabilities and other 
obligations, and the various categories of net assets. Net assets is an accounting concept 
defined as total assets less total liabilities, and as such, represents institutional equity or 
ownership in the total assets of the College. 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets reflects the results of 
and other changes ended June 2010. The statement 

various operating that reconcile 
net assets to the the Statement of 

described above. 

of Cash Flows inflows and and cash equivalents 
ended June 30, The statement various cash activities 

by type, reconciling the beginning cash and cash equivalents amount to the ending cash and 
cash equivalents amount, which is shown on the Statement of Net Assets described above. In 
addition, this statement reconciles cash flows from operating activities to operating revenues on 
the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets described above. 

Financial Highlights and Analysis 

with its mission to the community quality, affordable, 
education," the educational, career learning opportunities 

innovative partnersh the lives of Lehigh, Carbon and 
counties. Major rces supporting all the College 
fees, local sponsor and the of Pennsylvania 

Credit enrollment in fiscal year 2010-2011 decreased 3.8% with 5,855 full-time equivalent 
students (FTEs) as compared to 6,088 in fiscal year 2009-2010. The College's full-time student 
annual enrollment has decreased by 431 students since 2009-2010 when enrollment spiked 
with an 11.4% growth. There is evidence that some of the College's students who would 
otherwise be enrolled full-time have fallen back to part-time status due to factors related to the 

Since 2007-2008 ent has increased Non-credit enrollment 
3.7% over the with 979 FTEs 2010-2011 as 

College strategically chose to reduce the non-credit public safety programs. These programs 
required a significant contribution of College "funds due to minimal fees charged the students. 
Non-credit tuition exceeded the budget in 2010-2011 by 27% and in 2009-2010 by 42%. 

Overall the net assets of the College increased by $5,775,500 in fiscal year 2010-2011 to a 
cumulative total net assets of $43,428,600. The cumulative net assets are comprised of 
investment in capital assets of $28,080,800, restricted net assets of $481,300 and unrestricted 

$14,866,500; 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

College's un assets are not subject imposed restrictions, 
of the College's of unrestricted are designated 

fulfill its various responsibilities, including reserves for 
and operation reserve for future 

revenues 9,000 (6.0%). and fee revenues 
decreased by $369,000 (1.8%) due to the credit enrollment decline of 3.8%, net of a 3.4% 
increase in the credit tuition rate, and a decline in non-credit tuition and fee revenue. The 
Commonwealth operating appropriation remained the same as the prior fiscal year. The 
Commonwealth capital appropriation increased $296,700 due to Commonwealth capital funding 
for the debt service on the 2010 Bonds beginning in 2010-2011. The local sponsor appropriation 
increased $87,600 due to an overall increase of 0.8% in the sponsor operating and capital 
appropriation. Federal, State and Local grants and contracts decreased $302,100. Federal 

the major factor a $280,000 decrease in 
the result five major concluding, four that 2010 and one 

in 2010-2011. ue reduction due 
$810,000. This was offset by four 

revenue of $530,000. and contracts 
received for the of the new Com 

O. Miscellaneous revenue sources decreased by major factor was a 
decline of $291,800 in funding for Workforce and Economic Development Network (WEDNET) 
programs. 

Total expenses increased by $295,800 (0.7%). Employee compensation and benefit expenses 
increased $663,600 from the prior fiscal year. Compensation costs decreased $197,900 due to 
a decrease in adjunct faculty wages as the number of course sections declined in 2010-2011, 
net of annual salary increases, Employee benefit expenses increased by $861,500 as health 

costs continue increase with increase in expenses. 
factors were an 96,100 in accrued expenses and $104,(:)00 

compensation 

Statement of Net 

is a Condensed Net Assets as of and 2010. 

Assets 
Current assets 
Non-current assets 

$ 

2011 

19,440,766 
55,739,816 

$ 

2010 

20,197,680 
52,845,147 

T atal assets c';p 75,180,582 $ 73,042,827 
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Lehigh Carbon Community CoUege 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

2010 

and net assets 

rrent liabilities 
 $ 7,736,589 

NOIl'current liabilities 27,653, 

Total liabilities 31,751,964 35,389,752 

Net Assets 
Investment in capital assets 28,080,829 22,378,150 
Unrestricted 14,866,453 14,795,779 
Restricted 481,336 479,146 

Total net assets 8 37,653,075 

Total liabilities and $ 73,042,827 

Statement of Revenues, and Changes 

Tile condensed financial information below highlights the main categories of the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. Operating revenues include tuition and fees, 
net of scholarship discounts and allowances. The construction and acquisition of capital assets, 
although budgeted and tracked as an expenditure in the accounting system, are not reflected as 
an expense in these statements. Rather, such transactions are reported as an asset with the 
systematic allocation of the costs expensed over the useful life of the asset acquired. The 
College shows an operating loss as a result of the requirements that two of the three main 

rces, state operating and local appropriation, 
non-operating as an operating 

The College does a description of 
between operating Summary of Significant 
Policies, Note 1 to 

2010 

Operating revenues: 
Tuition and fees $ 19,902,176 $ 20,271,158 
Auxiliary services 657,726 662,719 
Other 833,894 1,118,340 

Non-operating revenues: 
monwealth and appropriations 22,804,239 

Government/Local grants and contracts 4,022,208 4,324,311 
Capital grants and contracts 1,628,761 4,157,519 
Investment income 155,643 254,802 

Total revenues 50,374,094 53,593,088 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

2011 2010 

Operating expenses: 
Educational and general $ 40,744,646 $ 40,554,974 
Depreciation and amortization 2,553,553 2,486,616 
Loss on abandonment of capital assets 148,275 
Auxiliary services 206,754 182,589 

Non-operating expenses: 
Interest on indebtedness 1,093,598 930,312 

Total expenses 44,598,551 44,302,766 

Changes in net assets 5,775,543 9,290,322 

Net assets, beginning 37,653,075 28,362,753 

Net assets, ending $ 43,428,618 $ 37,653,075 

Debt Administration 

At June 30, 2011, the College had four debt issues outstanding; three general obligation bond 
issues totaling $25,335,000 and a term loan totaling $638,700. The debt issues are funded by 
the Commonwealth capital appropriation, localsponsorcapital appropriation and College capital 
funds. The fiscal year 2010-2011 debt payments were funded from the following sources: 

1) 50.0% from the Commonwealth appropriation 


2) 41.0% from the local sponsor capital appropriation 

3) 9.0% from College capital funds 


Additional information on the College's long-term debt can be found in Note 6 to the basic 
financial statements. 

Current Factors Having Probable Future Financial Significance 

The Fall 2011 semester enrollment is 6.0% lower than the Fall 2010 enrollment. The College 
revised its operating budget for 2011-2012 to reflect tuition and fee revenue based on a similar 
decline in enrollment from the previous year for the Spring 2012 and Summer 2012 semesters. 
Any increase in enrollment above these projections will have a positive impact on the College's 
financial situation. The Fall 2011 non-credit tuition and fee revenue has increased significantly 
through October 2011 over the same period the prior year. Although there is an increase in 
revenue through October, expectations are that non-credit programs will remain consistent with 
the prior fiscal year. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(Unaudited) 

Commonwealth of operating appropriation fiscal year 2011 
by $1,362,900 fiscal year of the decrease 
stimulus funding monwealth used in to maintain constant 
nding to the College monwealth regulations. Stimulus 

be available to Commonwealth for future 

funding will 1-12 level. 


The Local Sponsor appropriation for fiscal year 2011-2012 increased 1.0% over the prior fiscal 
year appropriation. The 2012-2013 increase is expected to remain at 1.0%. 

Capital appropriations for the Commonwealth and the local sponsors are expected to remain 
constant over the next several years. Lack of future increases In the capital appropriation 
budget will have a negative impact on the operations of the College as the College may need to 

operations any projects previously for funding by 

and analysis to provide a of Lehigh Carbon 
College's finances with an interest matters. The College 

proud of ability to offer affordable, high-quality educational programs and services the 
College offers to our communities. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Net Assets - Primary Institution 

30, and 201 

2011 2010 

Assets 

Current 
Cash and equivalents 14,1 ,824 13,048,378 
Certificates of deposit 3,028,497 3,028,497 
Accounts receivable, students and other, net 1,045,833 1,021,198 
Accounts receivable, grants ,979 2,522,349 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 590,633 577,258 

current assets 19,440,766 20,197,680 

Noncurrent Assets 
Bond proceeds available for campus construction 2,716,274 8,074,479 

Student receivable, net 10 421 
Capital assets, net 43,932,676 

Deferred charges 416,725 

other assets ~---.;;..55::.2.,~73 9,816 52,845, 47 

Total assets $ 75,180,582 $ 73,042,827 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Net Assets - Primary Institution 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities 
Notes payable, current portion $ 2,416,961 $ 2,267,024 
Capital lease obligation, current portion 481,047 636,815 
Accounts payable 1,509,365 2,381,172 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,536,056 1,356,825 
Accrued interest payable 177,058 183,976 
Deferred revenue 883,149 732,969 
Accrued settlements 177,769 177,808 

Total current liabilities 7,181,405 7,736,589 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Accrued settlements 371,918 549,648 . 
Notes payable, less current portion 23,766,157 26,189,984 

Capital lease obligation, less current portion 432,484 913,531 

Total noncurrent liabilities 24,570,559 27,653,163 

Total liabilities 31,751,964 35,389,752 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 14,866,453 14,795,779 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 28,080,829 22,378,150 
Permanently restricted 481,336 479,146 

Total net assets 43,428,618 37,653,075 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 75,180,582 $ 73,042,827 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets - Primary Institution 
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 

Operating Revenue 
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowance 

of $4,076,176 in 2011 and $4,507,805 in 2010 
Auxiliary enterprises 
Other operating revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Educational and general: 

Instruction 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 
Operation and maintenance of plant 
Depreciation and amortization 

Auxiliary services 

Total operating expenses 

Operating loss 

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 
Appropriations: 

Local 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania - ARRA 

Federal grants and contracts 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania grant and contracts 
Local grants and contracts 
Investment income 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Interest on indebtedness 

Total non-operating revenues 

Income (loss) before other revenues 

Other Revenues 
Capital appropriations: 

Local 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 

Capital grants and contracts 

Total other revenues 

Increase in net assets 

Net Assets, Beginning 

Net Assets, Ending 

2011 2010 

$ 19,902,176 $ 20,271,158 
657,726 662,719 
833,894 1,118,340 

21,393,796 22,052,217 

15,384,078 15,972,239 
5,494,809 4,805,037 
4,468,318 4,514,917 
9,801,746 9,767,247 
5,595,695 5,495,534 
2,553,553 2,486,616 

206,754 182,589 

43,504,953 43,224,179 

(22,111,157) (21,171,962) 

3,978,537 3,890,920 
13,131,311 13,145,714 
1,244,405 1,244,405 
3,545,585 3,823,290 

264,924 253,344 
211,699 247,677 
155,643 254,802 

(148,275) 
(1,093,598) (930,312) 

21,438,506 21,781,565 

(672,651 ) 609,603 

2,225,781 2,226,212 
2,593,652 2,296,988 
1,628,761 4,157,519 

6,448,194 8,680,719 

5,775,543 9,290,322 

37,653,075 28,362,753 

$ 43,428,618 $ 37,653,075 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Cash Flows - Primary Institution 
Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Student tuition and fees 
Payments to employees 
Payments for benefits 
Payments to suppliers and utilities 
Auxiliary services 
Other receipts 

$ 20,049,178 
(21 ,604,144) 

(6,911,815) 
(13,141,392) 

657,726 
833,894 

$ 20,182,278 
(21,918,022) 

(6,099,713) 
(10,860,936) 

662,719 
1,118,340 

Net cash used in operating activities (20,116,553) (16,915,334) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Local appropriations 
Com monwealth appropriations 
Grants and contracts for other than capital purposes 

3,978,537 
14,375,716 

5,876,578 

3,890,920 
14,390,119 
4,324,311 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 24,230,831 22,605,350 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Local and commonwealth capital appropriations 
Capital grants and contracts 
Purchases of capital assets 
Proceeds from capital debt 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 
Payments on capital lease obligation 
Payments on accrued settlement 

4,819,433 
1,628,761 

(10,827,884) 

(2,273,890) 
(1,100,516) 

(636,815) 
(177,769) 

4,523,200 
2,362,835 

(8,354,515) 
7,866,220 

(1,932,143) 
(899,071 ) 
(739,744) 
(196,712) 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing 
activities (8,568,680) 2,630,070 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
(Increase) decrease in bond funds available 

for cam pus construction 
Net redemptions of certificates of deposit 
Interest on investments 

5,358,205 

155,643 

(6,579,757) 
2,047,438 

254,802 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 5,513,848 ( 4,277,517) 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,059,446 4,042,569 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 13,048,378 9,005,809 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 14,107,824 $ 13,048,378 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Statement of Cash Flows Primary Institution 
Yeal-s Fnded June 30, 201 2010 

2011 2010 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash 
Used in Operating Activities 

Operating $ (22, 1 157) (21,171 
Adjustments reconcile operating loss to cash 

used in operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 2,553,553 2,486,616 
Bad debt expense 384,352 297 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable (408,987) (354,531) 

Prepaid and other current assets (13,375) 97,149 

Student loans receivable A57 

Accounts payable 1,807) 

Accrued expenses 179,231 226,135 

Deferred revenue 150,180 (33,273) 


Net cash used in operating activities $ (20,116,553) (16,915,334) 

Supplementary Disclosure of Noncash Capital, Financing Activity 
leases $ 

See notes financial statements 
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Lehigh Community College 
Statement of Net Assets - Component Unit 
Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

Assets 

Current 
Cash and equivalents 

Investments 

Accounts receivable 

Promise to give 

Prepaid expenses 


rrent assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Promise to give 

Land and buildings, net 


noncurrent 

Total assets 

Liabilities Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 

Deferred revenue 


rrent liabilities 

Net Assets 
Unrestricted 
Unrestricted, designated 
Temporarily restricted 
Permanently restricted 

net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

2011 2010 

,724,682 
2,615,964 

695,054 
174,750 

1,887,732 
1,534,527 

10,000 
1,034,299 

700 

5,210,450 4,467,258 

771,091 
5,937,377 

1,082,274 
6,028,981 

6,708,468 7,111,255 

$ 11,918,918 $ 11,578,513 

$ 34,828 
89,063 

$ 
99,293 

123,891 99,293 

6,844,204 
2,617,985 

720,003 
,612,835 

6,606,954 
2,543,946 

823,784 
1,504,536 

$ 

11,795,027 

11,918,918 $ 

11,479,220 

11,578,513 

See notes I'''' 1 statementsFUEm " 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
State"1ellt of Revenue, Expellses and Change 

Carbon Commuility College Foundation 
Years Ended June 30, 1 and 2010 

Assets  Unit 

Unrestricted 

2011 
Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted Total Unrestricted 

2010 
Temporarily Permanently 
Restricted Restricted Total 

Revenues, Gains and Support 
Contributions 
Rental income 
Investment return 
Other income 
Net assets released restrictions, 

satisfaction of program restrictions 

$ 221,595 
504,394 
247,477 

184,382 

$ 79,742 

859 

(184,382) 

$ 15,012 

93,287 

$ 316,349 
504,394 
341,623 

$ 239,662 
502,531 
133,827 

782 

132.422 

$ 356,095 

6,699 

(132,422) 

$ 52,703 

7,150 

$ 648,460 
502,531 
147,676 

782 

otal revenues other support 1,157,848 (103,781) 108299 1 62,366 1,009,224 230,372 59,853 1,299,449 

Expenses 
Program services 
Supportive services: 

Management anci 
Fundraising 

608,707 

147,730 
90,122 

608,707 673,360 

127 
76,090 

673,360 

127,980 
75,090 

Total expenses 846,559 876,430 876,430 

Change in net assets 311,289 (103,781) 108,299 315,807 132,794 230,372 59,853 423,019 

Net Assets, Beginning of Year 9,150,900 823,784 1,504.536 11,479,220 9,018,106 593,412 1,444,683 11,056,201 

Net End of Year 9,462,189 720,003 S 1,612.835 $ 11, $ 9,150,900 $ 823,78'1 1,504,536 $ 11 ,479,220 

See notes to financial statements 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

Operations and 

"College") was to a need 
citizens within the 
experience in higher 

governing establishes the policies procedures by which 
College is governed. The College is funded through a diversified financial support system 
consisting of local school districts, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and the students. 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASH") Statement No. 39, 
Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, an amendment to GASB 14, 
the College has determined that the Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation (the 
"Foundation") should be included in the College's financial statements as a discretely presented 

unit. A component it legally separate which the primary 
financially accou related. 

501 (c)(3) of the Code, the legally separate 
component unit of The Foundation as a fund-raising 

to supplement that are available in support of 
Although the College control the timing of receipts from 

Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds and invests 
are restricted to the activities of the College by the donors. Since these restricted resources held 
by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundation is 
considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College's financial 
statements as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. 

Complete financial statements for the Foundation may be obtained at the College's 
office. 

is a private organization that Financial Accounting 
("FASB") standards codification , certain revenue 

criteria and are different revenue recognition 
presentation modifications have to the Foundation's 

information in the reporting entity 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

College's financial been presented economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as presented by the GASB. 
Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

The College functions as a business type activity, as defined by GASB. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of the College's financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term highly liquid investments readily 
converted to cash with original maturities of three months or less. The College maintains its 
cash accounts in various commercial banks. Accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation to $250,000. 

Accounts Receivable 
J 

Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fees charged to current and former students, or 
third parties, amounts due from federal and state governments in connection with 
reimbursements of allowable expenditures made pursuant to grants and contracts and other 
miscellaneous sources. 

Accounts receivable are reported at net realizable value. Accounts are written off when they 
are determined to be uncollectible based upon management's assessment of individual 
accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is estimated based upon the College's 
historical losses and periodic review of individual accounts. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts was approximately $95,000 and $107,000 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets are stated at cost or at fair market value at date of donation if received by gift. 
The College provides for depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets as follows: 

Years 

Buildings 30 - 50 
Furniture 10- 12 

Equipment 7 - 10 
Computer equipment 3-5 
Library books 10 
Vehicles 5-8 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
to Financial Staternents 

30,20 and 20 

The College capitalizes assets useful in excess of one year and an original cost 
exceeding $4,000. 

At each statement of financial position date management evaluates whether any property 
and uipment have been impaired. The made adjustments to I'rying of 
property and equipment during the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. 

Deferred Financing Costs 

Costs incurred In connection with debt financing are deferred and amortized over the term of 
the related debt using the straight-line method, which approximates the interest method. 
Amortization expense was $33,145 and $19,466 in 2011 and 2010. respectively. 

Compensated Absences 

Liability for compensated absences (unused vacation leave) is accounted for in accordance 
with provisions of Statement No, 6, Accounting Compensated AlJsences, 
and, accordingly, the liability for employees' rights to receive compensation for future 
absences is recorded as a liability in the statement of net assets. 

Deferred Revenue 

Deferred revenues include: (1) amounts received for tuition and fees prior to the end of the 
fiscal year that are related to the subsequent fiscal and (2) amounts received from 
grant and contract sponsors that not earned. 

Deferred Cost of Refunding 

The College deferred the difference between reacquisition (the amount 
deposited into escrow to payoff the notes) and the net carrying amount of previously 
refunded debt. This deferred cost of refunding is being amortized into interest expense on a 
straight-line over shorter the of the and bonds. The unamortized 
deferred costs refunding are reported as reduction the outstanding payable, 

Net Assets 

The lege maintains following net asset classi'fications: 

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 

net accum depreciation outstanding principle balances of 
debt, plus restricted cash, attributable to the acquisition, construction, repair or 
improvement of those assets. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

Unrestricted 

All other categories of net assets. Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific 
purposes by the College's Board of Trustees. 

restricted 
to 

U11 restricted 
is left to 

the decision 

Permanently Restricted 

Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by 
the Generally, donors of assets perrnit College to or part 
income earned on investments general or purposes to limitations 
specified Pennsylvania law. 

Classification of Revenues 

The has its reven either or I1g. Operating 
revenue include activities tllat have such as 
student tuition and net of . discounts allowances (b) sales 
services of auxiliary enterprises. Nonoperating revenue includes transactions related to 
capital and 'financing activities, noncapital financing activities, investing activities and 
activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange transactions. Nonoperating 
revenues include such items as (a) state appropriations, (b) Federal, 
and grants and (c) gifts contributions (d) investment ncome. 

Tuition Revenue 

Tuition revenue is recognized when instruction is provided. A receivable is recognized when 
a student application is processed and an invoice submitted, with revenue recognition 

ntil the starts. 

Scholarship Discounts lowances 

Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are reported net 
of scholarship discounts and allowances in the statement of revenues, expenses and 

net assets. Scholarship and . are the difference between 
charge for and provided by College and amount 

students third parties making on students' behalf. 
governmental grants are recorded as either operating or nonoperating revenues in the 
College's financial statements. To the extent that revenues from such programs are used to 
satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the College has recorded a scholarship 
discount and allowance, 

Income 

The College is exempt from federal and state income taxes as it is essentially a potential 
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The Foundation is exempt from taxation 
pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 501 (c). 

17 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

Risk Management 

The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to and illnesses of employees; and 
natural disasters. The College purchases commercial insurance coverage for general 
liability, property and casualty, workers' compensation, environmental and antitrust liabilities, 
and certain employee health benefits. 

Unemployment Compensation Fund 

The College has elected to use the direct reimbursement method of paying for any 
unemployment compensation claims charged to it. In order to cover future claims, the 
College has established an unemployment compensation liability reserve account included 
in other liabilities in the statement of net assets. 

Advertising 

Advertising expenses are recorded as incurred and were approximately $524,000 and 
$511,000 in 2011 and 2010, respectively 

Subsequent Events 

The College has evaluated subsequent events through November 30, 2011, which is the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

Reclassifications 

Certain 2010 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2011 financial statement 
presentation. 

3. 	 Cash, Certificates of Deposit and Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The College follows Section 1706 of the. County Code of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania for investment of College funds. As such, the College is authorized to invest 
its funds in the following: 

• 	 United States Treasury Bills 

• 	 Short-term obligations of the United States government or its agencies and 
instrumental ities. 

• 	 Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits, other than certificates of deposit, or share 
accounts of institutions having their principal place of business in the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania and insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or other 
like insurance. 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
to Financial Staternents 


30, 20 and 201 


• 	 Obligations the States of America or of its agencies or instrumentalities 
backed by trle full faith and credit of the United States, the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania or any of its agencies or instrumentalities backed by the full faith and credit 

the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or of any political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or any agencies or instrumentalities backed the 
full faith and credit of the political subdivision. 

• 	 Shares of investment company registered 
Secu 

the Investment Company of 
whose shares registered under Act 933. 

• Certificates of deposit purchased from institutions having their principal place of 
business outside the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania are insu by FDIC 

other insuranco. For amounts in excess of insured maximum. such 
deposits shall be collateralized by a pledge or assignment of assets pursuant to 
Act No. 72 of the General Assembly. Certificates of deposit may not exceed 20% of a 

k's total capital 	 rplus or of a savings loan's savings bank's assets net 
liabilities. 

• 	 Commercial paper and prime commercial paper meeting certain requirements. 

agreements that fully collateralized by obligations of United States 
of America. 

• 

The rrying amount College's deposits was 9,852,595 and 
June 20 and respectively, including restricted of 
$8,074,479 as of June 30 2011 and 2010, respectively. The bank balance totaled 
$20,545,578 and $24,573,426 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The difference 
represents outstanding and normal reconciling 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the College's deposits may 
not be returned to it. The College does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 
Commonwealth Pennsylvania 72 of as amended, banking institutions to 
satisfy the collateralization requirement by pooling investments to public funds 
on deposit in excess of federal insurance. Such pooled collateral is pledged with the 
financial institutions' trust departments. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, 
in event the failure of the counterparty. the will be to recover the 
value its investments collateral securities that are the possession of outside party. 

The balance of the College's cash deposits is categorized as follows to give an indication,of 
the of risk assumed the at end. 

2011 2010 

Insul'ed $ .336,536 $ 1,238 
Collateralized, collaterailleid by pledging banks trust 

department not in the College's name 19,209,042 23,182,188 

$ 	 20,545,578 
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construction represent 

11 
$8,074,479, respectively. 

funds held bypmceeds available 
Bank, N.A., State 

Government. As 

Building Authority of New York, 
under the terms indentures. available for campus 

are carried statements at consist of short-term 
guaranteed and 2010, 

available for were $2,71 

The Cottege invests in the Pennsylvania Local Government Investment Trust (PLGIT), which 
is an external governmental investment and money market pool. The purpose of the pool is 
to allow local governmental units to maximize investment potential through cash pooling 
while providing security and liquidity. Pool participants are allocated a pro-rata share of each 
investment purchased by tbe pool. PUG IT's investment policies are consistent with the 
investment policies of its participants. The investments of the pool serve as collateral and 

in safekeeping investment custod 30, 2011 and 201 
included in cash ivalents from PLG 

governed by a who is responsible overall management 

including the implementation policies and 


of the Trust's and its custoejians, PLGIT pool is not S 

. The fair value position in the same as the 

of the pool shares. The College's investment in PLGIT has been rated AAA, the highest 
rating available, by Standard and Poor's, an independent investment rating company. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The College does not have a formal investment policy that limits the amount invested in an 
individual insurer. 

by Governmental 
in external 

the First Niagara 
disclosure above, 

ng Standards Board 
such as PLGIT 

No. 40, the College's 
in mutual 

4. Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable represent amounts due for tuition fees from currently enrolled and former 
students and grants from other entities. The College extends unSecured credit to students and 
other entities in connection with their studies and other educational services provided. Accounts 

consist of the following 2011 and 201 

2011 2010 

Accounts receivable, student and other $. 1,140,941 $ 1,127,869 
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (95,108) (106,671) 

1,045,833 1,021,198 
Accounts receivable, grants 667,979 2,522,349 

2 $ 3,543,547 
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5. Capital Assets, Net 

July 1, 2010 
Balance Additions 

Retirements 
and 

Adjustments 
June 30, 2011 

Balance 

Non depreciable assets: 
Land 
Construction in progress 

$ 2,109,624 
8,031,271 

$ 
10,337,313 

$ 
(16,993,749) 

$ 2,109,624 
1,374,835 

Total non 
depreciable 
assets 10,140,895 10,337,313 (16,993,749) 3,484,459 

Depreciable assets: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and buildihg 

improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Library books 

1,833,809 

42,064,168 
16,040,850 

1,256,426 

1,127,626 

16,066,275 
254,894 

35,525 

(23,960) 

2,961,435 

58,106,483 
16,295,744 

1,291,951 

61,195,253 17,484,320 (23,960) 78,655,613 

Less accumulated 
depreciation (27,403,4 72) (2,520,408) 23,960 (29,899,920) 

Total capital assets, 
net $ 43,932,676 $ 25,301,225 $ (16,993,749) $ 52,240,152 
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 

6. Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was as follows: 

July 1, 2010 Paymentsl June 30, 2011 Current 
Balance Additions Settlements Balance Portion 

Accrued settlements $ 727,456 $ $ (177,769) $ 549,687 $ 177,769 

Notes payable 28,457,008 (2,273,890) 26,183,118 2,416,961 

Lease obligations 1,550,346 (636,815) 913,531 481,047 

Total $ 30,734,810 $ $ (3,088,474) $ 27,646,336 $ 3,075,777 

July 1, 2009 Paymentsl June 30, 2010 Current 
Balance Additions Settlements Balance Portion 

Accrued settlements $ 924,168 $ $ (196,712) $ 727,456 $ 177,808 
Notes payable 22,349,290 8,039,861 (1,932,143) 28,457,008 2,267,024 
Lease obligations 1,204,912 1,085,178 (739,744) 1,550,346 636,815 

Total $ 24,478,370 $ 9,125,039 $ (2,868,599) $ 30,734,810 $ 3,081,647 

7. Notes Payable 

Notes payable as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 consists of the following: 

2011 2010 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2010, evidencing the 
College's obligation to pay the required debt service 
on the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Public 
School Building Authority Bonds, Series of 2010, due 
serially through November 1, 2030 at interest rates 
ranging from 0.50% to 5.00% $ 7,740,000 $ 8,000,000 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2007, evidencing the 
College's obligation to pay the required debt service 
on the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Public 
School Building Authority Bonds, Series of 2007, due 
serially through November 1, 2026 at interest rates 
ranging from 3.625% to 5.00%. 15,320,000 16,800,000 
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2011 2010 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2002, evidencing the 
College's obligation to pay the required debt service 


Com of Pennsylvania State Public 

Building Bonds, of 2002, 

through 1, interest rates 

ranging from 2.50% to 4.30% $ 2,275,000 $ 2,555,000 

General Obligation Note, Series of 2008, interest at 
2.0%, payments due semiannually through 

1,20 638,71 885.741 

25,973,717 28,240,741 
Unamortized premium on notes payable 283,228 301,758 
Deferred cost of refunding (73,827) (85,491 ) 

$ 26,183, 28,457,008 

All of tile above obligations require the College to pledge as collateral unrestricted gross 
revenues not previously pledged. 

The aggregate future principal payments on the notes payable are as follows: 

June 
2,41 


2013 2,492,133 

2014 2,619,623 

2015 1,755,000 


1,81 
14,875,0120 

$ 25,973,717 
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noncancelable 

Future minimum 

9. 

The cost of equipment under capital leases is $3,597,919 as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. 
Accumulated depreciation for equipment under capital leases is $2,809,839 and $2,324,056 as 
of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Depreciation for equipment under capital leases is 
included with depreciation expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Assets. 

Leases 

has entered into operating lease rental of classroom 
equipment. Future nual rentals are as 

ending June 30: 
12 $ 1,345;409 


2013 1,133,301 

2014 778,052 

2015 696,723 

2016 304,274 

Thereafter 2,229,258 


$ 6;481,017 

Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was approximately $1,586,000 and 
$1,786,000, respectively. 

Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June30, 2011 and 2010 

8. I-C,l;:'C Obligations 

has entered into reernents for equipment 
classified as capital principal balance due 

and $1,550,346 as 2011 and 2010, 
under capital leases 

Years ending June 30: 
2012 
2013 
2014 

amounts representi 

value of net m payments 
reflected as cu 

$ 
 510,989 
268,228 
182,135 

961,352 
,8211 
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Lehigh Carbon Community College 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2011 and 2010 

O. Related Transactions 

The Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation provided institutional support to the College 
of approximately $609,000 and $673,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 

The leases space College formal lease reements. 
expense for the College was $504,394 and $502,531 for tile years ended June 30, 2011 and 
2011, respectively. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease rental payments as of 
June 30, 2011: 

June 
506,304 
428,000 

2014 10,000 

$ 944,304 

. Retirement Plans 

Public School Employees' Retirement System (PSERS) 

The College participates in the Public School Employees' Retirement System of 
(PSERS). state-adm established by authority 

School Reti 96 of 2, 1975, 
(24 Pa. C. 01-8535). pension is a governmental cost-sharing 

multiple-employer defined benefit plan covering substantially all public school districts and 
many vocational-technical schools, intermediate units, colleges and universities within 
Pennsylvania. PSERS provides retirement and disability benefits, with legislative mandated 
ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments and healthcare insurance premium assistance to qualifying 

The issues a prehensive "financial that includes 
financial statements required supplementary information the plan of the 
may be obtained by writing to Diane J. Wert, Office of Financial Management, Public Sellool 
Employees' Retirement System, P. O. Box 125, Harrisburg, PA 17108-0125. 

The report is also available on the PSERS website at www.psers.state.pa.u~ 

The contribution policy established Public School Ernployees' Code 
requires contributions by active members, employers and the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. Active members who joined PSERS prior to July 22, 1983 contribute at a rate 
of 5.25% (Membership Class TC) or at 6.50% (Membership Class TD) of the member's 
qual compensation. Members joined the on or after 22, 1983 
who active or as of Ju ; contribute a rate of (Membership 
Class or at (Membership TD) of member's compensation. 
Members who joined PSERS after June 30, 2001 contribute at 7.50% (automatic 
membership Class TO). For all new hires and for members who elected Class TD 
membership, the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after 
January 1 2002. 
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Contributions required employers upon actuarial valuation. The current 
at June 30, 2011 is 5.64% of annual covered payroll. The 5.64% rate is composed of a 
pension contribution rate of 5.00% for pension benefits· and 0.64% for healthcare insurance 
premium assistance. The rate was 4.78% at June 30, 2010 and 4.76% at June 30, 2009. 
The College's contribution to PSERS years June 30, 2011, 10, and 

$46,737 $65,483, respectively, equals the ired contractual 

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) 

The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania State Employees' Retirement System (SERS) is a 
governmental multiple-employer defined benefit plan SERS 
reti death, disability and legislative mandated cost-of-living 
adj Article the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania's assigns 
authority to establish and amend the benefit previsions of the plan to the General Assembly. 
SERS issues a publicly available annual financial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the plan. A copy of the report may be obtained 
by to Com of Pennsylvania State System, 
Box Harrisburg, 7108. 

The contribution policy for SERS, as established by SERS's Board, requires contributions by 
active members and employers (the College). Active members contribute at a rate of 6,25 
percent of their qualifying compensation. The contribution rate for the College is an 

The rate June 30, 20 0 and 2009 
and respectively payroll. The contribution 
ended 30, 2011, $29,673, and $24,490, 

respectively. 

Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association-College Retirement and Equity Fund (TIAA
CREF) 

determined 
5.00%, 
for 

Insurance and Annuity Association-Col Retirement Equity 
is a cost-sharing multiple-employer contribution plan in 

employees are eligible to participate. In a defined contribution plan, benefits depend on 
amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. Employees who elect to 
participate in this plan are not required to make contributions to the plan, although they may 
elect contribute a of total compensation. The contribution 
on 2011, 201 2009 was 3 and of compensation. 
The contributions to TIAA-CREF for ended 2011, and 2009 
$1,108,594, $1,069,099, and $973,833, respectively. 

Accrued Settlements 

The Comrnonwealth of has conducted audits cost reimbursements and 
matters for the year 1998 Ulrough 2005. Based upon these audits, the College has recorded a 
liability of $549,687 a result of the findings and resulting claims against the College for these 
years. The liability for each applicable audit year is payable to the Pennsylvania Department of 
Education over a period of 14 consecutive quarters. 
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Estimated payments tile liability follows: 

Years ending June 30: 
2012 $ 177,769 
2013 177,768 

1 

$ 549,687 

3. Contingencies 

The participates i both state federally grant prog and 
appropriations from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. These programs and appropriations 
are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The College 
is potentially liable for any expenditure which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of the 
grant appropriation programs. Management is aware of any items 
noncompliance which wou result in the Ilowance expenditures, than the 
settlements discussed in 1. 

14. Concentrations 

Approximately 34% and the total revenue trle years June 30, 
and 201 respectively, pmvided by appmpriations and contracts with Commonwealth 
Pennsylvania. A significant reduction in the amounts provided by the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania could have an adverse impact on the College's operations. The Commonwealth 
operating appropriation was reduced by $1,362,932, or 10%, for fiscal year 2011-2012. 

5. Designation Unrestricted Net Assets 

Designations of unrestricted net assets are not legally required segregations but are segregated 
by the College's management for specific purposes. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the College 
designated unrestricted net assets as follows: 

2011 2010 

net assets yc" 14,866,453 $ 14,795, 

Less designations: 
Designated for capital pmjects 9,775,024 10,218,387 
Designated projects 3,208,297 2,752,31 
Reserve for operations 1,817,000 1,817,000 

Total designations 14,800,321 14,787,700 

Unrestricted, undesignated net assets $ 66,132 $ 8,079 
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1 

are 
Association expires 

employees. 
rrent 

8% of the College's employs approximately 
covered by bargaining agreements. contract with 

5. The current Education Support 
expires June 30, 

17. Component Unit Disclosures - Lehigh Carbon Community College Foundation 

Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follOWS: 

2010 

$ 

1 
20,000 

Library renovations 850,000 900,000 
Moon Dance 2,000 
Fowler Education Center 41,825 92,067 
Scholarships 600,000 900,000 
Field of Dreams 6,307 6,882 
Entrepreneurial education programs 250,000 

32 $ 2,188,94~ 

in less than one $ 1,034,299 
in one to five 1,154,6§9. 

Science Center 

32 2,188,949 
Less discounts to net present value at 2.60% - 5.60% (31,987) (72,3/6) 

$ 1,466,145 $ 2,116,573 

Conditional promises to give for both the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of 
the following: 

. 2011 2010 

Donate Technology Center $ 6,000,000 $ 6,000,000 

The donor has committed to give the Technology Center to the Foundation in fiscal year 
2018. 
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Investments 

Investments as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 

2011 2010 

Money market accounts 92, $ 
Equity mutual funds: 

Large cap equity funds 700,867 356,136 
Small and mid cap equity funds 197,483 114,785 
International funds 280,979 190514 

funds 
Fixed income mutual 1,069,91 699.051 
Marketable equity 

Materials 6,845 5,092 
Energy 3,807 9,949 
Information technology 83,698 47,131 

mer discretionary 13.31 
staples 

55,203 16.263 
Financials 4,997 4,337 
Healthcare 17,659 21,287 
Telecom 1,513 

$ 2,615, 

The following schedule summarizes the investment return (loss) and its classification in the 

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets for the years ended June 30, 

2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010 

Investment income $ 68,703 $ 58,765 
Realized gains (losses) 9,578 (12,167) 
Unrealized gains (losses) 263,342 101,078 
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Land Buildings 

Land and buildings is comprised of the following as of June 30, 2011 and 2010: 

2011 2010 

572,725 S 572, 
Buildings 6,106,892 6,106,892 

6,679,617 6,679,617 
Accumulated depreciation (742,240) (650,636) 

$ 5,937,377 6,028,981 

Restrictions and Limitations on Net Assets 

The Foundation's Board of Trustees has chosen to place the following limitations on 
net assets: 

2011 2010 

Endowment $ 504,312 $ 504,000 
Scholarships 294,285 223,138 

construction, improvement maintenance 1,819,388 1,816,808 
W'"" 

$ 2,617,985 S 2,543,946 

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or periods, 

2011 2010 

construction, improvement real property 
acquisition $ 257,682 $ 257,391 

Scholarships 224,203 208,424 
Other 238,118 357,969 

$ 823, 

restricted assets of $ 2,835 and $ at June 2011 and 
respectively, are comprised primarily of scholarships, 

Endowment 

The Foundation's endowmonts consist two individual funds establislled a variety 
Its endowments include donor-restricted endowmont nd and 

designated by the Board of Trustees to function as an endowment As required by GAAP, 
net assets associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the Board of 
Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or 
absence donor-im restrictions, I nvestment permanently restricted 

and expended within the sam unless restricted be reinvested 
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of Relevant 

Foundation's pol the preservation value of the original 
the gift date donor-restricted endowment absent explicit donor 

lations to the contra rosult of this interprotation, Foundation classifios 
permanently restrictod (a) the original gifts donated to 

permanent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent 
endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent endowment made in accordance with 
the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added 
to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not 
classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net 
assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a 
manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by the relevant state law, 

specifically donor-restricted endowment is required by donor 
lation to accu endowment ndation considers 

following factors: 

The duration of the fund 

The purposes and the endowment fund 

3. General economic conditions 

4. The possible effect of inflation and deflation 

5. The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments 

6. Other resources of the organization 

7. The investment policies of the organization 

following schedu the endowment composition by type 
endowment fund as of and 2010: 

Temporarily 
Restricted Total 

2011: 
Board designated 

endowment funds 
Donor-restricted 

endowment funds 

$ 504,312 $ $ 

1,612,835 

$ 504,312 

1,612,835 

$ 504,3 $ s ,612,835 $ 2,117,1 
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Temporarily Permanently 
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total 

2010: 
Board designated 

endowment funds $ 504,000 $ $ $ 504,000 
Donor-restricted 

endowment funds 1,504,536 1,504,536 

$ 504,000 $ $ 1,504,536 $ 2,008,536 

The following schedule represents the changes in endowment net assets for the years 
ended June 30, 2011 and 2009: 

Permanently 
U nrestri cted Restricted 

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2009 $ 504,000 $ 1,444,683 

I nvestment return: 
Investment income 7,150 
Net realized and unrealized 32,703 

Total investment return 39,853 

Contri butions 20,000 

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2010 504,000 1,504,536 

Investment return: 
Investment income 93,287 
Net realized and unrealized 15,012 

Total investment return 108,299 

Contributions 312 

Endowment net assets, June 30, 2011 $ 504,312 $ 1,612,835 

Funds with Deficiencies 

The fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds 
may fall below the level that the donor or the relevant state law requires the Foundation 
to retain as a fund of perpetual duration. In accordance with GAAP, these deficiencies 
are reported as unrestricted net assets. There were no such deficiencies reported at 
June 30, 2011 or 2010. 
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Return Objectives and Parameters 

The Foundation has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets 
that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its 
endowments while to maintain purchasing power the endowment assets. 
Endowment assets include those assets of donor-restricted funds that Ule Foundation 
must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as well as board-designated 
funds. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Trustees, the endowment assets 

invested a manner that intended produce results exceed the and 
yield results of the S&P 500 index while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. 
The Foundation expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average rate of 
return of approximately 9 percent annually, Actual returns in any given year may vary 

this amount. 

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives 

Foundation relies a total return in investment returns are acrlieved 
through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends). The Foundation targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater 
emphasis equity-based investments achieve long-term return objectives within 

risk constraints, 

Endowment Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to the 
Spending Policy 

The Foundation has a policy of appropriating restricted net assets for distribution on an 
as needed basis. The amount needed to fund the distributions will first be taken from 

accumulated excess earnings from pl'ior then the net 
gains of Endowment and, conversely, any undistributed income the 

allocation of the total return distribution is added back to the Temporarily Restricted 
Endowment Fund balance. Over the long term, the Foundation expects the current 
spending to its endowment to at average 4 percent annually, This 

consistent with Ule Foundation's objective to maintain the purchasing power the 
endowment assets held in perpetuity or for a specified term as well as to provide 
additional real growth through new gifts and investment return. 

Concentrations 

For the year ended June 30, 2010, approximately 23% of the Foundation's revenues and 
support was a pledge from one donor. pledge represents approximately 
of prom to as June 30, 2010. were no 

concentrations in revenues for the year ended June 30, 2011. 
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Finance 2010-11

Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Overview
Finance Overview

 Purpose  
 The purpose of the IPEDS Finance component is to collect basic financial information from items associated with the
institution's General Purpose Financial Statements.

 

   
   
   
   
 Resources:
To download the survey materials for this component: Survey Materials

 

 To access your prior year data submission for this component: Reported Data  

If you have questions about completing this survey, please contact the IPEDS Help Desk at 1-877-225-2568.
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Finance - Public institutions
Reporting Standard

Please indicate which reporting standards are used to prepare your financial statements:
      GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board), using standards of GASB 34 & 35

 FASB (Financial Accounting Standards Board)

Please consult your business officer for the correct response before saving this screen. Your response to this
question will determine the forms you will receive for reporting finance data.
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Finance - Public institutions
General Information

GASB-Reporting Institutions (aligned form)
To the extent possible, the finance data requested in this report should be provided from your institution's audited
General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS). Please refer to the instructions specific to each screen of the survey for
details and references.
1. Fiscal Year Calendar
This report covers financial activities for the 12-month fiscal year: (The fiscal year reported should be the most
recent fiscal year ending before October 1, 2010.)
Beginning: month/year
(MMYYYY)

Month: Year:

And ending: month/year
(MMYYYY)

Month: Year:

2. Audit Opinion
Did your institution receive an unqualified opinion on its General Purpose Financial Statements from your auditor for the
fiscal year noted above? (If your institution is audited only in combination with another entity, answer this question based
on the audit of that entity.)
    Unqualified Qualified

(Explain in
box below)

Don't know
(Explain in
box below)               

3. Reporting Model
GASB Statement No. 34 offers three alternative reporting models for special-purpose governments like colleges and
universities. Which model is used by your institution ?
     Business Type Activities

 Governmental Activities

 Governmental Activities with Business-Type Activities

4. Intercollegiate Athletics
If your institution participates in intercollegiate athletics, are the expenses accounted for as auxiliary enterprises or
treated as student services?
 
    Auxiliary enterprises               

    Student services               

    Does not participate in intercollegiate athletics               

    Other (specify in box below)               

5. Endowment Assets
Does this institution or any of its foundations or other affiliated organizations own endowment assets ?
    Yes - (report endowment assets)               

 No

You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.

Foundation

7 2009

6 2010
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part A - Statement of Net Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 
Line no.  Current year amount Prior year amount
 Current Assets   
01 Total current assets  16,447,553

 
 Noncurrent Assets   
31 Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation  37,108,408

04 Other noncurrent assets
CV=[A05-A31]

8,912,471  2,180,393

05 Total noncurrent assets  39,288,801

 
06 Total assets

CV=(A01+A05)
73,042,827  55,736,354

 
 Current Liabilities   
07 Long-term debt, current portion  1,936,858

08 Other current liabilities
CV=(A09-A07)

5,469,565  3,609,983

09 Total current liabilities  5,546,841

 
 Noncurrent Liabilities   
10 Long-term debt  20,412,432

11 Other noncurrent liabilities
CV=(A12-A10)

1,463,179  1,414,328

12 Total noncurrent liabilities  21,826,760

 
13 Total liabilities

CV=(A09+A12)
35,389,752  27,373,601

 
 Net Assets   
14 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  15,311,477

15 Restricted-expendable  472,916

16 Restricted-nonexpendable  0

17 Unrestricted
CV=[A18-(A14+A15+A16)]

14,795,779  12,578,360

18 Total net assets
CV=(A06-A13)

37,653,075  28,362,753

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

20,197,680

43,932,676

52,845,147

2,267,024

7,736,589

26,189,984

27,653,163

22,378,150

479,146

0
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part A - Statement of Net Assets (Page 2)
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 
Line No. Description Ending balance Prior year

Ending balance
 Capital Assets   
 
21 Land & land improvements 3,206,689

22 Infrastructure 0

23 Buildings 42,085,686

32 Equipment, including art and library collections 17,916,941

27 Construction in progress 768,174

Total for Plant, Property and Equipment
CV = (A21+ .. A27)

67,738,229 63,977,490

28 Accumulated depreciation 29,381,824

33 Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization 0

34 Other capital assets 2,512,742

 
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

3,943,433

0

42,064,168

13,699,357

8,031,271

27,403,472

0

3,597,919

213



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 Report in whole dollars only
 
Line No. Source of Funds Current year amount Prior year amount
 Operating Revenues   
01 Tuition & fees, after deducting discounts & allowances 17,941,109

 Grants and contracts - operating   
02 Federal operating grants and contracts 0

03 State operating grants and contracts 0

04 Local government/private operating grants and contracts 0 0
04a Local government operating grants and contracts 0

04b Private operating grants and contracts 0

05 Sales & services of auxiliary enterprises,
after deducting discounts & allowances

573,074

26 Sales & services of educational activities 0

08 Other sources - operating (CV)
CV=[B09-(B01+ ....+B07)]

1,118,340 9,918,814

09 Total operating revenues 28,432,997

 
 

20,271,158

0

0

0

0

662,719

0

22,052,217
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 
Line
No.

Source of funds Current year amount Prior year
amount

 Nonoperating Revenues   
10 Federal appropriations 0

11 State appropriations 14,393,759

12 Local appropriations, education district taxes, & similar support 3,777,010

 Grants-nonoperating   
13 Federal nonoperating grants 8,942,867

14 State nonoperating grants 795,454

15 Local government nonoperating grants 165,943

16 Gifts, including contributions from affiliated organizations 0

17 Investment income 357,964

18 Other nonoperating revenues
CV=[B19-(B10+...+B17)]

0 0

19 Total nonoperating revenues 28,432,997

27 Total operating and nonoperating revenues CV=[B19+B09] 51,060,292 56,865,994
28 12-month Student FTE from E12

CV=[B28a+B28b]
5,130

28a Undergraduates 5,130
28b Graduates

29 Total operating and nonoperating revenues per student FTE
CV=[B27/B28]

9,953

 
 

0

14,390,119

3,890,920

9,971,213

253,344

122,677

125,000

254,802

29,008,075
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 
Line No. Source of funds Current year amount Prior year amount
 Other Revenues and Additions   
20 Capital appropriations 4,703,461

21 Capital grants & gifts 468,605

22 Additions to permanent endowments 0

23 Other revenues & additions
CV=[B24-(B20+...+B22)]

0 0

24 Total other revenues and additions 5,172,066

 
25 Total all revenues and other additions

CV=[B09+B19+B24]
59,741,011 62,038,060

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 
Line 22 - Endowment is held
by the College Foundation

4,523,200

4,157,519

0

8,680,719
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part C - Expenses and Other Deductions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 Report in whole dollars only                              
  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Line
No.

Description Total amount Salaries & wages Employee fringe benefits Operation and
maintenance of plant

Depreciation Interest All
other                    

PY Total
Amount

 Expenses and
Deductions

 

01 Instruction 2,448,37719,810,144

02 Research 0 0

03 Public service 0 0

05 Academic support 958,739 5,397,283

06 Student services 410,264 5,570,691

07 Institutional support 4,797,93312,320,906

08 Operation &
maintenance
of plant (see
instructions)

0 3,999,100

10 Scholarships and
fellowships
expenses, excluding
discounts & allowances

 6,147,923 4,988,120

11 Auxiliary enterprises 53,028 358,425

14 Other expenses
& deductions
CV=[C19-(C01+...+C13)]

148,275 0 0 0 0 0 148,275 0

19 Total expenses &
deductions

0 18,963,639 48,445,569

 Prior year amount 48,445,569 20,403,604 5,773,572 2,452,638  946,200 18,869,555
20 12-month Student FTE

from E12
CV=[C20a+C20b]

5,130

20a Undergraduates 5,130
20b Graduates

21 Total expenses and
deductions per student
FTE CV=[C19/C20]

9,834

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

20,009,584 10,975,493 2,548,369 2,489,477 1,126,437 421,431

6,017,132 3,061,192 785,106 747,393 338,180 126,522

5,655,712 3,153,210 951,443 703,428 318,287 119,080

12,235,999 3,694,494 1,274,820 1,522,263 688,793 257,696

1,030,390 466,044 -5,495,534

6,147,923

236,064 100,573 28,988 32,973 14,919 5,583

50,450,689 22,015,352 6,054,770 2,486,616 930,312

217



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part D - Summary of Changes In Net Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

 
Line No. Description Current year amount Prior year amount
01 Total revenues & other additions (from B25) 59,741,011 62,038,060
 
02 Total expenses & deductions (from C19) 50,450,689 48,445,569
 
03 Change in net assets during year

CV=(D01-D02)
9,290,322 13,592,491

04 Net assets beginning of year 22,987,044

05 Adjustments to beginning net assets and other gains or losses
CV=[D06-(D03+D04)]

0 -8,216,782

06 Net assets end of year (from A18) 37,653,075 28,362,753
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

28,362,753
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part E - Scholarships and Fellowships
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

   
Line No. Source Current year amount Prior year amount
01 Pell grants (federal) 4,988,120

02 Other federal grants 101,699

03 Grants by state government 605,424

04 Grants by local government 0

05 Institutional grants from restricted resources 375,940

06 Institutional grants from unrestricted resources
CV=[E07-(E01+...+E05)]

269,283 193,950

07 Total gross scholarships and fellowships 6,265,133

 
 Discounts and Allowances   
08 Discounts & allowances applied to tuition & fees 1,277,013

09 Discounts & allowances applied to sales & services of
auxiliary enterprises
CV= (E10-E08)

0 0

10 Total discounts & allowances
CV=(E07-E11)

4,507,805 1,277,013

 
11 Net scholarships and fellowships expenses after deducting

discount & allowances (from C10)
6,147,923 4,988,120

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

8,630,183
664,606

698,903

0

392,753

10,655,728

4,507,805
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part H - Details of Endowment Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

Line
No.

Value of Endowment Assets Market Value Prior Year
Amounts

  Include not only endowment assets held by the institution, but any
assets held by private foundations affiliated with the institution.

  

01 Value of endowment assets at the beginning of the fiscal year
 

 504,000

02 Value of endowment assets at the end of the fiscal year
 

 1,444,683

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

1,444,683

1,504,536

220



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part J - Revenue Data for Bureau of Census
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

Source and type Amount
Total for all funds
and operations

(includes
endowment funds,

but excludes component
units)

Education and
general/independent

operations

Auxiliary enterprises Hospitals Agriculture
extension/experiment

services

 (1)  (2) (3) (4) (5)
01 Tuition and fees 24,778,963 24,778,963    
02 Sales and

services
662,719 662,719

03 Federal
grants/contracts
(excludes Pell
Grants)

3,823,290

 Revenue from the state government:
04 State

appropriations,
current &
capital

16,687,107

05 State grants
and contracts

2,121,513

 Revenue from local governments:
06 Local

appropriation,
current &
capital

6,117,132

07 Local
government
grants/contracts

1,950,000

08 Receipts from
property and
non-property
taxes

 

09 Gifts and
private grants,
including capital
grants

 

10 Interest
earnings

 

11 Dividend
earnings

 

12 Realized capital
gains

 

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

3,823,290

16,687,107

2,121,513

6,117,132

1,950,000

0

587,027

254,802
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part K - Expenditure Data for Bureau of Census
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

Category Amount
Total for all funds and
operations (includes

endowment funds, but
excludes component

units)

Education and general/
independent operations

Auxiliary enterprises Hospitals Agriculture extension/
experiment services

 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
01 Salaries and wages 22,015,352 100,573

02 Employee benefits, total 5,984,322 28,988

03 Payment to state
retirement funds (maybe
included in line 02
above)

70,448

04 Current expenditures
other than salaries

12,667,441

 Capital outlay:  
05 Construction 7,978,323

06 Equipment purchases 1,561,607

07 Land purchases 0

08 Interest on debt
outstanding, all funds &
activities

 

09 Scholarships/fellowships 10,655,728 10,655,728  
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

21,914,779

5,955,334

70,448

12,614,413 53,028

7,978,323

1,561,607

930,312
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part L - Debt and Assets, page 1
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

Debt
Category Amount
01 Long-term debt outstanding at beginning of fiscal year

02 Long-term debt issued during fiscal year

03 Long-term debt retired during fiscal year

04 Long-term debt outstanding at end of fiscal year

05 Short-term debt outstanding at beginning of fiscal year

06 Short-term debt outstanding at end of fiscal year

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

22,172,897

8,000,000

1,932,156

28,240,741
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part L - Debt and Assets, page 2
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2009 - June 30, 2010

Assets
Category Amount
07 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in sinking or debt service funds

08 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in bond funds

09 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in all other funds

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

8,074,479

16,076,875
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525) User ID: P2135251
Summary

Finance Survey Summary

IPEDS collects important information regarding your institution. All data reported in IPEDS
survey components become available in the IPEDS Data Center and appear as aggregated data
in various Department of Education reports. Additionally, some of the reported data appears
specifically for your institution through the College Navigator website and is included in your
institution’s Data Feedback Report (DFR). The purpose of this summary is to provide you an
opportunity to view some of the data that, when accepted through the IPEDS quality control
process, will appear on the College Navigator website and/or your DFR. College Navigator is
updated approximately three months after the data collection period closes and Data Feedback
Reports will be available through the ExPT and sent to your institution’s CEO in November 2011.

Please review your data for accuracy. If you have questions about the data displayed below
after reviewing the data reported on the survey screens, please contact the IPEDS Help Desk at:
1-877-225-2568 or ipedshelp@rti.org.

Core Revenues

Revenue Source Reported values Percent of total core
revenues

Core revenues per FTE
enrollment

Tuition and fees $20,271,158 34% $3,951

Government appropriations $18,281,039 31% $3,564

Government grants and contracts $10,347,234 18% $2,017

Private gifts, grants, and contracts $125,000 0% $24

Investment income $254,802 0% $50

Other core revenues $9,799,059 17% $1,910

Total core revenues $59,078,292 100% $11,516

 

Total revenues $59,741,011  $11,645

Core revenues include tuition and fees; government appropriations (federal, state, and local); government grants and
contracts; private gifts, grants, and contracts; investment income; other operating and nonoperating sources; and other
revenues and additions. Core revenues exclude revenues from auxiliary enterprises (e.g., bookstores, dormitories), hospitals,
and independent operations.

Core Expenses

Expense function Reported values Percent of total core
expenses

Core expenses per FTE
enrollment

Instruction $20,009,584 40% $3,901

Research $0 0% $0

Public service $0 0% $0

Academic support $6,017,132 12% $1,173

Institutional support $12,235,999 24% $2,385

Student services $5,655,712 11% $1,102
225



Core Expenses

Other core expenses $6,296,198 13% $1,227

Total core expenses $50,214,625 100% $9,788

 

Total expenses $50,450,689  $9,834

Core expenses include expenses for instruction, research, public service, academic support, institutional support, student
services, operation and maintenance of plant, depreciation, scholarships and fellowships expenses, other expenses, and
nonoperating expenses.

 Calculated value

FTE enrollment 5,130

The full-time equivalent (FTE) enrollment used in this report is the sum of the institution’s FTE undergraduate enrollment and
FTE graduate enrollment (as calculated from or reported on the 12-month Enrollment component). FTE is estimated using 12-
month instructional activity (credit and/or contact hours). All doctor’s degree students are reported as graduate students.
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Institution:  Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525) User ID:  P2135251
Explanation Report

Number Source Location Description Severity Accepted

Screen: Part E - Scholarships and Fellowships

1 Row: 13
Col: 3

Screen
Entry

The number entered, 10,655,728, has
an expected range of between
3,132,567 and 9,397,699 based on
last year's amount. Please explain this
difference.

Explanation Yes

Reason: Due to increase in PELL grants from the prior year.

2 Row: 16
Col: 3

Screen
Entry

The number entered, 4,507,805, has
an expected range of between
638,507 and 1,915,519 based on last
year's amount. Please explain this
difference.

Explanation Yes

Reason: Due to the overall increase in scholarships
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Finance 2011-12

Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Overview
Finance Overview

 Purpose  
 The purpose of the IPEDS Finance component is to collect basic financial information from items associated with the
institution's General Purpose Financial Statements.

 

   
   
   
   
 Resources:
To download the survey materials for this component: Survey Materials

 

 To access your prior year data submission for this component: Reported Data  

If you have questions about completing this survey, please contact the IPEDS Help Desk at 1-877-225-2568.
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Finance - Public institutions
Reporting Standard

Please indicate which reporting standards are used to prepare your financial statements:
      GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board), using standards of GASB 34 & 35

 FASB (Financial Accounting Standards Board)

Please consult your business officer for the correct response before saving this screen. Your response to this
question will determine the forms you will receive for reporting finance data.
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Finance - Public institutions
General Information

GASB-Reporting Institutions (aligned form)
To the extent possible, the finance data requested in this report should be provided from your institution's audited
General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS). Please refer to the instructions specific to each screen of the survey for
details and references.
1. Fiscal Year Calendar
This report covers financial activities for the 12-month fiscal year: (The fiscal year reported should be the most
recent fiscal year ending before October 1, 2011.)
Beginning: month/year
(MMYYYY)

Month: Year:

And ending: month/year
(MMYYYY)

Month: Year:

2. Audit Opinion
Did your institution receive an unqualified opinion on its General Purpose Financial Statements from your auditor for the
fiscal year noted above? (If your institution is audited only in combination with another entity, answer this question based
on the audit of that entity.)
    Unqualified Qualified

(Explain in
box below)

Don't know
(Explain in
box below)               

3. Reporting Model
GASB Statement No. 34 offers three alternative reporting models for special-purpose governments like colleges and
universities. Which model is used by your institution ?
     Business Type Activities

 Governmental Activities

 Governmental Activities with Business-Type Activities

4. Intercollegiate Athletics
If your institution participates in intercollegiate athletics, are the expenses accounted for as auxiliary enterprises or
treated as student services?
 
    Auxiliary enterprises               

    Student services               

    Does not participate in intercollegiate athletics               

    Other (specify in box below)               

5. Endowment Assets
Does this institution or any of its foundations or other affiliated organizations own endowment assets ?
    Yes - (report endowment assets)               

 No

You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.

The endowment is held by the College Foundation.

7 2010

6 2011
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part A - Statement of Net Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 
Line no.  Current year amount Prior year amount
 Current Assets   
01 Total current assets  20,197,680

 
 Noncurrent Assets   
31 Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation  43,932,676

04 Other noncurrent assets
CV=[A05-A31]

3,499,664  8,912,471

05 Total noncurrent assets  52,845,147

 
06 Total assets

CV=(A01+A05)
75,180,582  73,042,827

 
 Current Liabilities   
07 Long-term debt, current portion  2,267,024

08 Other current liabilities
CV=(A09-A07)

4,764,444  5,469,565

09 Total current liabilities  7,736,589

 
 Noncurrent Liabilities   
10 Long-term debt  26,189,984

11 Other noncurrent liabilities
CV=(A12-A10)

804,402  1,463,179

12 Total noncurrent liabilities  27,653,163

 
13 Total liabilities

CV=(A09+A12)
31,751,964  35,389,752

 
 Net Assets   
14 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt  22,378,150

15 Restricted-expendable  479,146

16 Restricted-nonexpendable  0

17 Unrestricted
CV=[A18-(A14+A15+A16)]

14,866,453  14,795,779

18 Total net assets
CV=(A06-A13)

43,428,618  37,653,075

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

19,440,766

52,240,152

55,739,816

2,416,961

7,181,405

23,766,157

24,570,559

28,080,829

481,336

0

232



233



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part A - Statement of Net Assets (Page 2)
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 
Line No. Description Ending balance Prior year

Ending balance
 Capital Assets   
 
21 Land & land improvements 3,943,433

22 Infrastructure 0

23 Buildings 42,064,168

32 Equipment, including art and library collections 13,699,357

27 Construction in progress 8,031,271

Total for Plant, Property and Equipment
CV = (A21+ .. A27)

78,542,153 67,738,229

28 Accumulated depreciation 27,403,472

33 Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization 0

34 Other capital assets 3,597,919

 
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 
Other capital assets equal equipment acquired through capital leases.

5,071,059

0

58,106,483

13,989,776

1,374,835

29,899,920

0

3,597,919
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 Report in whole dollars only
 
Line No. Source of Funds Current year amount Prior year amount
 Operating Revenues   
01 Tuition & fees, after deducting discounts & allowances 20,271,158

 Grants and contracts - operating   
02 Federal operating grants and contracts 0

03 State operating grants and contracts 0

04 Local government/private operating grants and contracts 0 0
04a Local government operating grants and contracts 0

04b Private operating grants and contracts 0

05 Sales & services of auxiliary enterprises,
after deducting discounts & allowances

662,719

26 Sales & services of educational activities 0

08 Other sources - operating (CV)
CV=[B09-(B01+ ....+B07)]

833,894 1,118,340

09 Total operating revenues 22,052,217

 
 

19,902,176

0

0

0

0

657,726

0

21,393,796
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 
Line
No.

Source of funds Current year amount Prior year
amount

 Nonoperating Revenues   
10 Federal appropriations 0

11 State appropriations 14,390,119

12 Local appropriations, education district taxes, & similar support 3,890,920

 Grants-nonoperating   
13 Federal nonoperating grants 9,971,213

14 State nonoperating grants 253,344

15 Local government nonoperating grants 122,677

16 Gifts, including contributions from affiliated organizations 125,000

17 Investment income 254,802

18 Other nonoperating revenues
CV=[B19-(B10+...+B17)]

0 0

19 Total nonoperating revenues 29,008,075

27 Total operating and nonoperating revenues CV=[B19+B09] 50,971,260 51,060,292
28 12-month Student FTE from E12

CV=[B28a+B28b]
4,917

28a Undergraduates 4,917
28b Graduates

29 Total operating and nonoperating revenues per student FTE
CV=[B27/B28]

10,366

 
 

0

14,375,716

3,978,537

10,590,945

264,924

81,699

130,000

155,643

29,577,464
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 
Line No. Source of funds Current year amount Prior year amount
 Other Revenues and Additions   
20 Capital appropriations 4,523,200

21 Capital grants & gifts 4,157,519

22 Additions to permanent endowments 0

23 Other revenues & additions
CV=[B24-(B20+...+B22)]

0 0

24 Total other revenues and additions 8,680,719

 
25 Total all revenues and other additions

CV=[B09+B19+B24]
57,419,454 59,741,011

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

4,819,433

1,628,761

0

6,448,194
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part C - Expenses and Other Deductions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 Report in whole dollars only                              
  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Line
No.

Description Total amount Salaries & wages Employee fringe benefits Operation and
maintenance of plant

Depreciation Interest All
other                    

PY Total
Amount

 Expenses and
Deductions

 

01 Instruction 2,049,66120,009,584

02 Research 0 0

03 Public service 0 0

05 Academic support 1,184,300 6,017,132

06 Student services 476,232 5,655,712

07 Institutional support 4,415,06112,235,999

08 Operation &
maintenance
of plant (see
instructions)

0 4,036,373 0

10 Scholarships and
fellowships
expenses, excluding
discounts & allowances

 7,045,360 6,147,923

11 Auxiliary enterprises 56,020 236,064

14 Other expenses
& deductions
CV=[C19-(C01+...+C13)]

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 148,275

19 Total expenses &
deductions

0 19,263,007 50,450,689

 Prior year amount 50,450,689 22,015,352 6,054,770 2,486,616  930,312 18,963,639
20 12-month Student FTE

from E12
CV=[C20a+C20b]

4,917

20a Undergraduates 4,917
20b Graduates

21 Total expenses and
deductions per student
FTE CV=[C19/C20]

10,503

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

19,405,852 10,596,492 2,737,925 2,434,815 1,111,109 475,850

6,931,286 3,391,220 919,289 869,655 396,860 169,962

5,636,446 3,023,119 968,967 707,194 322,723 138,211

12,364,162 3,653,148 1,733,537 1,551,308 707,928 303,180

1,046,701 512,621 -5,595,695

7,045,360

260,805 106,749 43,985 32,723 14,933 6,395

51,643,911 21,817,429 6,916,324 2,553,553 1,093,598
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part D - Summary of Changes In Net Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

 
Line No. Description Current year amount Prior year amount
01 Total revenues & other additions (from B25) 57,419,454 59,741,011
 
02 Total expenses & deductions (from C19) 51,643,911 50,450,689
 
03 Change in net assets during year

CV=(D01-D02)
5,775,543 9,290,322

04 Net assets beginning of year 28,362,753

05 Adjustments to beginning net assets and other gains or losses
CV=[D06-(D03+D04)]

0 0

06 Net assets end of year (from A18) 43,428,618 37,653,075
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

37,653,075
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part E - Scholarships and Fellowships
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

   
Line No. Source Current year amount Prior year amount
01 Pell grants (federal) 8,630,183

02 Other federal grants 664,606

03 Grants by state government 698,903

04 Grants by local government 0

05 Institutional grants from restricted resources 392,753

06 Institutional grants from unrestricted resources
CV=[E07-(E01+...+E05)]

223,938 269,283

07 Total gross scholarships and fellowships 10,655,728

 
 Discounts and Allowances   
08 Discounts & allowances applied to tuition & fees 4,507,805

09 Discounts & allowances applied to sales & services of
auxiliary enterprises
CV= (E10-E08)

0 0

10 Total discounts & allowances
CV=(E07-E11)

4,076,176 4,507,805

 
11 Net scholarships and fellowships expenses after deducting

discount & allowances (from C10)
7,045,360 6,147,923

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

9,380,763

604,744

604,904

0

307,187

11,121,536

4,076,176
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part H - Details of Endowment Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

Line
No.

Value of Endowment Assets Market Value Prior Year
Amounts

  Include not only endowment assets held by the institution, but any
assets held by private foundations affiliated with the institution.

  

01 Value of endowment assets at the beginning of the fiscal year
 

 1,444,683

02 Value of endowment assets at the end of the fiscal year
 

 1,504,536

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 
LCCC Foundation

2,008,536

2,117,147
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part J - Revenue Data for Bureau of Census
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

Source and type Amount
Total for all funds
and operations

(includes
endowment funds,

but excludes component
units)

Education and
general/independent

operations

Auxiliary enterprises Hospitals Agriculture
extension/experiment

services

 (1)  (2) (3) (4) (5)
01 Tuition and fees 23,978,352 23,978,352    
02 Sales and

services
657,726 657,726

03 Federal
grants/contracts
(excludes Pell
Grants)

3,545,585

 Revenue from the state government:
04 State

appropriations,
current &
capital

16,969,368

05 State grants
and contracts

1,393,674

 Revenue from local governments:
06 Local

appropriation,
current &
capital

6,204,318

07 Local
government
grants/contracts

50,000

08 Receipts from
property and
non-property
taxes

 

09 Gifts and
private grants,
including capital
grants

 

10 Interest
earnings

 

11 Dividend
earnings

 

12 Realized capital
gains

 

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

3,545,585

16,969,368

1,393,674

6,204,318

50,000

0

671,710

155,643

0

0
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part K - Expenditure Data for Bureau of Census
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

Category Amount
Total for all funds and
operations (includes

endowment funds, but
excludes component

units)

Education and general/
independent operations

Auxiliary enterprises Hospitals Agriculture extension/
experiment services

 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
01 Salaries and wages 21,817,429 106,749

02 Employee benefits, total 6,839,797 43,985

03 Payment to state
retirement funds (maybe
included in line 02
above)

76,527

04 Current expenditures
other than salaries

12,217,647

 Capital outlay:  
05 Construction 10,513,505

06 Equipment purchases 254,894

07 Land purchases 0

08 Interest on debt
outstanding, all funds &
activities

 

09 Scholarships/fellowships 11,121,536 11,121,536  
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

21,710,680

6,795,812

76,527

12,161,627 56,020

10,513,505

254,894

0

1,093,598
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part L - Debt and Assets, page 1
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

Debt
Category Amount
01 Long-term debt outstanding at beginning of fiscal year

02 Long-term debt issued during fiscal year

03 Long-term debt retired during fiscal year

04 Long-term debt outstanding at end of fiscal year

05 Short-term debt outstanding at beginning of fiscal year

06 Short-term debt outstanding at end of fiscal year

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

28,240,741

0

2,267,024

25,973,717

0

0
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part L - Debt and Assets, page 2
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2010 - June 30, 2011

Assets
Category Amount
07 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in sinking or debt service funds

08 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in bond funds

09 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in all other funds

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

0

2,716,274

17,136,321
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525) User ID: P2135251
Summary

Finance Survey Summary

IPEDS collects important information regarding your institution. All data reported in IPEDS
survey components become available in the IPEDS Data Center and appear as aggregated data
in various Department of Education reports. Additionally, some of the reported data appears
specifically for your institution through the College Navigator website and is included in your
institution’s Data Feedback Report (DFR). The purpose of this summary is to provide you an
opportunity to view some of the data that, when accepted through the IPEDS quality control
process, will appear on the College Navigator website and/or your DFR. College Navigator is
updated approximately three months after the data collection period closes and Data Feedback
Reports will be available through the ExPT and sent to your institution’s CEO in November 2012.

Please review your data for accuracy. If you have questions about the data displayed below
after reviewing the data reported on the survey screens, please contact the IPEDS Help Desk at:
1-877-225-2568 or ipedshelp@rti.org.

Core Revenues

Revenue Source Reported values Percent of total core
revenues

Core revenues per FTE
enrollment

Tuition and fees $19,902,176 35% $4,048

Government appropriations $18,354,253 32% $3,733

Government grants and contracts $10,937,568 19% $2,224

Private gifts, grants, and contracts $130,000 0% $26

Investment income $155,643 0% $32

Other core revenues $7,282,088 13% $1,481

Total core revenues $56,761,728 100% $11,544

 

Total revenues $57,419,454  $11,678

Core revenues include tuition and fees; government appropriations (federal, state, and local); government grants and
contracts; private gifts, grants, and contracts; investment income; other operating and nonoperating sources; and other
revenues and additions. Core revenues exclude revenues from auxiliary enterprises (e.g., bookstores, dormitories), hospitals,
and independent operations.

Core Expenses

Expense function Reported values Percent of total core
expenses

Core expenses per FTE
enrollment

Instruction $19,405,852 38% $3,947

Research $0 0% $0

Public service $0 0% $0

Academic support $6,931,286 13% $1,410

Institutional support $12,364,162 24% $2,515

Student services $5,636,446 11% $1,146
246



Core Expenses

Other core expenses $7,045,360 14% $1,433

Total core expenses $51,383,106 100% $10,450

 

Total expenses $51,643,911  $10,503

Core expenses include expenses for instruction, research, public service, academic support, institutional support, student
services, operation and maintenance of plant, depreciation, scholarships and fellowships expenses, other expenses, and
nonoperating expenses.

 Calculated value

FTE enrollment 4,917

The full-time equivalent (FTE) enrollment used in this report is the sum of the institution’s FTE undergraduate enrollment and
FTE graduate enrollment (as calculated from or reported on the 12-month Enrollment component). FTE is estimated using 12-
month instructional activity (credit and/or contact hours). All doctor’s degree students are reported as graduate students.
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Institution:  Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525) User ID:  P2135251
Edit Report

 Finance
Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)

Source Description Severity Resolved Options
Screen: Endowment data

Screen
Entry

Value of endowment assets
(beginning of year) is expected to
be equal to the prior year's value of
endowment assets (end of year).
Please explain. (Error #5186)

Explanation Yes Back to
survey
data

Reason: On last years report only the permanent endowment was included.
The 10-11 beginning and ending now reflects permanent and
temporary endowment.
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Finance 2012-13

Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Overview
Finance Overview

 Purpose  
 The purpose of the IPEDS Finance component is to collect basic financial information from items associated with the
institution's General Purpose Financial Statements.

 

   
   
   
   
 Resources:
To download the survey materials for this component: Survey Materials

 

 To access your prior year data submission for this component: Reported Data  

If you have questions about completing this survey, please contact the IPEDS Help Desk at 1-877-225-2568.
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Finance - Public institutions
Reporting Standard

Please indicate which reporting standards are used to prepare your financial statements:
      

 
GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board), using standards of GASB 34 & 35

 
 

FASB (Financial Accounting Standards Board)

Please consult your business officer for the correct response before saving this screen. Your response to this
question will determine the forms you will receive for reporting finance data.

250



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Finance - Public institutions
General Information

GASB-Reporting Institutions (aligned form)
To the extent possible, the finance data requested in this report should be provided from your institution's audited
General Purpose Financial Statements (GPFS). Please refer to the instructions specific to each screen of the survey for
details and references.
1. Fiscal Year Calendar
This report covers financial activities for the 12-month fiscal year: (The fiscal year reported should be the most
recent fiscal year ending before October 1, 2012.)
Beginning: month/year
(MMYYYY)

Month:
 

Year:
 

And ending: month/year
(MMYYYY)

Month:
 

Year:
 

2. Audit Opinion
Did your institution receive an unqualified opinion on its General Purpose Financial Statements from your auditor for the
fiscal year noted above? (If your institution is audited only in combination with another entity, answer this question based
on the audit of that entity.)
    

 
Unqualified

 
Qualified
(Explain in
box below)

 
Don't know
(Explain in
box below)               

3. Reporting Model
GASB Statement No. 34 offers three alternative reporting models for special-purpose governments like colleges and
universities. Which model is used by your institution?
     

 
Business Type Activities

 
 

Governmental Activities

 
 

Governmental Activities with Business-Type Activities

 
4. Intercollegiate Athletics
If your institution participates in intercollegiate athletics, are the expenses accounted for as auxiliary enterprises or
treated as student services?
 
    

 
Auxiliary enterprises               

    
 

Student services               

    
 

Does not participate in intercollegiate athletics               

    
 

Other (specify in box below)               

5. Endowment Assets
Does this institution or any of its foundations or other affiliated organizations own endowment assets ?
    

 
Yes - (report endowment assets)               

 
 

No

You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 
Endowments are held by Lehigh Carbon Community College's Foundation

7 2011

6 2012
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part A - Statement of Net Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

If your institution is a parent institution then the amounts reported in Parts A and D should include ALL of your
child institutions

 
Line no.  Current year amount Prior year amount
 Current Assets   
01 Total current assets

 
 19,440,766

 
 Noncurrent Assets   
31 Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation

 
 52,240,152

04 Other noncurrent assets
CV=[A05-A31]

 1,687,489  3,499,664

05 Total noncurrent assets
 

 55,739,816

 
06 Total assets

CV=(A01+A05)
 76,853,798  75,180,582

 
 Current Liabilities   
07 Long-term debt, current portion

 
 2,416,961

08 Other current liabilities
CV=(A09-A07)

 3,864,628  4,764,444

09 Total current liabilities
 

 7,181,405

 
 Noncurrent Liabilities   
10 Long-term debt

 
 23,766,157

11 Other noncurrent liabilities
CV=(A12-A10)

 136,071  804,402

12 Total noncurrent liabilities
 

 24,570,559

 
13 Total liabilities

CV=(A09+A12)
 29,769,514  31,751,964

 
 Net Assets   
14 Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

 
 28,080,829

15 Restricted-expendable
 

 481,336

16 Restricted-nonexpendable
 

 0

17 Unrestricted
CV=[A18-(A14+A15+A16)]

 17,460,017  14,866,453

18 Total net assets
CV=(A06-A13)

 47,084,284  43,428,618

21,769,004

53,397,305

55,084,794

3,254,320

7,118,948

22,514,495

22,650,566

29,151,252

473,015

0
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You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part A - Statement of Net Assets (Page 2)
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

 
Line No. Description Ending balance Prior year

Ending balance
 Capital Assets   
 
21 Land & land improvements

 
 5,071,059

22 Infrastructure
 

 0

23 Buildings
 

 58,106,483

32 Equipment, including art and library collections
 

 13,989,776

27 Construction in progress
 

 1,374,835

 Total for Plant, Property and Equipment
CV = (A21+ .. A27)

 79,294,850  78,542,153

28 Accumulated depreciation
 

 29,899,920

33 Intangible assets, net of accumulated amortization
 

 0

34 Other capital assets
 

 3,597,919

 
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

7,077,736

0

56,231,910

14,224,864

1,760,340

32,977,315

0

5,059,770
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part E - Scholarships and Fellowships
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

DO NOT REPORT FEDERAL DIRECT STUDENT LOANS (FDSL) ANYWHERE IN THIS SECTION
    

 
Line
No.

Source Current year amount Prior year
amount

01 Pell grants (federal)
 

 9,380,763

02 Other federal grants (Do NOT include FDSL amounts)
 

 604,744

03 Grants by state government
 

 604,904

04 Grants by local government
 

 0

05 Institutional grants from restricted resources
 

 307,187

06 Institutional grants from unrestricted resources
CV=[E07-(E01+...+E05)]

 311,290  223,938

07 Total gross scholarships and fellowships
 

 11,121,536

 
 Discounts and Allowances   
08 Discounts & allowances applied to tuition & fees

 
 4,076,176

09 Discounts & allowances applied to sales & services of
auxiliary enterprises  

 0

10 Total discounts & allowances
CV=(E08+E09)

 4,182,201  4,076,176

 
11 Net scholarships and fellowships expenses after deducting

discounts & allowances
CV= (E07-E10) This amount will be carried forward to C10 of the
expense section.

 5,206,171  7,045,360

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

7,868,020

236,508

866,768

0

105,786

9,388,372

4,182,201

0
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

 Report in whole dollars only
 
Line No. Source of Funds Current year amount Prior year amount
 Operating Revenues   
01 Tuition & fees, after deducting discounts & allowances

 
 19,902,176

 Grants and contracts - operating   
02 Federal operating grants and contracts

 
 0

03 State operating grants and contracts
 

 0

04 Local government/private operating grants and contracts  0  0
 04a Local government operating grants and contracts

 
 0

 04b Private operating grants and contracts
 

 0

05 Sales & services of auxiliary enterprises,
after deducting discounts & allowances  

 657,726

26 Sales & services of educational activities
 

 0

08 Other sources - operating (CV)
CV=[B09-(B01+ ....+B26)]

 824,190  833,894

09 Total operating revenues
 

 21,393,796

 
 
 

18,740,848

0

0

0

0

544,292

0

20,109,330

257



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

 
Line
No.

Source of funds Current year amount Prior year
amount

 Nonoperating Revenues   
10 Federal appropriations

 
 0

11 State appropriations
 

 14,375,716

12 Local appropriations, education district taxes, & similar support
 

 3,978,537

 Grants-nonoperating   
13 Federal nonoperating grants Do NOT include Federal Direct

Student Loans  
 10,590,945

14 State nonoperating grants
 

 264,924

15 Local government nonoperating grants
 

 81,699

16 Gifts, including contributions from affiliated organizations
 

 130,000

17 Investment income
 

 155,643

18 Other nonoperating revenues
CV=[B19-(B10+...+B17)]

 425,057  0

19 Total nonoperating revenues
 

 29,577,464

27 Total operating and nonoperating revenues CV=[B19+B09]  45,784,146  50,971,260
28 12-month Student FTE from E12  4,466  4,917
29 Total operating and nonoperating revenues per student FTE

CV=[B27/B28]
 10,252  10,366

 
 
 

0

12,977,389

4,018,232

7,868,020

182,536

99,354

0

104,228

25,674,816
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part B - Revenues and Other Additions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

 
Line No. Source of funds Current year amount Prior year amount
 Other Revenues and Additions   
20 Capital appropriations

 
 4,819,433

21 Capital grants & gifts
 

 1,628,761

22 Additions to permanent endowments
 

 0

23 Other revenues & additions
CV=[B24-(B20+...+B22)]

 0  0

24 Total other revenues and additions
 

 6,448,194

 
25 Total all revenues and other additions

CV=[B09+B19+B24]
 51,082,956  57,419,454

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

 

4,903,667

395,143

0

5,298,810
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part C - Expenses and Other Deductions
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Report Total Operating AND Non-Operating Expenses in this section
 Report in whole dollars only                              
  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Line
No.

Description Total amount Salaries & wages Employee fringe benefits Operation and
maintenance of plant

Depreciation Interest All
other                    

PY Total
Amount

 Expenses and
Deductions

 

01 Instruction
      

 1,735,112  19,405,852

02 Research
      

 0  0

03 Public service
      

 0  0

05 Academic support
      

 1,094,299  6,931,286

06 Student services
      

 475,580  5,636,446

07 Institutional support
      

 4,023,444  12,364,162

08 Operation &
maintenance
of plant (see
instructions)

0
     

 3,139,207 0

10 Scholarships and
fellowships
expenses, excluding
discounts & allowances
(from E11)

 5,206,171   5,206,171  7,045,360

11 Auxiliary enterprises
      

 73,821  260,805

14 Other expenses
& deductions
CV=[C19-(C01+...+C13)]

 92,940  0  0  0  0  0  92,940  0

19 Total expenses &
deductions    

0
  

 15,840,574  51,643,911

 Prior year amount  51,643,911  21,817,429  6,916,324   2,553,553  1,093,598  19,263,007  
20 12-month Student FTE

from E12
 4,466   4,917

21 Total expenses and
deductions per student
FTE CV=[C19/C20]

 10,620   10,503

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

18,273,388 9,948,762 2,891,941 2,029,948 1,334,841 332,784

6,748,448 3,328,045 960,573 749,669 492,963 122,899

5,292,043 2,846,208 899,423 587,881 386,575 96,376

11,545,535 3,583,828 1,602,053 1,282,567 843,383 210,260

1,008,224 532,490 -4,679,921

268,765 107,716 32,844 29,856 19,633 4,895

47,427,290 20,822,783 6,919,324 3,077,395 767,214
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part D - Summary of Changes In Net Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

 
Line No. Description Current year amount Prior year amount
01 Total revenues & other additions (from B25)  51,082,956  57,419,454
 
02 Total expenses & deductions (from C19)  47,427,290  51,643,911
 
03 Change in net assets during year

CV=(D01-D02)
 3,655,666  5,775,543

04 Net assets beginning of year
 

 37,653,075

05 Adjustments to beginning net assets and other gains or losses
CV=[D06-(D03+D04)]

 0  0

06 Net assets end of year (from A18)  47,084,284  43,428,618
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

43,428,618
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part H - Details of Endowment Assets
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Line
No.

Value of Endowment Assets Market Value Prior Year
Amounts

  Include not only endowment assets held by the institution, but any
assets held by private foundations affiliated with the institution.

  

01 Value of endowment assets at the beginning of the fiscal year
 

 2,008,536

02 Value of endowment assets at the end of the fiscal year
 

 2,117,147

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

2,117,147

2,101,072

262



Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part J - Revenue Data for Bureau of Census
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Source and type Amount
Total for all funds
and operations

(includes
endowment funds,

but excludes component
units)

Education and
general/independent

operations

Auxiliary enterprises Hospitals Agriculture
extension/experiment

services

 (1)  (2) (3) (4) (5)
01 Tuition and fees  22,923,049  22,923,049    
02 Sales and

services
 544,292

 
 544,292   

 
03 Federal

grants/contracts
(excludes Pell
Grants)

 2,568,910
    

 Revenue from the state government:
04 State

appropriations,
current &
capital

 15,566,884
    

05 State grants
and contracts

 1,421,783
    

 Revenue from local governments:
06 Local

appropriation,
current &
capital

 6,342,404
    

07 Local
government
grants/contracts

 0
    

08 Receipts from
property and
non-property
taxes

 
 

09 Gifts and
private grants,
including capital
grants

 
 

10 Interest
earnings  

 

11 Dividend
earnings  

 

12 Realized capital
gains  

 

 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

2,568,910

15,566,884

1,421,783

6,342,404

0

494,497

104,228
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part K - Expenditure Data for Bureau of Census
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Category Amount
Total for all funds and
operations (includes

endowment funds, but
excludes component units)

Education and general/
independent operations

Auxiliary enterprises Hospitals Agriculture extension/
experiment services

 (1) (2) (3) (4) (5)
01 Salaries and wages  20,822,783

 
 107,716   

 
02 Employee benefits, total  6,836,087

 
 32,844   

 
03 Payment to state

retirement funds (maybe
included in line 02
above)

 83,237
    

04 Current expenditures
other than salaries

 10,576,411
    

 Capital outlay:  
05 Construction  2,537,609

    
06 Equipment purchases  1,696,939

    
07 Land purchases  0

    
08 Interest on debt

outstanding, all funds &
activities

 
 

09 Scholarships/fellowships  9,388,372  9,388,372  
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

20,715,067

6,803,243

83,237

10,522,027 54,384

2,537,609

1,696,939

767,213
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part L - Debt and Assets, page 1
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Debt
Category Amount
01 Long-term debt outstanding at beginning of fiscal year

 
02 Long-term debt issued during fiscal year

 
03 Long-term debt retired during fiscal year

 
04 Long-term debt outstanding at end of fiscal year

 
05 Short-term debt outstanding at beginning of fiscal year

 
06 Short-term debt outstanding at end of fiscal year

 
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

27,646,336

1,597,921

3,339,371

25,904,886
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Part L - Debt and Assets, page 2
Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012

Assets
Category Amount
07 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in sinking or debt service funds

 
08 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in bond funds

 
09 Total cash and security assets held at end of fiscal year in all other funds

 
 
You may use the space below to provide context for the data you've reported above.
 

947,651

19,077,159
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)
User ID: P2135251

Prepared by
 
This survey component was prepared by:
 

  
Keyholder

  
SFA Contact

  
HR Contact

  
Finance Contact

  
Other  

 Name:
 

 

 Email:
 

 

 
How long did it take to prepare this survey
component?  

hours
 

minutes  

 
The name of the preparer is being collected so that we can follow up with the appropriate person in the event that there
are questions concerning the data. The Keyholder will be copied on all email correspondence to other preparers.
The time it took to prepare this component is being collected so that we can continue to improve our estimate of the
reporting burden associated with IPEDS. Please include in your estimate the time it took for you to review instructions,
query and search data sources, complete and review the component, and submit the data through the Data Collection
System.
Thank you for your assistance.

Connie Burns

cburns1@lccc.edu

36
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Institution: Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525) User ID: P2135251
Summary

Finance Survey Summary

IPEDS collects important information regarding your institution. All data reported in IPEDS
survey components become available in the IPEDS Data Center and appear as aggregated data
in various Department of Education reports. Additionally, some of the reported data appears
specifically for your institution through the College Navigator website and is included in your
institution’s Data Feedback Report (DFR). The purpose of this summary is to provide you an
opportunity to view some of the data that, when accepted through the IPEDS quality control
process, will appear on the College Navigator website and/or your DFR. College Navigator is
updated approximately three months after the data collection period closes and Data Feedback
Reports will be available through the ExPT and sent to your institution’s CEO in November 2013.

Please review your data for accuracy. If you have questions about the data displayed below
after reviewing the data reported on the survey screens, please contact the IPEDS Help Desk at:
1-877-225-2568 or ipedshelp@rti.org.

Core Revenues

Revenue Source Reported values Percent of total core
revenues

Core revenues per FTE
enrollment

Tuition and fees $18,740,848 37% $4,196

Government appropriations $16,995,621 34% $3,806

Government grants and contracts $8,149,910 16% $1,825

Private gifts, grants, and contracts $0 0% $0

Investment income $104,228 0% $23

Other core revenues $6,548,057 13% $1,466

Total core revenues $50,538,664 100% $11,316

 

Total revenues $51,082,956  $11,438

Core revenues include tuition and fees; government appropriations (federal, state, and local); government grants and
contracts; private gifts, grants, and contracts; investment income; other operating and nonoperating sources; and other
revenues and additions. Core revenues exclude revenues from auxiliary enterprises (e.g., bookstores, dormitories), hospitals,
and independent operations.

Core Expenses

Expense function Reported values Percent of total core
expenses

Core expenses per FTE
enrollment

Instruction $18,273,388 39% $4,092

Research $0 0% $0

Public service $0 0% $0

Academic support $6,748,448 14% $1,511

Institutional support $11,545,535 24% $2,585

Student services $5,292,043 11% $1,185
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Core Expenses

Other core expenses $5,299,111 11% $1,187

Total core expenses $47,158,525 100% $10,559

 

Total expenses $47,427,290  $10,620

Core expenses include expenses for instruction, research, public service, academic support, institutional support, student
services, operation and maintenance of plant, depreciation, scholarships and fellowships expenses, other expenses, and
nonoperating expenses.

 Calculated value

FTE enrollment 4,466

The full-time equivalent (FTE) enrollment used in this report is the sum of the institution’s FTE undergraduate enrollment and
FTE graduate enrollment (as calculated from or reported on the 12-month Enrollment component). FTE is estimated using 12-
month instructional activity (credit and/or contact hours). All doctor’s degree students are reported as graduate students.
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Institution:  Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525) User ID:  P2135251
Edit Report

Finance 

Lehigh Carbon Community College (213525)

 
There are no errors for the selected survey and institution.
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